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 1   A p p e a r a n c e s:
 2
 3        Water Planning Council Steering Committee
 4        Members:
 5             LARRY BINGAMAN, President, South Central
 6             Regional Water Authority
 7             ELLEN BLASCHINSKI, DPH
 8             CHRIS CLARK, Operations Manager, Mohegan
 9             Tribal Utility Authority
10             VIRGINIA de LIMA, former Director, CT US
11             Geological Service Water Science Center
12             SAM GOLD, Executive Director, Lower CT
13             River Council of Governments
14             ELIN SWANSON KATZ, ESQ., Consumer
15             Counsel, Office of Consumer Counsel
16             DAVID LeVASSEUR, Member, WPC; Director,
17             CT Office of Policy and Management
18             DR. GENE LIKENS, Special Advisor to the
19             President on Environmental Affairs;
20             President Emeritus, Cary Institute of
21             Ecosystems
22             ANDREW LORD, Chairman, East Haddam Water
23             Pollution Control Authority
24
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 2
 3             JOSEPH McGEE, VP Public Policy, Business
 4             Council of Fairfield County (via
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 6             MARGARET MINER, Cochair WPC Advisory
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 8             Alliance of CT
 9             ROBERT MOORE, former CEO, Metropolitan
10             District Commission; former Deputy
11             Commissioner, Department of Energy and
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13             SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE, Assistant
14             Professor of Economics, Smith College
15             MICHAEL SULLIVAN, Member, WPC; Deputy
16             Commissioner, Department of Energy and
17             Environmental Protection
18             MAUREEN WESTBROOK, Cochair WPC Advisory
19             Group; VP CT Water Company
20             DR. JULIE ZIMMERMAN, Associate Professor
21             Environmental Engineering, Yale
22             University (via telephone)
23
24
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 1              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon,
 2   everyone, and welcome to the meeting of the State
 3   Water Planning Steering Committee.  My name is
 4   Jack Betkoski, Vice Chairman of the Public
 5   Utilities Regulatory Authority.  And I think we'll
 6   start by going around the table introducing
 7   ourselves.  And we have a small crowd, so we can
 8   introduce the audience as well.
 9              This is being transcribed, this
10   meeting, and Lisa, my good friend from PURA, is
11   here today to transcribe this.  So why don't we go
12   right to left.
13              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  David LeVasseur,
14   Office of Policy and Management.
15              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Mike Sullivan,
16   Deputy Commissioner of DEEP.
17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virginia de Lima,
18   Science and Technology Steering Committee.
19              ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with the
20   steering committee, and chair of the policy
21   subcommittee.
22              CHRIS CLARK:  Chris Clark, Mohegan
23   Tribal.
24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen Westbrook,
25   Connecticut Water, and cochair of the advisory
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 1   committee.
 2              MARGARET MINER:  Margaret Miner, Rivers
 3   Alliance of Connecticut, and cochair of the
 4   advisory committee.
 5              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  Susan Sayre,
 6   Assistant Professor of Economics, Smith College.
 7              ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord, Connecticut
 8   Association of Water Pollution Control Authority.
 9              SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, Lower Connecticut
10   River Council of Governments.
11              GENE LIKENS:  Gene Likens, aquatic
12   scientist.
13              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Elin Katz, Consumer
14   Counsel.
15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Hi, I'm Ellen
16   Blaschinski, Department of Public Health.
17              DAVID SUTHERLAND:  David Sutherland,
18   the Nature Conservancy.
19              TONY MITCHELL:  Tony Mitchell, Rivers
20   Alliance.
21              ROBERT YOUNG:  Bob Young, Middletown
22   Water and Sewer.
23              ROBERT WESNESKI:  Bob Wesneski from the
24   Avon Water Company.
25              MARTHA SMITH:  Martha Smith, West River
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 1   Watershed Coalition.
 2              THOMAS CALLAHAN:  Tom Callahan, UConn.
 3              CHERYL CHASE:  Cheryl Chase, DEEP.
 4              DENISE RUZICKA:  Denise Ruzicka, DEEP.
 5              BRUCE WITTCHEN:  Bruce Wittchen, DEEP.
 6              ERIC LINDQUIST:  Eric Lindquist, OPM.
 7              DAVID MURPHY:  David Murphy from Milone
 8   & MacBroom.
 9              DAVID RADKA:  David Radka, Connecticut
10   Water.
11              MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford, OPM.
12              CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne Fitting,
13   DEEP.
14              LORI MATHIEU:  Lori Mathieu, DPH.
15              GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina, PURA.
16              NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley, PURA.
17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon.
18   My goodness gracious.
19              Where's Joe McGee?
20              JOSEPH McGEE:  I'm here.
21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Hello
22   Joe.
23              JOSEPH McGEE:  I can hear you
24   perfectly.
25              JULIE ZIMMERMAN:  Julie Zimmerman from


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 9


 1   Yale is on the phone too.
 2              JOHN RUDIAK:  And John Rudiak is here
 3   until Larry gets here about 2 p.m.
 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Very good.
 5              So we have a very lengthy agenda here
 6   today, so we're going to get right into it.  So
 7   we're going to start with Dave LeVasseur who has
 8   an update on the procurement process.
 9              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you, Jack.
10              As everyone remembers from our
11   September meeting, I sort of laid out what we were
12   going to be presenting here today.  And Matt
13   Pafford from my staff and the other members of the
14   Water Planning Council have done a great job
15   helping us put together the chart that I e-mailed
16   out to everybody last Friday, along with various
17   options.
18              And as I indicated in September, we
19   really see from a contractual standpoint there
20   being a need for three separate agreements.  One,
21   to continue the project management role that Tom
22   Callahan so wonderfully handled up until September
23   1st, and to actually help us select a contractor
24   who will actually write the plan and do oversight
25   of that entity or individual, and obviously
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 1   someone to direct the plan itself.
 2              My focus, quite frankly, of the last
 3   month was doing research on the oversight piece.
 4   And as everybody saw from the chart, we stumbled
 5   across the fact that we could actually use an MOU
 6   with NEIWPCC because they're considered to be a
 7   political entity, and therefore we can use an
 8   expedited process.  So my recommendation was for
 9   the piece of assisting us select a contractor and
10   contract oversight after the contractor is hired
11   to use NEIWPCC in that capacity.  So I brought
12   that to the group today for feedback.  I haven't
13   gotten any e-mail responses, so I'm hoping I'll
14   get some comments here today.
15              And I might as well hit number two as
16   well, which is the status of project management.
17   We still are up in the air and haven't heard a
18   decision from the university, so we really need to
19   start thinking about a plan B.  And I must confess
20   that I've had a hard time wrapping my arms around
21   that piece trying to find the right entity or
22   right individual to follow in Tom's footsteps.  So
23   I'm hoping for any suggestions for that as well.
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We haven't
25   received a statement with regard to that.
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 1              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, we have not.  I
 2   think we need to have a back-up plan just to be on
 3   the safe side so we're not scrambling around.
 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll open
 5   it up for discussion on both topics, one and two,
 6   relative to the procurement process and the
 7   project management process up for discussion.
 8              ROBERT MOORE:  I had a question.  On
 9   using NEIWPCC, you would contract directly with
10   them to do selection and oversight or just
11   selection?
12              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Selection and
13   oversight, and to actually help us in the
14   selection process.
15              ROBERT MOORE:  Would they then be
16   responsible for making all the payments and stuff
17   like that, or would that be -- would they have an
18   oversight fee on top of that or --
19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They would have a fee
20   that they would obviously be paid for providing
21   that service.
22              ROBERT MOORE:  And what would their
23   role be with the contractor, to do the planning?
24              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  To really do
25   day-to-day management and make sure they stay on
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 1   task and help us establish benchmarks and
 2   deliverables so that we can make sure that the
 3   contractor stays on task.
 4              ROBERT MOORE:  So that would be like
 5   instead of having an employee, you know, from OPM
 6   do it, they would be the contract manager?
 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.
 8              ROBERT MOORE:  And they would authorize
 9   payments and all that stuff?
10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They have to get
11   OPM's by law.  They have contractual authority on
12   behalf of the Water Planning Council in the Public
13   Act.
14              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would have the
15   ability to say, you know, payment is due, but they
16   wouldn't actually make the payment, the money
17   would flow from OPM to the contractor?
18              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, it would probably
19   go through NEIWPCC.
20              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would be
21   managing the plan.
22              And the other project manager that Tom
23   was filling, that's more to focus on keeping this
24   herd of people together?
25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And making sure
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 1   there's input and that everybody stays in
 2   communication and we stay on goal.
 3              ROBERT MOORE:  So that job would
 4   basically be to manage us?
 5              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.
 6              ROBERT MOORE:  And the other job would
 7   be to manage the person doing the work?
 8              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Correct.
 9              ROBERT MOORE:  I wasn't clear.
10              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And it's hard to
11   know which would be more difficult.
12              ROBERT MOORE:  To manage us might be
13   more difficult.
14              THE COURT REPORTER:  Everybody speak
15   up.  That would be great.
16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia.
17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Some of other states
18   who developed plans went with a single large
19   consulting firm who filled all those roles.  Was
20   that considered?
21              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It was.  Because, as
22   you saw from the research that we did, it was
23   tough to find a single source individual because
24   of the breakdown of the DAS.  The list for
25   contracts are very specific, and we really
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 1   couldn't find one that fit all the bill.  We
 2   thought about NEIWPCC filling all those roles.
 3   The only problem that I foresaw with that is with
 4   them being located in Massachusetts, I don't know
 5   how available they would be for us here in
 6   Connecticut.  It's one thing to manage the
 7   contractor because obviously there's a vested
 8   interest in getting paid there, but I was a little
 9   bit worried about their being located out of
10   state.
11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.
12              MARGARET MINER:  Do you have a draft or
13   sample MOU that we could have a look at?
14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I don't have one yet,
15   no.
16              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I guess we've
17   talked about this a number of times, and I think
18   the concept of the project manager perhaps being a
19   function of either NEIWPCC or the consultant
20   that's selected to the extent that we can minimize
21   the number of people who have roles here since we
22   already have multiple committees.  And it seems to
23   me that the fewer people we have leading it, the
24   more likely it is to have somebody responsible in
25   time to get it done.  But it could fulfill that
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 1   project manager role even from the other state to
 2   the extent there's so much more we do with
 3   electronic --
 4              JOSEPH McGEE:  This is Joe McGee.  I
 5   just lost the connection.  I can't hear the
 6   speaker.
 7              JOHN RUDIAK:  This is John Rudiak.  I
 8   can't hear anyone except Jack.
 9              (Pause.)
10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, can you hear
11   now?
12              JOSEPH McGEE:  Yes.
13              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We just need to
14   walk the microphone around as different people
15   talk apparently.
16              I had raised the question about whether
17   NEIWPCC might be able to fill that role or some
18   role with respect to project management, even with
19   being an out-of-state entity.  As we talked about
20   in the advisory group, our sense is we already
21   have multiple committees and multiple people
22   responsible at this level, and the more we can
23   consolidate the roles of those others that are
24   involved might be to our benefit to streamline
25   this and keep it moving.  So if there is an
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 1   opportunity to have them do that, I guess that
 2   would one of our observations.  And then I presume
 3   they will have to develop an RFP to the scope, but
 4   some RFP for a selection process.
 5              Will they do the selection, or how does
 6   that work?
 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The selection will be
 8   made by us.
 9              MARGARET MINER:  This is Margaret.
10   Just to the question of is there a sample model
11   MOU of this type available to see, and the answer
12   was not yet.
13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Maureen, to your
15   point, NEIWPCC has expressed a willingness to take
16   on that project management piece, so that's not
17   out of the realm of possibility.
18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I mean, time is
19   of essence here, so we're going to have to make
20   some decision in terms of how we are going to
21   proceed.
22              ROBERT MOORE:  There are other MOUs
23   with NEIWPCC that have been developed in the past.
24   So the other question, was there other MOUs that
25   have been developed with NEIWPCC for different
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 1   kinds of work?
 2              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Actually what's been
 3   used in the past at NEIWPCC was the PSA.  And it
 4   wasn't until I picked up the statute and actually
 5   read it that I found out they were a body politic
 6   and corporate.  And I ran it past our contracting
 7   and legal folks, and they suggested that, just as
 8   we did for the University of Connecticut, we can
 9   enter into an MOU since we're both a member of
10   NEIWPCC and they're statutorily created as a body
11   politic and corporate so --
12              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know who the person
13   would be, the prospective person to run this
14   project?
15              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  NEIWPCC hired a woman
16   named Jane Ceraso, I believe is her name, who has
17   an extensive background in water resource
18   management, over 20 years experience in
19   Massachusetts.  She's also an attorney and just
20   got hired by them, I believe, in August of this
21   year.
22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  She just started.
23              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know, is she
24   involved with policy development?
25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've actually talked
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 1   to her on the phone.  We spoke with NEIWPCC in our
 2   preliminary conversation.  So that was one of the
 3   other strengths, and that's why I sent out the
 4   e-mail that I sent on Friday that she has a very
 5   strong background in water, as opposed to
 6   wastewater, which is what NEIWPCC is primarily
 7   known for.
 8              CHRIS CLARK:  We didn't see any
 9   particulars but --
10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  DEEP and Public
11   Health utilize them, right?
12              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  We have.  So DPH
13   used the hard process of the PSA.  We're glad to
14   learn now that there's a different option for
15   contracting, but we use them to assist us in
16   development.  So in the Safe Drinking Water Act
17   there's also a lot of new regulations.  It just is
18   very labor intensive for our staff, and so we use
19   them to help us with legal services predominantly,
20   but DPH, like DEEP, has been a member of NEIWPCC
21   for many years.
22              I would agree that, you know, it seems
23   like a lot of their funding is directed a little
24   bit more on the wastewater side, but they have
25   been involved in drinking water and more broadly
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 1   just water issues.  Right now they have a Harmful
 2   Algal Bloom Workgroup that is all of the New
 3   England states working together to share science
 4   impacts, land use factors that can contribute to
 5   that.  So they have, I think, a breadth of
 6   knowledge of water policy and issues.
 7              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Betsey Wingfield.
 8   And we have done extensive work with NEIWPCC, both
 9   obviously in their capacity as sort of a policy
10   and opportunity for the state to get together, but
11   also contractual work.  We've done some
12   cooperative work with USGS and NEIWPCC.  We've
13   also done work with the Long Island Sound study
14   and NEIWPCC.  They're really good at figuring out
15   how to do contracting and how to manage projects
16   to move forward.  And typically I would say we do
17   one or two contracts a year.  Typically it has
18   been PSAs.  So we also evaluate the MOU option.
19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  Thank
20   you, Betsey.
21              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Just a cautionary
22   comment.  The state procurement and the federal is
23   very different.  USGS for years worked with them
24   under their, whatever term we're using, body
25   politic, whatever it was, and then our financial
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 1   folks discovered they were a nonprofit and they
 2   were no longer eligible for that kind of
 3   arrangement, USGS.  So just a cautionary comment.
 4   And the nonprofit status is on their web page.
 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
 6   comments?
 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would like to
 8   approach NEIWPCC and flush out a version of their
 9   proposal for providing services and then bring it
10   to the Water Planning Council for formal vote,
11   probably do a special meeting since our next
12   meeting, I think, isn't until December 1st.  So
13   that would be my proposal on how to proceed.
14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just one further
15   question in terms of how do we deal with this in
16   the budget right now.  I mean, are we selecting
17   their services and then figure out what the budget
18   is for the consultant, or how does that work?
19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It's all going to
20   come out of same pot.
21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Okay.
22              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So we'll be -- I
23   imagine what we will do is back out whatever
24   agreement we come to for their services, and then
25   the remainder will be available for the
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 1   consultant.
 2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And then it gets to
 3   the question of relative time commitment or budget
 4   commitment for different aspects of the plan,
 5   what's the date of the policy and the application
 6   and all that stuff, how does that get determined,
 7   is that through scope of services, or is the
 8   planning council going to make that
 9   recommendation?  How do you envision that?
10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would envision that
11   the planning council will make the ultimate
12   determination, but obviously we will welcome any
13   input.
14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We're just
15   concerned that half a million dollars sounds like
16   a lot of money, but it's not going to go far.
17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we've got
18   to get started.
19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've got to get
20   started.
21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Yes.
22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's, quite
23   frankly, with the project manager it didn't cost
24   us a penny so far.  That was just -- I'm hoping,
25   still optimistic, that maybe some kind of
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 1   conclusive statement from UConn, but we've got to
 2   move ahead with this.  But the ideal would be that
 3   which doesn't cost us a penny.
 4              Okay.  Any other comments?  This is
 5   very important.  Any other comments or questions
 6   or concerns?
 7              And of course always feel free to
 8   e-mail after the meeting today and us know what
 9   you're thinking, but we're going to proceed with
10   this.
11              ROBERT MOORE:  Do you need a
12   recommendation from us to say move ahead?
13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes, that would
14   be very nice.
15              ROBERT MOORE:  I'll make a
16   recommendation that we move ahead on this.
17              GENE LIKENS:  Second.
18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion made and
19   seconded that we move ahead in exploring an MOU
20   with NEIWPCC.
21              Any questions?
22              All those in favor signify by saying
23   aye.
24              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Opposed?
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 1              (No response.)
 2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion approved.
 3   Thank you very much.
 4              Lori, you're up.  We're going to have a
 5   little presentation on the WUCC update by the
 6   Department of Public Health.
 7              LORI MATHIEU:  I'm Lori Mathieu.  I'm
 8   the Section Chief of the drinking water section at
 9   the State Department of Public Health under the
10   Bureau of Regulatory Services.  My immediate boss
11   is Ellen Blaschinski.  The Commissioner is Dr.
12   Jewel Mullen.  She's been with us since 2011.
13              So I'm here today to talk about the
14   coordinated water supply planning law and WUCC
15   process.  And what I want to do though is take you
16   a little bit back in time and talk a little bit
17   about history of drinking water regulation in
18   Connecticut.  I think it's important to let you
19   know about some of the laws, the statutes, the
20   thought process, and where we are today in our
21   regulation and oversight at the state level.
22              What my department does for drinking
23   water and what the drinking water section is
24   responsible to do and what the coordinated water
25   system water supply process is under regulation
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 1   and statutes and the current status of what the
 2   future plan of development is to move forward.
 3              So some of the history.  Going way
 4   back, 1798, the second President of the United
 5   States, John Adams, developed the U.S. Public
 6   Health Service.  So the regulation and oversight
 7   of public health and water supply started that far
 8   back, but not until 1912 did they start issuing
 9   the advisories and public health advisory by the
10   Public Health Service, and that Public Health
11   Service oversaw drinking water regulation in the
12   United States until the U.S. EPA took it over in
13   1970.
14              The Connecticut Department of Public
15   Health started in the 1880s, and the very first
16   sign of the Department of Public Health being
17   involved in drinking water oversight is almost a
18   hundred years ago in 1917.  Our engineers were out
19   in the field looking at how many cows and sheep
20   and what have you in our drinking water supply
21   reservoirs.  So we have a hundred years of
22   regulatory oversight over the sanitary conditions
23   of our drinking water supplies.
24              U.S. EPA comes along in the early
25   1970s, produces the Safe Drinking Water Act in '74
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 1   and the amendments of '86 and '96, and then the
 2   Connecticut EPA received primacy of the Safe
 3   Drinking Water Act in '76, and ever since has
 4   adopted all of the amendments and the rules that
 5   have come along with that.
 6              So it was going on in the 19th century,
 7   but there was a significant public health issue
 8   going on.  If you consumed water, you had a pretty
 9   good chance of getting sick or dying from that
10   sickness.  There was prevalent gastrointestinal
11   infection, disease, typhoid, cholera, dysentery.
12   They were prevalent.  And microorganisms were not
13   understood in the 1800s.  In the beginning of the
14   20th century though filtration, technology,
15   disinfection, sanitary protections started to be
16   better understood.
17              And what were the needs at the time?  A
18   lot of industry, a lot of growth and production,
19   fire safety, a lot of growth in the cities.  Water
20   supplies were totally inadequate, unfiltered,
21   unprotected.  If anyone has seen the NBC
22   production about the history of their development,
23   they're used to the reservoir over here in the
24   middle of the city, and it was unsanitary and
25   unprotected.  People got sick from drinking.  No
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 1   treatment.  And in 1878 Connecticut State and
 2   public health oversight started, and that agency
 3   was created, and it exists today.
 4              So in the early 20th century because of
 5   the issues and the conditions that the public
 6   health agency was seeing, around 1904 or 1905,
 7   25-32 oversaw was created, oversaw the purity and
 8   adequacy to ensure, and gave the responsibility to
 9   the Department of Public Health to have oversight
10   and broad authority over public health and
11   drinking water supplies.  We oversee at that time
12   these laws came around in the early 1900s, 1910,
13   1920, gave the Department of Public Health
14   oversight of source approval, investigation,
15   pollution, threat of pollution, and other sanitary
16   conditions.
17              So fast forward about 50 or 60 years, a
18   number of significant laws passed in the seventies
19   and eighties which gave more responsibility to the
20   health department concerning water supply
21   planning, coordinating a water system planning
22   process we'll talk more about today, water company
23   land oversight, emergency response, and the
24   oversight of certified operators for water
25   systems.
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 1              So what does our section do?  The
 2   drinking water section under the Bureau of
 3   Regulatory Services, we are to protect public
 4   health.  We are responsible for the purity and
 5   adequacy oversight statewide of all public water
 6   systems.  The number one mission -- and a lot of
 7   our agencies are mandated to look at program
 8   measures and accountability, results-based
 9   accountability.  Ours is pretty simple, no
10   water-borne disease outbreaks.  We don't want
11   anyone getting sick and dying because of drinking
12   water in the State of Connecticut.  You might say,
13   well, that doesn't happen, no one dies from
14   drinking water in the State of Connecticut, do
15   they?  So we'll go a little bit over some of
16   what's going on across the country, which is quite
17   interesting these days.
18              So our responsibilities.  I gave a
19   presentation a couple of weeks back in Texas, and
20   I was at an Association of State Drinking Water
21   Administrators, so everyone like me across the
22   country gets together and we have a lot of
23   discussions.  And they say, "Well, Lori, how hard
24   is your job, you oversee two systems, three
25   systems maybe, you know, it's not that big, right,
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 1   the state is pretty small."  But we regulate --
 2   the drinking water section of the health
 3   department regulates over 2,500 public water
 4   systems.  And you might say why is that.  And we
 5   often question that too.  Why is that?
 6              So there's over 500 community systems.
 7   Of those 550 community systems, 332 of those are
 8   small that serve -- most of those 332 serve under
 9   100 people, and all of those 332 are not owned by
10   a bigger system like Connecticut Water or
11   Aquarion.  They're owned by who?  Well, the
12   homeowners' association, condominium association,
13   basically volunteers.  Yes, they have a certified
14   water operator who's a professional who runs the
15   system, but the responsible party, if we issue a
16   violation, goes to the owner, not the certified
17   operator.
18              There are over 2,000 noncommunity
19   systems.  What's a noncommunity system?  Well, my
20   town, I live in Coventry, there's 28 of them.
21   There's a CVS with a well.  There is a Dunkin'
22   Donuts with a well.  There is a Walgreens with a
23   well.  There's a Highland Park Market with a well.
24   Each one of those is a system, a noncommunity
25   system that the Department of Public Health
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 1   regulates and oversees.  There's 2,000 of them,
 2   and they grow every single day.
 3              There's over 150 reservoir systems,
 4   over 4,000 groundwater supplies, many of those
 5   small bedrock wells, under 10 gallons a minute.
 6   And we by far have the largest number of systems
 7   in New England, which is kind of funny.  We're
 8   considered a medium-sized state in the regulatory
 9   scheme of EPA, which is not good really.  We're a
10   small state.  We shouldn't be considered a
11   medium-sized state.
12              This shows in blue.  You can't really
13   see it that well, but it shows the water service
14   areas in the State of Connecticut that serve
15   public water.  And you can see that it follows the
16   main corridors, I-84, 91 and 95, but it's also
17   scattered about in the state.  It doesn't serve a
18   lot of obviously, you all know, rural parts of the
19   state.  We don't have public water distribution
20   everywhere.  And these are the sources.  And these
21   are the watersheds, the greens are the watersheds.
22              So we have sources scattered about.
23   The blues are the aqua protection areas that are
24   assigned and overseen by DEEP.  And the reds are
25   dots of wells, the protection areas for wells.  So
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 1   there's wells everywhere.  There's watersheds in
 2   many towns that affect about 80 or 90 towns,
 3   watershed lands.  So we have a lot of sources and
 4   a lot of systems spread out over our state.
 5              Most of our reservoirs look like this.
 6   This is a reservoir in the Town of Ledyard.  It's
 7   well protected.  You don't see anybody water
 8   skiing or swimming.  You don't see industrial
 9   discharges up above it.  You see a lot of land
10   protected.  You see a well-protected source.  Many
11   of our reservoirs aren't exactly like this, but
12   many of our small sources are like this.
13              This is a dug well with a cracked cap
14   right next to a stream.  So for our new engineers
15   we usually show this and say name the number of
16   violations.  There's about eight of them,
17   violations.  Many of these sources, those sources
18   that serve noncommunity systems, we tend to find
19   quite often have this situation.  It's a bad
20   situation.  Go back to the unsanitary conditions,
21   right.  And in this could be mice, rats, all kinds
22   of things that create unsanitary conditions and
23   poor public health policy.  We have to -- our
24   engineers get involved with looking at replacement
25   of these sources.  And believe me, if this serves
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 1   a business, this is not a good thing.  And we find
 2   this time and time again.  A business, a day care,
 3   this is a bad situation that exists across the
 4   state.
 5              So the drinking water section has two
 6   primary roles.  The primacy of the Safe Drinking
 7   Water Act.  We have a whole host of state
 8   statutory oversight, which I went over before,
 9   most of which came from 100 years ago.  So in our
10   primacy our engineers, about 30 of them, go out
11   and review every system on a three to five-year
12   basis.  We also oversee treatment and source
13   review and approval.  We oversee a Drinking Water
14   State Revolving Loan Fund program that we work
15   with the DEEP, our sister agency, on under the
16   Clean Water Fund.  We've been able to loan over I
17   think on average over the last three years about
18   $30 million a year to our public water systems
19   statewide to help on infrastructure replacements.
20              We oversee drinking water quality, and
21   over a half a million water quality samples come
22   into our office every year, we have oversight of
23   that.  And obviously we have a huge enforcement
24   component making sure the systems do what they're
25   supposed to do, as well as operators.  Recently
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 1   we've adopted the Groundwater Rule and are working
 2   toward adopting the revised Total Coliform Rule,
 3   which those two rules really will change the way
 4   public water systems are overseen and have been
 5   overseen since the seventies.  These are really
 6   changing the game for these systems and putting a
 7   lot more pressure on those small systems because
 8   they have to do things differently and are going
 9   to have to spend probably a lot more money to get
10   their system into compliance.
11              We have a lot of state statutory
12   oversight in water company-owned lands.  A hundred
13   thousand acres of water company lands are
14   regulated.  Water companies can't just sell or
15   change the use of that property without a permit
16   from the commissioner of DPH.  We oversee
17   recreational permitting over that land, sale of
18   excess water permits, certified operators, and we
19   also oversee plans, individual plans and regional
20   plan.
21              Now I put this slide in here just for
22   interest because it brings you back to a lot
23   people say, well, it's just another utility.  But
24   it's the only utility that you consume, and people
25   can get sick.  So actually my slide is wrong.
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 1   Legionella is number one, is the number one cause
 2   across the country of drinking water outbreaks,
 3   waterborne disease outbreaks.  In New York City
 4   there were 11 deaths attributed to drinking water
 5   and Legionella outbreaks, 11.  In Pennsylvania
 6   there have been in the last three years 12 deaths
 7   due to Legionella in public drinking water.  In
 8   the VA Hospital across the country, across the
 9   country, 13 deaths due to Legionella.
10              Now I'll just leave you with this
11   question.  Ebola.  How many people in the United
12   States died from Ebola?  I think one.  I think
13   one.
14              So Legionella is an up-and-coming issue
15   within drinking water.  EPA just issued a
16   technical guidance.  It's a difficult thing to get
17   your hands around.  It's not simple, easy, throw
18   more chlorine in the water and we're done with it.
19   So there's still ongoing waterborne disease
20   outbreaks, there's still issues to deal with, and
21   it's a real serious issue which has come into
22   Connecticut, and we're even talking about it with
23   the water commissioner with Legionella, in
24   particular.
25              So what's important?  Well, obviously
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 1   to many communities to have an abundant source of
 2   water supply means a lot to them.  It really does
 3   mean preservation of the public trust because as
 4   soon as a business has an E. coli and they have to
 5   post "do not drink the water" and they have to
 6   throw out their food and they have to throw out
 7   their ice, and they have to close down for three
 8   or four days to clean out the whole system, the
 9   public trust starts to get lost, the chief-elected
10   officials, the townspeople, the town councils,
11   they start to get concerned.  And ensuring
12   sanitary conditions for many facilities such as
13   schools, nursing homes, restaurants, hospitals,
14   day cares, those are so important to people when
15   you think about it.  If something goes wrong in a
16   school, there's a real problem.  And we've had
17   some situations lately with some waterborne
18   disease issues in schools.  It's been interesting.
19   There's a lot of interesting stuff going on, and
20   people are concerned, specifically what's gone on
21   in New York City lately.
22              So it's the public trust.  And
23   obviously economic growth, but in our world we
24   think it's priceless.  We have good sanitary
25   conditions and well-protected sources and abundant
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 1   sources so that you can serve who you need to
 2   serve in your town.  We think it's priceless.
 3              So what's the process that we're
 4   talking about today, the planning process,
 5   coordinated water system planning process?  We'll
 6   go through the statutes.  And it's a legal
 7   process.  Why does it exist?  Where did it come
 8   from?  What's going on?  What's the present
 9   status?  And what's the future of the process?
10   And how are we going to accomplish the mission
11   that was set about 30 years ago in the
12   legislature?
13              Well, the coordinated water system
14   plan, which is for water supply, came about
15   because of the 1981/1982 drought.  Now people in
16   the room, Denise Ruzicka, I don't know if you were
17   hired yet at DPH, but the laws that came out of
18   that drought were significant and changed the
19   course of many different things that went on.
20   There was a water research task force.  I think
21   all of you on the committee here have a copy
22   somewhere of that report that came out at that
23   time.  If you have the time, you should read that
24   report.  It's very interesting what was going on
25   at the time and the thought process of why we
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 1   needed to create a whole series of new law because
 2   of this scare.  There were literally days of water
 3   left I think in Greenwich.  Maybe Bob, you might
 4   know a lot more about this than I do.  So there
 5   were days -- and people were afraid they were
 6   going to run out of water.  They couldn't get
 7   enough water if people needed it.
 8              So the report in many parts created a
 9   whole series of laws.  And the laws we're going to
10   focus in on today will be the planning laws, the
11   individual water supply planning laws, as well as
12   the regional planning laws known as the WUCC
13   process.
14              So there are statutes and there are
15   regulations, and there's a legislative intent
16   right in the statute which you don't see anymore.
17   You don't see that.  They don't do that anymore.
18   But to me 25-33c says it all about what is the
19   need for the WUCC process and that DPH shall
20   administer the process to coordinate the plan.
21              Here are all the statutes, so it's not
22   just one little statute, it's many statutes.  A
23   complicated process was set out.  Denise Ruzicka
24   and Anne Gobin, in my understanding, went over to
25   the State of Washington in the mid-eighties to go
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 1   study their process, and maybe Maureen Westbrook.
 2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  (Shaking head in
 3   the negative.)
 4              LORI MATHIEU:  You didn't go to
 5   Washington?  But Maureen did work for the Health
 6   Department in the eighties.
 7              So that process was brought over from
 8   the State of Washington and took what is known as
 9   the WUCC process which puts together a series of
10   essentially four plans -- actually three, three
11   major pieces:  An assessment of water supply on a
12   regional basis; an exclusive service area
13   document; and then what's known as an integrated
14   report or a coordinated water system plan.  And it
15   brings it all together.  Think of the WUCC plan as
16   a 50-year water supply plan for the entire state.
17   It coordinates water system planning so that our
18   water systems are not trying to serve the same
19   area with different water systems, they're not
20   competing with one another because that's
21   uncoordinated and a waste of time and money, and
22   that there's consistency among plans so that
23   municipalities and anyone who would like to know
24   would know who's going to serve where and when and
25   who has the capacity to do that.
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 1              So the regulations, this whole series
 2   of regulations that go along with this, talks
 3   about all it sets out, the whole set of
 4   responsibilities of the WUCC.  It sets out the
 5   pieces of each one of plan -- assessment and
 6   boundaries and report summary.  There's
 7   regulations that require pieces to be part of
 8   those plans, and it talks about preparation,
 9   submission, approval.  So every part of the
10   planning process is either in statute or
11   regulation.
12              So what have we done over the years?
13   Well, in '86, '87, '88, we started, we came up
14   with seven areas, seven regions.  We started with
15   the Housatonic and moved to the upper Connecticut
16   River, South Central and the Southeast.  We've
17   created four plans under those statutes and
18   regulations.  Only one of them is approved, and
19   that's the Southeast.  These were convened in the
20   eighties, but the Northeast, the Northwest Hills
21   and the Southwest were never convened.  So today
22   there are plans, regional plans that exist for
23   these four areas, but not for the Northeast,
24   Northwest Hills, and Southwest.
25              So the idea has always been over the
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 1   last many years for the Health Department to move
 2   forward and to try to finish this process
 3   statewide and get these other plans up to date.
 4   So these just break out when these were convened
 5   and when the plans were approved.
 6              So what have we done recently?  So in
 7   2014 we filed our statute, which guides us through
 8   the process of revising the boundaries to kind of
 9   get an updated boundary and try to reduce the
10   amount of areas that we were dealing with.
11   Instead of seven, there should be something more
12   like four or three or two maybe.
13              So we took in a lot of comments.  We've
14   reviewed all those comments.  We followed the law.
15   The law breaks out eight factors that we actually
16   have to consider in looking at the boundaries.
17   And we wanted to assure a couple of things:  One,
18   we didn't want to cut a town in half; and two, we
19   wanted to follow the new boundaries of the council
20   of governments that were just being set through
21   this process; and third, we thought it would --
22   well, third and fourth.  Third was really
23   important with the watershed.  We heard a lot of
24   comments from the environmental groups.  We said,
25   look, try to follow the major drainage basin
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 1   boundaries.  And fourth, there's a requirement to
 2   look at carefully not splitting a water system in
 3   half, to keep your water system whole, along with
 4   the sources.
 5              And so putting all those factors
 6   together, we produced a report for Commissioner
 7   Mullen in October of last year, and we came up --
 8   and these are the eight factors under the statute
 9   that we are required to review.  And the map that
10   I handed out shows these boundaries.  These are
11   the three new WUCC areas, and they do not break up
12   the council of government of any towns.  They try
13   really hard to follow the major drainage basins,
14   and we try really hard not to break up water
15   systems, but we did, and we couldn't avoid it.
16   And we couldn't avoid not strictly following the
17   major drainage with these boundaries, but we tried
18   as best as we could.
19              So the WUCCs, why are they important?
20   A lot of people ask me why even bother, you know,
21   why even bother with this effort.  Because it
22   really on a regional basis water utilities need to
23   come together to talk with the towns, the town
24   planners.  It really drives that to meet with the
25   council of governments to get the council of
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 1   government staff directly involved in the water
 2   supply planning and regional planning and needs of
 3   their towns and their council government areas.
 4   It brings together issues that local health
 5   directors bring more attention about pollution of
 6   private wells.  It brings in the town planners
 7   when they're thinking about where they're going to
 8   move water or where they think they have enough
 9   water.  A lot of times in towns they will make
10   decisions without having a clue as to is there
11   enough water supply to serve the subdivision or
12   not.  There are assumptions that are made all the
13   time in local decisions.
14              So it really needs to also highlight to
15   bring forward what are the needs of the state,
16   what are the needs of the region, are there
17   priority areas that need attention immediately
18   because there's a public health issue.  And it's
19   also a forum in the meetings that are held between
20   the members, the members of the public water
21   systems and the council of government and
22   executive directors, to resolve issues locally,
23   not by the state agencies.  The state agencies are
24   not members.  Ourselves, OPM, DEEP and PURA, we're
25   kind of on the outside looking in on this process.
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 1   We don't drive this process.  The members do, the
 2   public water systems and the council of
 3   governments do.  So it's a guide for system
 4   growth, it's a guide to coordinate individual
 5   plans, and also to look at areas of exclusive
 6   water service.
 7              So moving forward what are we doing?
 8   We've been gathering information, working with a
 9   consulting firm, Milone & MacBroom, over the last
10   couple of months.  We've held three -- in
11   September we held three informational meetings in
12   the three new WUCC areas.  We would like -- and
13   we've been developing standard procedures under
14   the regulatory requirements and been working to
15   move those out and get people thinking about
16   setting up standard process and how to vote or not
17   vote or how to proceed under the meeting
18   structure.  And our plan is early '16 for DPH to
19   hire a consultant to assist the three WUCCs to
20   move forward and produce the plan for each one of
21   the three areas.  So we plan to convene under our
22   commissioner's authority to convene the three
23   WUCCs in early 2016.
24              So again, the WUCCs will tell you a
25   number of things.  You will know what are the
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 1   water supply needs and where is the excess
 2   capacity or who thinks they have excess capacity.
 3   We would have a plan to meet future water supply
 4   needs.  We include all partners and stakeholders
 5   in the public meetings that are held.  We're going
 6   to focus on -- and this is something that I know
 7   we talked -- our agency, as well as DEEP, we
 8   talked a lot about water conservation and the need
 9   to get really serious about water conservation.
10   Instead of using our precious water that we
11   protect so well with our sources just for
12   irrigation, there needs to be a time where we're
13   thinking differently, as well as emergency
14   preparedness has changed dramatically just over
15   the last five years and the need to be more
16   prepared than we've ever been before.
17              We want a complete statewide whole
18   plan, and we want to make it a dynamic plan and an
19   implementable plan, not something that's going to
20   sit on the shelf and collect dust.  So there's
21   been a lot of interest in what the data collection
22   contract has been and what we've been doing in the
23   last few months with help from Milone & MacBroom.
24   Dave Murphy is here today.  Milone & MacBroom has
25   been collecting and organizing data that will be
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 1   utilized -- that will be part of the WUCC process,
 2   part of the WUCC plan.  And their work will be
 3   done by the end of the year, collecting and
 4   organizing information, and we're going to be
 5   tying it to GIS information trying to make
 6   everything digital, unlike what we did 20 or 30
 7   years ago.
 8              So these are the pieces of information
 9   that are getting collected.  I know there's some
10   interest in this as well, so I have a few slides
11   that goes from -- and it's everything that needs
12   to be pulled together, basic level of information
13   that's going to be used to put together the plan.
14   So all of these pieces of information are getting
15   collected and organized so that we're ready to go
16   at the beginning of 2016, as well as all this,
17   safe yield, purchased water, growth trends.  A lot
18   of this information is coming out of individual
19   water supply plans from the utilities from the
20   Department of Public Health record.
21              So here's my schematic of what I think
22   about because I get a lot of questions about,
23   well, the WUCC is the water plan and water plan is
24   the WUCC.  No, it really isn't.  It really isn't
25   because the WUCC is just one small piece of what
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 1   the state water plan is set up to do.  The
 2   legislation is pretty clear.  You have 17 items to
 3   consider.  The WUCC is just one input of that
 4   talking about water supply needs and public health
 5   needs for water supply.  That's all it is.  And
 6   people ask me, well, it's going to do this, it's
 7   going to do that, it's terrible, it's this, it's
 8   that, it's the Darth Vader of water, you know,
 9   it's terrible.  And I say, you know what, all it
10   is is a plan.  It's a plan.  It's a plan that 30
11   years ago we thought was so important to get done.
12   We didn't get it done.  The shame of it is it
13   didn't get done years ago, but our mission is to
14   finish the process.  The planning process takes
15   two years.  And once we convene we have two years
16   to finish the plans.  So we believe that, you
17   know, by end of the year '18 we'll have all of
18   these plans complete.  By the year '19 we'll have
19   one plan that we can hand to anybody to talk about
20   water supply needs, either regionally or locally
21   or statewide.
22              So thank you.  And thank you for your
23   time listening to me.  I appreciate it.
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very
25   much, Lori.  Excellent presentation.  You really
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 1   gave a great history of the water issues you've
 2   had in the state.
 3              So I'll open it up for any questions or
 4   anything you might have for Lori.
 5              ROBERT MOORE:  Lori, the WUCC is going
 6   to be faced with the same issues that we have in
 7   this plan.  A lot of the information that was in
 8   the WUCC is going to be redacted from the plan.
 9   How are you going to handle that?
10              This is Maureen's question but --
11              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I know.
12              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's an
13   interesting question because we've been at the
14   forefront --
15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  I think you have to
16   go to the podium.
17              LORI MATHIEU:  Okay.  FOI is an
18   interesting question.  We've been dealing with it
19   since the FOI law passed in 2003.  To be honest
20   with you, we didn't really understand the full
21   benefit of when it passed.  It passed under an
22   implementer bill, from what I remember.  It did
23   not have a public hearing.  And no one had a
24   chance to comment on it.  If we did, and we had a
25   chance as agencies to study it, I don't think it
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 1   would have passed in the way it's passed today.
 2              When you read it, it says, you know --
 3   I had my folder.  Anyway, it's over there.  But it
 4   says -- you know, it gives some very specific
 5   potability assessments, emergency plans, you know,
 6   all these other things, very specific items.  And
 7   then it says and portions of water supply plans
 8   that may present a risk, bla, bla, bla, bla, bla,
 9   and there's a couple other fuzzy phrases there
10   that put in a lot of -- they're not objective;
11   they're very subjective.
12              So it brings up, you know, a lot of
13   judgment.  So when we get an FOI request, like the
14   request we got from Margaret for all four of the
15   plans, the latest one was for Margaret, so we said
16   let's go through the process.  The process is we
17   go to the Department of Administrative Services
18   for a security risk review, and specifically Jeff
19   Beckham, who's their lead counsel, spends his
20   time, along with the head of security for
21   buildings, Ray Philbrick, spends his time working
22   with us.  We work on the redactions with them, and
23   it takes an awful lot of time.  There's a lot of
24   judgment call.  And frankly having been a
25   conservative, I would say yes because of the
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 1   judgment call involved.  It's a serious issue,
 2   even today, security risk, a serious issue.  Just
 3   ask anybody who's involved with it.
 4              I understand Art House was talking
 5   about cybersecurity.  It's still today a risk.  I
 6   still see the security reviews that come across my
 7   desk.  There still are threats, people looking to
 8   gather information to do harm to public water
 9   systems.  So it really is still a threat, but I
10   think the law needs to change, if you ask me.  And
11   you did, you asked me, so I'm going to -- I think
12   the law needs to change.  I will get -- Ellen and
13   I were talking.  We talk a lot about it.  One of
14   the things we talked about recently was the amount
15   of time my staff took to redact those WUCC plans,
16   over 30 hours of my staff's time.  And you can't
17   give that to an intern, you have to give it to a
18   person who has experience in doing the redactions.
19   We gave it to a person who was at a lower pay, and
20   he looked at it and he did, he gave it to his
21   supervisor, and the supervisor totally redid it,
22   80 percent different from the intern to the
23   supervisor.
24              So to me it shows the law isn't very
25   clear, it doesn't work very well, the process is
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 1   lengthy, and anybody who deals with FOI as a state
 2   agency or a local agency knows that you have to be
 3   responsive or people get upset at you.
 4              Right, Margaret?  You know.
 5              MARGARET MINER:  I'm a very calm
 6   person.
 7              LORI MATHIEU:  And we've heard you over
 8   the years.  And frankly you and I talked about
 9   this.  It's such a frustrating process because
10   you, under FOI, should be able to share
11   information that you want to share and be clear
12   about it, and we can't do that because it's such a
13   very subjective process under the statute.  And
14   frankly I think the statute needs to change.  So
15   that's just my editorial.
16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Stay there, Lori,
17   in case there's any --
18              Yes, Margaret.
19              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Thank you, Lori,
20   for that.  If anybody wants to see, I mean, the
21   latest plans I asked for are the ones that have
22   been public for, you know, until recently for ten
23   years, eight years.  You can go to the web site
24   and look at the plans, and you'll see the blacked
25   out sections where data is.  And sometimes I don't
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 1   know what there is under it.  It's like a whole
 2   half page marked up.  I'm assuming it's something
 3   critical.  But you can see for yourselves what
 4   those plans look like.  So yes, I've been hesitant
 5   to create more that's just going to be redacted.
 6              Two questions:  At one of the
 7   presentations you did, Lori, Mary Mushinsky stood
 8   up, Representative Mary Mushinsky, and said the
 9   WUCC plan should be coordinated or integrated with
10   the water planning, the comprehensive water
11   planning.  I understand your reasons saying no,
12   but there is really a large overlap in the data
13   that's needed and the planning that's needed to be
14   done because in the WUCC statute there was no --
15   there was very little comprehensive water
16   planning.  And so the requirement is to do
17   assessments of regional environmental assets, as
18   well as water supply planning.
19              So I do feel the plans overlap and that
20   your arrows that you showed, you know, WUCCs will
21   just be one source of information in forming the
22   comprehensive plan.  It's not just a little arrow
23   among many, it is a big part.  It should have a
24   big arrow.  And, you know, that sometimes we feel
25   like you'll do the water supply planning, and


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 51


 1   we'll get what's left after you all do your water
 2   supply planning.  I know that's simplistic.
 3              The other problem that I've seen over
 4   the years is that it's really an exclusionary
 5   process with very vague governing guidelines or
 6   criteria.  And most WUCC meetings, I don't know
 7   how many members have even been notified, they may
 8   have been notified or some.  I don't think people
 9   know how to notify them.  The customers are not at
10   the table.  Really the main purpose of the WUCCs,
11   as I understand it, is to set up exclusive service
12   areas.  And I have some questions about their
13   enforceability, how that's done.  But in general
14   it sets up exclusive service areas for water
15   supply throughout the state so there's not a
16   competition, there is organization.  I would think
17   it would be very important to have the customers
18   represented.  Customers who are familiar with
19   water companies may have feelings about one more
20   than the other or experience.
21              So that's -- and of course
22   environmental.  You say we can come to the
23   meeting, customers can come to the meeting, but as
24   far as I know there's no significant input.  As it
25   happens, you and many people at DPH are very
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 1   responsive, but officially and formally we can get
 2   up and say something but nobody needs to pay
 3   attention to it.  So the exclusionary, the
 4   exclusionary aspect, the overlap with water
 5   planning, why should we be putting energy into two
 6   separate roads, and then of course, but I don't
 7   have to say another word about FOI.
 8              So I am worried about the WUCC process.
 9   Also, I think it's very hard to follow the
10   statute.  I have no -- the statute has multiple
11   layers of hearings, approvals, new hearings, back
12   and forth, but I guess that will be your problem
13   to worry about.
14              LORI MATHIEU:  If you want to see
15   layers, look at the Groundwater Rule.  These laws
16   are nothing compared to Federal Law and then the
17   laws that these water systems are going to have to
18   deal with.  So this is where we disagree.  I don't
19   know if you had a question in there.  Most of that
20   was statements but --
21              MARGARET MINER:  I did want to make the
22   points I made.  You have answered one of my
23   questions on FOI in a very nice way, so perhaps
24   you have other answers.
25              LORI MATHIEU:  So the exclusionary
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 1   part, I don't think it's exclusionary at all.  As
 2   a matter of fact, they're public meetings
 3   published under the Secretary of State and
 4   published with the town clerks right now which is
 5   a wonderful process.  They actually put it up on
 6   line.  So these are publicized meetings open to
 7   the public, and we've never excluded anyone from
 8   coming, ever.  As contentious as the Southeast
 9   area was, we've never stopped anyone from coming
10   to those meeting, ever.
11              So it's a wide-open process and
12   everyone is allowed to come and speak, set as an
13   agenda, and there's open forum for people to come
14   and speak.  And over the years there's been many
15   people that have come and have put their items on
16   the table that are not members that have been a
17   big part, including the Farmington River Watershed
18   Association in the eighties had an extra report
19   completed.  Denise might remember more of this,
20   and Jim Connelly and Gary Johnson were a part of
21   this, spent a year-long process working on an
22   extra report as part of the WUCC to address the
23   concerns that were brought forward at the time
24   between the MDC and the Farmington River Watershed
25   Association.
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 1              So the WUCC does listen.  So that's
 2   what I say about that.  It is not exclusionary at
 3   all.  And the members are the public water
 4   systems, as well as the council of governments.
 5   And I think the council of government membership
 6   brings a lot to the table as far as bringing in
 7   the true planners, the people that understand the
 8   region, the people that understand the water
 9   supply needs within those areas.  To me it's not
10   an exclusionary process.  It's a very open
11   process, very well-publicized process.  And if you
12   have any other ideas about getting the word out,
13   we have an extensive other interested party, as
14   Bruce does, for this process, a very extensive
15   other interested party e-mail list that we e-mail
16   around to just about everybody we can think of to
17   involve them in the process.
18              So we have many meetings.  They are
19   open.  They are published.  And, you know, we're
20   going to move forward.  I think that moving
21   forward now I think is more important than ever
22   because we need the information for this process.
23   The data that's getting collected will be very
24   informative to the state water plan.  And so we're
25   going to put it in a form and format that can be
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 1   used for anybody.
 2              Now in every one of those pieces on
 3   those slides that I shared with you there's a lot
 4   of FOI issues with every one of those pieces
 5   unfortunately.  And in the eighties you could
 6   share those broadly, in the nineties you could
 7   share them broadly, but after 2011, you know --
 8   after 2001, sorry, 2001, you can't because of the
 9   law that passed.
10              So I think there needs to be a real
11   serious review of the FOI law and to have
12   people sit -- and we tried years ago.  We didn't
13   get too far.
14              MARGARET MINER:  We all did try.
15              LORI MATHIEU:  I just saw an e-mail
16   from Betsey right before this meeting sending out
17   information to this group about FOI.  So maybe we
18   can have a real serious discussion and make some
19   change that makes a lot of sense to the agencies
20   that have been dealing with the redactions and the
21   amount of time we've spent in this process.  And I
22   think Jeff Beckham is a key to that because he's a
23   very important piece in reviewing the security
24   risk.
25              MARGARET MINER:  I just want to
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 1   mention, not a question, but I have been asked,
 2   well, do you impose all security redactions.  No,
 3   there are secrets for security like your computer
 4   operating systems and how you access them.  I
 5   don't know how secure they are, but we're not
 6   interested in them.  And if it's really a secret,
 7   either we don't need it, don't want it, or we
 8   don't even know about it.  So we're not -- we do
 9   recognize it's a dangerous world, and water
10   utilities should be doing a lot, maybe more than
11   they're doing about security, and we support that.
12   We just feel this missed the target widely the
13   laws on FOI.  And I thank you for reviewing it.
14              LORI MATHIEU:  Sure.  Thank you.
15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
16   questions for Lori?
17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So Lori, thanks.
18   This is great.  I feel partly responsible.  I
19   remember back when we started this hearing I think
20   I was the one that said what's a WUCC.  So thank
21   you very much.
22              I've got just a couple of questions.  I
23   was taking notes.  And I think back in the -- I
24   think you were saying back in the eighties you
25   were initially looking at seven regions?
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 1              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
 2              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And three regions
 3   didn't make any progress at all?
 4              LORI MATHIEU:  Right.
 5              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  The others came up
 6   with plans and then one, Southeast --
 7              LORI MATHIEU:  Is approved, yes.
 8              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  -- is approved.
 9   What's going to happen with, for example,
10   Southeast now that these three kind of super
11   regions, what happens to the --
12              LORI MATHIEU:  Existing plans?
13              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  How does that -- do
14   they have to start all over again?
15              LORI MATHIEU:  The existing plans don't
16   go away.  They become incorporated as part of the
17   planning process.
18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Do they have to like
19   revisit?
20              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes, they have to be
21   updated, absolutely.
22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  I guess, I'm just
23   jumping around here a little bit.  On the FOIA
24   question, and I agree with you, but I wonder --
25   and changes do need to be made.  I wonder in the
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 1   meantime -- and it takes a while to change law.
 2   Maybe we'll be here seven months from now,
 3   whatever the time frame is.  And I wonder if there
 4   is like some benefit to having like the policy
 5   committee kind of take a look at this.  If one of
 6   the questions is like how state agencies interpret
 7   the law, and if it's vague, then perhaps there's
 8   some merit to having some of the members of the
 9   policy group take a look at it to see if there is
10   a different set of eyes like this is how we think
11   you might kind of deal with some of the issues
12   that Margaret has raised and that Lori has talked
13   about as well, that kind of in the meantime enable
14   us to make some progress in this area because a
15   lot of our efforts have been dependent on
16   everybody at the table being able to access
17   information.  If we're going to be able to reach
18   conclusions, reach consensus on some of these
19   things, people are going to need to know what
20   that's based on.
21              So to the extent that some people have
22   all the information and others don't have anywhere
23   near as much, that's a problem for this group, the
24   steering committee for the Water Planning Council,
25   so we've got to kind of put aside how we all feel
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 1   about Margaret.  I mean, if she wasn't here, the
 2   issue would be the same.  We need to kind of
 3   figure out like a way to improve our ability to
 4   serve the public with the validity of the data
 5   that we're using to draw a conclusion.  So I'm not
 6   sure how that kind of fits in, Bob, to what the
 7   Committee is doing, but that might be another way
 8   to start --
 9              ROBERT MOORE:  That first issue, I'll
10   talk about that.
11              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  All right.  And then
12   I guess it was interesting to hear that Maureen
13   started off at the health department.  So thank
14   you for that.
15              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I didn't get to
16   go to Washington.
17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One of the things
18   that you were saying up there was so the WUCC
19   process is designed to bring together all these
20   players, you know, to talk about the various
21   things and then establish exclusive service areas.
22   Could you talk about what that means and how that
23   kind of relates to the state water plan?
24              LORI MATHIEU:  Exclusive service areas
25   in particular?
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 1              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Yes.
 2              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's exactly what
 3   it is.  It's an area set up of exclusive water
 4   supply service by one utility so that you cannot
 5   have another utility come in here and provide
 6   water service.
 7              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So is that if these
 8   three WUCC processes, this process went
 9   successfully forward, then each one of those would
10   be an exclusive service area, and then so one
11   utility would basically have control?
12              LORI MATHIEU:  You would have
13   individual assigned exclusive service areas.
14   Unfortunately, I don't have a copy of the map of
15   any one of the WUCCs that were set up, but
16   essentially in this area of the state you have MDC
17   that has their service area, and then you have New
18   Britain, they have their exclusive service area.
19   They get their existing service area, you have
20   what you have, and then you claim areas of growth
21   beyond that.  And that should be connected to your
22   water supply plan to show how you can serve that
23   area.  And then during the process, the planning
24   process, you might have other utilities saying,
25   look, I want to serve that same area, this is how
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 1   I'm going to do it.  And that's where the whole
 2   negotiating process comes about.  In the Southeast
 3   you had quite a few overlapping claims.
 4              For instance, the Town of North
 5   Stonington had eight different entities claiming
 6   the entire town.  Because, if you remember, at
 7   that time it was the late nineties and the
 8   Foxwoods Casino just got built.  There was a lot
 9   of ongoing, you know, big plans for Route 2 and
10   off of I-95, and so there was a lot of discussion
11   about development in the area.  So all the
12   utilities in the area wanted the Town of North
13   Stonington.  In the end the Town of North
14   Stonington won out.  The town is an exclusive
15   service area.
16              So the process is setting up areas of
17   where a utility can serve and where a utility has
18   excess water to be able to serve that area and is
19   connected to their individual water supply plan
20   that shows the safe yield and available water and
21   margin of safety over a 50-year period of time.
22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Thank you.
23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen.
24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  If I could just add
25   on that.  The part about the exclusive service
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 1   area, I think one of the things that's been the
 2   greatest benefit from that from a water utility
 3   perspective and from a customer perspective, quite
 4   frankly, is the ability to know where systems are
 5   going to expand and where the infrastructure
 6   should be.  There's no point in making the
 7   pipelines that are coming in either across each
 8   other or bump into each other, there's enough
 9   investment we have to make just to replace aging
10   infrastructure without replacing things that are
11   not really serving the greatest purpose.
12              So I think that's really from an
13   operational perspective one of the greatest
14   benefits of the WUCC is to have utilities identify
15   where it makes sense for them to serve, who has
16   adequate supplies, and how you will reasonably be
17   expected to meet those needs long term, and then
18   make sure you don't have a lot of redundancy in
19   those investments in that infrastructure to serve
20   those customers.  So I think that's a real
21   important part of it is how to benefit long term,
22   even in the ones that have been and maybe even
23   those not formally adopted.
24              LORI MATHIEU:  And along with that, the
25   town planners, the council of governments,


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 63


 1   regional people and local health department, they
 2   start to understand who's going to be where and
 3   when if there's an issue and they know who they
 4   can turn to.  And also it's connected to the
 5   certificate law, the certificate of public
 6   convenience and necessity, that looks at
 7   developing new systems as stand-alone systems.  If
 8   you have a claimed area, if you claim that entire
 9   Town of North Stonington and you want to build a
10   new elderly housing out in the middle of the
11   woods, well, the Town of North Stonington will
12   have to own that water system.
13              No longer are we going to create new
14   small community systems.  The exclusive service
15   area will guide the development of not only their
16   own system but also the development, or hopefully
17   the lack of development, of new small community
18   systems that are run by a mobile home park owner
19   who lives in Florida and could care less about the
20   people who live there.  We run into that time and
21   time again.  The time is to stop that, and that's
22   one of the powers of the exclusive service area as
23   well.
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
25   questions for Lori?
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 1              MS. BLASCHINSKI:  If I could, I'd just
 2   make one follow-up comment on that.  I think DPH
 3   has tried to learn a bit from our sister agency at
 4   DEEP and how you handle municipal facility
 5   planning statewide.  So we have all these condo
 6   associations who become public water systems, and
 7   then we have to regulate them.  And then
 8   ultimately the condo association board of
 9   directors decides they're going to retire, they
10   don't want to do that anymore, and yet they're a
11   public water system.  And DPH is responsible for
12   overseeing that.  And what we came to learn was
13   with municipal facilities plans that if a condo
14   association becomes a community wastewater
15   treatment system that the town in which they exist
16   would have responsibility for managing that
17   community wastewater system, and it assisted quite
18   a bit in the creation of new systems.  So we'd
19   like to just keep that a similar process so that
20   it's not a quick, put this well in the ground,
21   build these condos, how fast can I sell them for,
22   how much money.  It's long term this is where
23   somebody is going to reside.  They will need a
24   long-term reliable source of drinking water for
25   their use.
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 1              So there's some of the similarities I
 2   think with municipal facility planning.  I think
 3   the difference in that is it's completely
 4   municipally owned.  I think there's a lot of
 5   private entities who are in the business of
 6   providing municipal facility service, but I'm sure
 7   others could correct me.
 8              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  There's one major
 9   one, Ellen.
10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Anything
11   else?
12              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One more quick
13   question.  You started off talking about like the
14   number of systems that you regulate.
15              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
16              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  It seems like a lot.
17              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Will this process
19   with the exclusive service areas and/or the WUCCs,
20   does that kind of drive down the number?
21              LORI MATHIEU:  It was meant to.  Part
22   of the report that Bob wrote was to stop the
23   growth of the small systems because in the
24   seventies and eighties systems were -- small condo
25   systems were being built, and they were failing
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 1   the next day, literally failing.  So I think it
 2   will work really hard to reduce the number of
 3   systems that are out there.
 4              One of the bigger problems is when you
 5   talk about the growth of noncommunity systems, and
 6   we have towns such as Brookfield that, thank God,
 7   that Brookfield is being resolved, there was 180
 8   public water systems along Federal Road in the
 9   Town of Brookfield, 180.  And if you know Federal
10   Road, specifically the southern part of Federal
11   Road, every one of those shopping centers had a
12   well in a pit that you would drive over.
13              So if you went to the Panara Bread,
14   right, that's down in the southern part of
15   Brookfield, that well is in a pit that your car is
16   sitting over.  And even though it's groundwater,
17   it's filled with, let's see, you know, radium,
18   uranium, arsenic and MTBE and all kinds of VOCs.
19   So mix all that together, you are putting -- and
20   they wanted to continue to put more in there.
21              So the idea of planning better, the
22   problem we have is we're still growing more of the
23   Brookfields of the world.  We're still just saying
24   here's another building, here's another well,
25   here's another building, here's another well.  And
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 1   towns need to start thinking about that, and so
 2   does the state.  The state needs to rethink their
 3   policy on growth of public water in those towns.
 4              Like my town, 28 noncommunity systems
 5   in my town, and it's going to continue to grow
 6   because there's no other bigger infrastructure.
 7   So that's part of the effort of the WUCC is to
 8   limit the growth of these systems.
 9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any other
10   questions?
11              (No response.)
12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Lori, thank you
13   very much.  It was a great topic, great
14   discussion.
15              (Applause.)
16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Next we're up for
17   the policy subcommittee report.
18              ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.  We've had
19   two meetings over the last two months.  And one of
20   the first things we did is ask the Council's
21   questions which were answered.  We were a little
22   bit concerned about the question about clarifying
23   the roles of the project manager.  The first part
24   of that seemed that the project manager reports to
25   the WPC, interacts, and then the second part of
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 1   that question we were a little bit confused about
 2   the role of the project manager in helping or
 3   driving the steering committee.  So I think that
 4   was answered a little better this morning or
 5   earlier in this meeting, so I think we'll be
 6   comfortable with that answer.
 7              The two meetings focused on two primary
 8   issues:  One is the redacted information on water
 9   supplies, and felt that really without a clear
10   decision on what information was going to be
11   available that the report would be lacking and
12   would be missing things and people wouldn't trust
13   it because they wouldn't be able to see how much
14   water is where in terms of drinking water.
15              So we turned it back to you, Mike, and
16   said that we thought there was some information
17   that could be focused on -- and then try to work
18   with the agencies at DAS to come up with a
19   solution.  And the issues that we focused on --
20   and the water utilities were there -- were that
21   reservoirs are clearly identified.  Most of the
22   maps that we've ever seen by name, they're clearly
23   marked on the highway that there's a reservoir
24   there.  We know where the protected lands are,
25   Class I and Class II lands are, and so that issue


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 69


 1   seemed to be -- there's an area in that area that
 2   could be defined clearly and continued to be
 3   focused.
 4              We thought that the consumptions and
 5   the yields, consumptive uses were important.  The
 6   primary issue we need to know is how much water is
 7   coming out of here and generally where it's going.
 8   So the consumptive use might be an area where you
 9   could reach some kind of agreement and that the
10   issue of related -- the reservoirs consumptive
11   uses and maybe the interconnection with other
12   utilities.  So not -- we didn't actually know --
13   didn't need to know exactly where they were
14   connected, but it would be nice to know that MDC
15   is connected to Manchester and Cromwell in case of
16   emergency and stuff like that.  So it would be
17   nice if those things would be -- you don't need to
18   know where the pipes were, you just need to know
19   that there was an area where they could coexist.
20              And so there were some issues like that
21   which would lead to we didn't need to know about
22   what their treatment consisted of and what the
23   chemicals they use consisted of, you know, what
24   the peak concentrations were of chemicals, you
25   know, where the distribution system was, and a
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 1   variety of those things, what kind of storage
 2   tanks, but a lot of information is available from
 3   other places.  I mean, if you knew where fire
 4   hydrants are, they're clearly marked on the road,
 5   you know, Call Before you Dig will tell you where
 6   everything is.
 7              So there's some inconsistencies, but we
 8   felt that if we met with the water utilities and
 9   DAS and members of the planning council, we may be
10   able to isolate those issues which could be
11   protected, but I think all three have to be at the
12   table.  I think the water companies have to be
13   there, you know, the council has to be there and
14   the DAS.  And if it needs a legislative change, it
15   could be a simple change, you could get it fairly
16   rapidly, but perhaps not, but I mean, at least, if
17   you're focused on what is critical in making the
18   plan successful, there are not that many big
19   issues, and consumptive use is probably the most
20   important part of it.
21              So that was our information, and if the
22   Council doesn't want to do it, I'm sure the policy
23   committee would be happy to focus more attention
24   on that, but we thought it needed to have people
25   with titles.  And that's where we left that.  And
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 1   the utilities supported that.  So that was one of
 2   our policy recommendations.
 3              The other policy recommendation we had
 4   was that the -- these are in writing so they'll
 5   come out easier -- was that the registrations need
 6   to be identified.  The registrations were made in
 7   1982.  There has been no cleaning or culling of
 8   them ever since.  And we recommended that the DEEP
 9   write to the registrants asking them a few simple
10   questions focusing on do they still own it, is the
11   information still correct, do they still need the
12   water, or has something else happened in between,
13   are they willing to give up some of the uses that
14   they had or not.  But we wanted to make sure it
15   wasn't in a threatening way that said that, you
16   know, a farmer who's irrigating that he's not
17   going to answer the question.  It has to be in a
18   constructive way.
19              And then if we felt that there was no
20   answer and we needed more information, we need to
21   follow up with some kind of additional authority
22   to get what is registered.  That leaves a
23   little -- like Betsey gave us a report or a chart
24   of all the number of registrations and where they
25   were going to.  I mean, the power utilities took a
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 1   lot, but we all know who they are, and one of them
 2   is gone, but it's still listed as a registration.
 3              So that if there's an issue that that
 4   can be cleared up which would help focus in on how
 5   much water is where and how much is available or
 6   not available.  So that's something we recommend
 7   that DEEP follow through on and we gave them some
 8   suggestions.
 9              The third policy that we were
10   recommending and we discussed is that there be no
11   change in the policy to protect the water supply,
12   that Connecticut is unique in being able to have
13   no discharge of wastewater into the water supply
14   system and reaffirm that that should not be looked
15   at as a change in this plan.
16              We did talk about whether or not other
17   Class B waters or other waters could be used for
18   different purposes.  We haven't fully fleshed that
19   out yet, but there are other uses for grey water
20   and other uses for recycled water.  We haven't
21   gotten into that, but for potable water supply
22   there was consensus on the AA standard.
23              And we looked at recent events in South
24   Carolina and other places that flooded, and we
25   have the unique ability to keep that from
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 1   happening here.  That would be the policy of the
 2   state.  And also protection of the Class I and II
 3   waters, which also went along with that, so that
 4   the supplies be protected also from land uses.
 5              Those are the main policy ones.  We
 6   also discussed whether or not the plan should
 7   promote -- these are some of the plethora of
 8   policy questions that Virginia raised in her
 9   report.  We've only got time to talk about a few,
10   and that was should the water plan promote
11   conservation.  Our answer was yes, and other
12   answers that support policy.
13              But we also talked about leak
14   detection.  We haven't finalized that, but it's
15   something that we're looking at is how to deal
16   with leaks in utilities.  We're not ready to deal
17   with that, but that was one of the other ones that
18   we should look at.  We'll get into the details of
19   that.
20              We also talked a little bit about the
21   State Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and
22   suggested that a policy for replacement of
23   utilities be given greater priority or priority so
24   that the funds be focused on replacement of the
25   infrastructure that's necessary to maintain an
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 1   active water supply, which is more important in
 2   consideration of rising sea levels.  There's a lot
 3   of other issues that are related to using those
 4   funds for the enhancement, replacement of and
 5   protection of the utilities rather than expansion
 6   of -- so we think that should be one.  We have to
 7   talk about that further, but that was one of the
 8   early responses that we had.
 9              So that was basically the results of
10   our meeting so far.  At the next meeting we're
11   going to actually look at some ag uses and then
12   try to focus in on some of the needs that may be
13   changing over the changing agriculture uses in the
14   state and been employed, and some folks can talk
15   about that.
16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of work
17   there.  Thank you very much.  It's very very well
18   done.
19              Yes.
20              MARGARET MINER:  The question of
21   staying with the AA standard for drinking water,
22   we do support it.  It took some discussion some
23   years ago with our board to come to that decision.
24   It does involve sacrifice of our best upland
25   streams and aquifers.  If water supply is needed,
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 1   that's where the supply is sought.  I just -- we
 2   still support it, but I'm becoming a little
 3   anxious because of the stream classification
 4   process.  We have streams that are Class I and II,
 5   the highest ranking streams, cold water streams.
 6   And if a water company has sort of dibs on it, say
 7   they have future plans to develop that, that
 8   stream drops down and becomes a III, less
 9   protected.
10              And so I'm hoping that -- I do agree
11   that if companies have made a truly significant
12   investment on counting on supply that's needed,
13   that's one thing, but I am concerned that too many
14   of our high-quality upland waters have the utility
15   flag being put down on them and may be at risk in
16   the future.  And frankly, I don't think it helps
17   the utility that much either because once the
18   stream or that stream segment becomes a Class III,
19   other things can happen there that might not be
20   desirable for the utility.
21              So that's been a nagging question, and
22   I just wanted you to know that for us it isn't a
23   slam dunk.  We support the standard.  We think
24   it's important, but it comes at a price.
25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
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 1              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a question.
 2   So the policy group that I do sit on, one thing
 3   I'm a little curious about is how do we integrate
 4   the wastewater side of this equation?  I don't
 5   know enough to know if wastewater is conservation
 6   even a possibility.  Is that something that we
 7   could -- you know, is leak detection a possibility
 8   or a way to save water?  Are we as a policy, in
 9   addition to looking at funding for drinking water
10   SRF, going to look at the priorities for the clean
11   water SRF?  Are we going to think about how
12   similar to economic development being impacted by
13   the availability of potable water, it's also
14   impacted pretty heavily by the availability of
15   public wastewater systems?
16              So maybe that's going to be coming, you
17   know, sort of to that agriculture is going to be
18   another area of focus, maybe wastewater in terms
19   of interbasin transfers, what impact does it have
20   to inland water bodies, impact to harmful algal
21   blooms, pollutants in Long Island Sound, et
22   cetera, is that going to be covered in the future
23   policy work?
24              ROBERT MOORE:  Sure.  I mean, those are
25   great answers.  I think the questions, obviously
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 1   combined sewer overflows, infiltration, those are
 2   all things that impact the quality and also the
 3   quantity.  Some of our rivers, like the
 4   Quinnipiac, have been virtually allocated for, you
 5   know, most of its capacity for waste assimilation.
 6   That's a pretty unique situation for a river to be
 7   in is that, you know, its capacity for additional
 8   waste, it means that water would have to come -- I
 9   think there was a proposal in Meriden.  I think
10   the water -- the power plant would withdraw water
11   from the Connecticut River and put it in the
12   Quinnipiac and only because there's not enough
13   water in Connecticut to support our plan.
14              So there's going to be issues like
15   that, you know, where a river -- I think the Still
16   River in the Danbury area --
17              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.
18              ROBERT MOORE:  -- and a few of those
19   are in that same situation where most of the
20   capacity of the river, because of the assimilated
21   waste, has been allocated already.
22              So I think those are critical issues,
23   you know, in the future.
24              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.
25              GENE LIKENS:  I'll just speak loud.
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 1   This is a process question.  How will the
 2   subcommittee reports be used?  How will that be
 3   incorporated?  Is this information being passed
 4   along to the writers of the plan or what?  I
 5   didn't understand.
 6              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  That's how we
 7   envision it working, yes.  The input from the
 8   subcommittees, the workgroups, comes here, and
 9   then it gets incorporated ultimately when the
10   contractor is on board.
11              GENE LIKENS:  Incorporated directly, or
12   will there be further discussion, further
13   analysis?
14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  There will be more
15   discussion, I'm sure, I would think, at this
16   level.
17              GENE LIKENS:  And when will that occur?
18   This is a process --
19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  And it's a good
20   question.  For example, one of the things that
21   came out of the recommendation here today was that
22   something regarding the FOI will be a follow-up
23   with the Water Planning Council itself.  So once
24   we go through the minutes of this meeting and see
25   some of the recommendations that come out of the
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 1   report, we'll plan accordingly how we're going to
 2   follow up on that with the Water Planning Council.
 3   Maybe hopefully at that point we'll have some
 4   outside consultants.  And the whole thing is going
 5   to be -- anything that's going to the various
 6   committees is going to come back and be vetted by
 7   this group before it goes into a final version for
 8   the plan.
 9              GENE LIKENS:  Okay.
10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's a
11   very -- I mean, your question is a good one.
12   Obviously that report, a lot of work went into
13   that report, and we'll have a follow-up meeting on
14   how we're going to be utilizing that.  So I think
15   that's the beginning.  But again, the steering
16   committee is going to look at these topics, make
17   recommendations to the council, and then write a
18   report.
19              Any other questions or comments?
20              (No response.)
21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you
22   very much to your committee.
23              And Virginia.
24              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Before I start, the
25   invitation on the web was 1 to 2:30.  Is that what
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 1   we are planning for this meeting?
 2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  No.  How
 3   long do we have this room, Betsey?
 4              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Four.
 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what I
 6   thought.
 7              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Can I just say, it
 8   did say 1 to 3:30, so I have a 3 o'clock.
 9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, well --
10              Virginia, I hope you're not going to go
11   on for an hour and a half.
12              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  What I was going to
13   say is essentially everybody around the table have
14   at their seat a brief summary of what the Science
15   and Technical Committee has done and a draft of
16   where we are with the spreadsheet we're putting
17   together.  And it's relatively self-explanatory.
18   So I will very happily just pass on doing a
19   presentation here.
20              I do want to say with the spreadsheet
21   this is not the most recent version, but it is
22   fairly recent and only two pages -- only the first
23   couple of things indicate just so you can see what
24   the spreadsheet covered, and then from there on in
25   it's just categories of data that we have
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 1   generated through our brainstorming sessions.
 2              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  You have in "Do
 3   the data exist," you have "yes" and then you have
 4   slashes and sometimes there are spaces between
 5   "yes," and I just wasn't quite sure what that was
 6   meaning.
 7              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We had about eight
 8   different people providing information to this,
 9   and so all the different spreadsheets were merged,
10   and so each individual is separated by a slash.
11   So if they didn't respond, well, they didn't
12   respond, and they got a space.
13              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  That makes more
14   sense.  Thank you.
15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, what has
16   happened in our meetings is that we've gotten into
17   more philosophical and policy-type of discussions,
18   and that's the list on the front page that we
19   passed along to the policy committee.  I
20   referenced that a few minutes ago.  And then there
21   was a question raised whether that was
22   appropriately handled by the policy committee or
23   by this group.  And I don't know, I was not at the
24   meeting last week.  I don't know if you resolved
25   some of those.  But I would encourage the people
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 1   in the steering committee to be looking at some of
 2   those policy-type questions because it will inform
 3   how the final plan evolves.
 4              On a separate issue, sort of a link
 5   between the policy group and the science group,
 6   talking particularly about data being available,
 7   you may recall a couple of months ago this group
 8   enforced the grant application reviewing a project
 9   for the U.S. Geological Survey that included the
10   SSWUDS database and other pieces.  Without the
11   data to go into SSWUDS, it loses a lot of its
12   value.
13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Questions or
14   comments for Virginia?
15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We are open to
16   ideas, suggestions, more kinds of data, more
17   answers to filling in the spreadsheet.  As I said,
18   the spreadsheet would have been like 25 pages long
19   if I printed the whole thing out, but some of the
20   discussion we had, for instance, the second column
21   as to why is data needed, somebody said, well,
22   dah, but we -- and also if it exists, we don't
23   have to make a case for why it's needed.  But then
24   there was some discussion of the validity of
25   having it as an informative piece because many
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 1   folks around this table and in this room have
 2   different levels of expertise.  Somebody might not
 3   understand how a particular type of data is used.
 4   So that we decided to keep that in there for
 5   that -- to provide information to people who may
 6   not be familiar with that type of data.  But the
 7   primary reason for that column was if data did not
 8   exist, we would need to make a compelling case to
 9   create it.
10              And just to use a non-touchy example,
11   if we decided that information on groundwater
12   wells, location of groundwater wells, I'm talking
13   about not ones regulated by the Department of
14   Health, probably like domestic wells, and the
15   depth of those wells, if those data were
16   determined to be important for the plan, currently
17   they exist only in paper files.  And if there was
18   a good case why those were essential, then perhaps
19   money would be found to create a digital database
20   with that information rather than paper files.  We
21   would have to make a case before somebody would be
22   willing to expend those resources.
23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?
24              (No response.)
25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We have a
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 1   Statewide Water Plan website update.
 2              ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'll come up to the
 3   podium.  I'm Eric Lindquist from OPM.
 4              So following the previous steering
 5   committee meeting, the draft design for the new
 6   WPC web site was finalized and submitted to the
 7   Department of Administrative Services, DAS, a
 8   state agency that oversees all of the state's web
 9   sites.  DAS is currently in the process of
10   building out the web site now and integrating it
11   into the state's Enterprise infrastructure.  And
12   meanwhile, I am providing and developing content
13   for the pages for the site.
14              There's two pages actually from which
15   I'd like to coordinate with DEEP, DPH and PURA on
16   subject matter.  Those pages essentially give an
17   overview of how the water is managed in the state,
18   as well as our water resources that we have.  So
19   my goal for those two pages is to take what is a
20   large amount of complicated, complex information,
21   laws, regulations from the various agencies, DEEP,
22   PURA, DPH, and basically consolidate them into one
23   cohesive, concise, easy-to-understand format that
24   the general public can come to and easily sit down
25   in just a few minutes and get a good understanding
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 1   of how we currently manage water resources in the
 2   state.
 3              So essentially provide a resource to
 4   those that are coming into this with a fresh set
 5   of eyes that aren't aware of, you know, the things
 6   that we're aware of so that they can easily
 7   understand and jump in and have a resource they
 8   can use.  So just a heads-up that I'll be reaching
 9   out to those agencies in the coming days,
10   hopefully, to work with them on this.
11              I'm planning to have an initial draft
12   of the site launched before the end of the year.
13   So hopefully the next time we meet we can put it
14   up on the screen and go through it.  So all right.
15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Eric.
16   Eric is doing a great job, and we appreciate it.
17              The Other States on the agenda, the
18   Other States Work Group Report.  We're going to
19   have a little discussion about plans found to be
20   most useful for the creation of Connecticut's plan
21   and the aspects of individual plans that should be
22   utilized by the committee.
23              And I guess, Virginia and Bob, are you
24   looking at any of the other statewide plans?
25              ROBERT MOORE:  We looked at the table
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 1   of contents and thought it was really good at our
 2   meeting.
 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has anybody had
 4   an opportunity to look at --
 5              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Several people on
 6   the Science and Technical Work Group were part of
 7   the Other State Plan Work Group, and so amongst us
 8   we looked at many.
 9              Is there a specific target of your
10   question?
11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, it's on the
12   agenda.  I mean, not really.  I mean, it was on
13   the agenda.  A lot of work went into that.
14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  One of the things I
15   would like to stress about that -- and is Matt
16   still here?  Oh, there you are.  You might want to
17   jump in.  The focus of this group has been more on
18   that table of contents.  The Other States Group
19   got together and redid that update based on some
20   input that we got from the steering committee at
21   the workshop.  I want to emphasize that most of
22   the work that the Other States Committee did
23   was -- resulted in the whole document that was
24   sent out as an attachment to the invitation to
25   this meeting.  It was this one.  And this has a
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 1   very extensive table in it that I know, if I were
 2   one of you, I would get there and go, oh, my
 3   goodness, and sort of cover it that way.  I
 4   encourage you very strongly to look at that table.
 5   There is an incredible amount of information in
 6   there on how other states handle specific issues
 7   that we deem to be important for our process.
 8              The way that gets started is we came up
 9   with questions that we thought were germane to the
10   process and really important to address, and then
11   each of us, as we looked at other states' plans,
12   went through those questions and saw how other
13   states address those questions.  So it's an
14   incredibly valuable resource that so far has not
15   been the focus of the discussions here.
16              So you can't do it in two or three
17   minutes, as we're speaking here, but please do go
18   through it.  It may clarify a lot of the concerns
19   that we're running into, have run into, and will
20   run into during this process.  And then there are
21   links to more information on many, not all, but
22   many of those issues that if somebody really wants
23   to delve into it, you can do so.
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So perhaps
25   the steering committee will look at this for
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 1   future meetings and actually --
 2              Yes, Margaret.
 3              MARGARET MINER:  There's a lot of good
 4   information here.  David Radka at different
 5   meetings has mentioned that he particularly likes
 6   the Oregon plan.  And I asked why and had a quick
 7   look at it, and he said because they're starting
 8   off where we are data gathering and felt we were
 9   starting in the same place, and it was a very --
10   it was a science-based database plan.
11              So I wanted to mention there are a
12   couple of plans that David likes, particularly the
13   Oregon plan, and there's another in Nebraska that
14   he liked.  So I guess what I did is I looked at
15   the Oregon plan, and I looked at the Nebraska,
16   okay, what are the features here, and then looking
17   through the rest, okay, what do the other plans
18   do.
19              So I don't know who will get stuck with
20   the assignment from the agencies, but it really is
21   worthwhile looking through.  And I think some
22   people, like Virginia and others, if you have
23   questions, he really has looked at a few plans and
24   could give you a briefing on what's in them and
25   what their strengths and weaknesses are.
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 1              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I don't know if
 2   it's something that might be worth a presentation
 3   in a future meeting and kind of go through it, the
 4   highlights.
 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the next
 6   meeting that's what we'll do.  We'll start off
 7   with a presentation of that, which is a nice segue
 8   actually to the final items we discussed, perhaps
 9   doing Webinars of various topics of interest.
10              MARGARET MINER:  Yes, that is the
11   segue.  We were thinking that all of us have some
12   areas we know better than others, and then on some
13   of these specialty items, instead of having
14   general presentations, it might be good if someone
15   wants to know more about, say, registrations, what
16   the law has been, what the court interpretations
17   have been, there could be either a Webinar or a
18   small group meeting for people that might have a
19   special interest that want a little more in-depth
20   on a particular subject.  And that way -- well, we
21   just thought that would be a more efficient way of
22   members gathering information so we could move
23   forward more quickly.
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  So I
25   think that's what we'll do, we'll take that --
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 1   probably state water plans in terms of --
 2              MARGARET MINER:  That would be ideal.
 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what we'll
 4   do.
 5              Any other business to come before us?
 6              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may, it's very
 7   hard for each of us to focus on this when we're
 8   not actually in this room.  I would propose that
 9   we spend a few minutes gathering ideas of what
10   kinds of expertise we might want to focus on so
11   that we can actually start moving on that.
12              Sam, may I use you as an example?
13              SAM GOLD:  Sure.
14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For example, when
15   the science and technical group was talking about
16   that issue, why we need to use data, we
17   acknowledge that not everybody knows everything.
18   In that context Sam admitted that he doesn't know
19   that much hydrology.
20              And so in response to that, some of you
21   have seen the Water 101 presentation that I have
22   done.  I said, you know, would that help, that
23   kind of thing help.  And so that's one example of
24   something that we could do if we had a Webinar,
25   and anybody who wanted to know how groundwater and
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 1   surface water are interconnected and those types
 2   of things, could participate in it rather than
 3   taking the time of this group in one of these
 4   meetings where, you know what, quite a number of
 5   people do understand hydrology.
 6              So I think if we could gather now what
 7   expertise is available that will -- I just offered
 8   to do Water 101, but other people, not just in the
 9   steering committee, but in the room in general
10   could present, or what people would like to see,
11   and get more information on so that we can start
12   putting together a schedule of those things.
13              MARGARET MINER:  Beth Barton was
14   specifically mentioned at the meeting.  So because
15   she speaks up so much, we thought she would be an
16   ideal educator.
17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, for
18   example, Lori Mathieu said there's going to be a
19   cybersecurity seminar up in Massachusetts.  I
20   mean, we have to get the information out.  There's
21   a link to the presentation on our web site.
22              ROBERT MOORE:  I was involved in the
23   report with DEP on climate impacts, so I think
24   there is a report on climate impacts.  I don't
25   know if it was ever finished, but I was reviewing
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 1   it several years ago.  So maybe if there is a
 2   report on climate impacts that some of that be
 3   presented.  I think the report was done.  I
 4   reviewed part of it so --
 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
 6              ROBERT MOORE:  But that might be
 7   something where not a lot of us have any expertise
 8   or knowledge of what was in that report, but it
 9   might be something that's worth having a meeting
10   just to show what we know, what has already been
11   done on climate impacts.  It's destined to be one
12   of the more difficult things for us to deal with.
13              MS. WESTBROOK:  Related to the utility,
14   whether its operator status, that kind of stuff,
15   infrastructure challenges, those kind of things,
16   I'm sure there are a number of people in the
17   industry who can speak to any specific areas
18   relating to water utility operations, planning,
19   investments, that kind of stuff.  Maybe it's
20   something we can do at the next meeting, you know,
21   prior to the meeting, half hour prior to the
22   meeting people could meet as opposed to trying to
23   find a separate time, kind of add on to the
24   regular meeting.
25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So the


BCT Reporting LLC







Page 93


 1   idea is that we'll take some of these
 2   recommendations here and come up with Webinars or
 3   something as an extension so we don't take up a
 4   lot of these meetings.  We could go through a
 5   water rate case.  Maureen loves it.  They're a lot
 6   of fun.  So we might, for instance, go through and
 7   look at that process and see how to set rates.
 8              GENE LIKENS:  We might want to add to
 9   that emerging water quality issues.
10              MARGARET MINER:  Glenn Warner has
11   raised the question pretty often.  To what extent
12   is this water plan primarily very strongly
13   directed towards quantity and volume; and if we
14   want to consider quality, how deep do we want to
15   go into that?  Is the plan meant to do both, or is
16   that what we're prepared for?  I don't have an
17   answer, but I know he's raised that question a few
18   times.
19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think we have
20   some good recommendations.
21              Anything else?
22              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Did you
23   intentionally skip Item Number 6?
24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Item 6 was
25   correspondence -- I think that's more of a --
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 1   "Discussion of recent correspondence received by
 2   the Council."  I think that's the Water Planning
 3   Council, not this.  The only letters that -- we
 4   did receive a letter from Gene Likens, and we
 5   addressed that at the last meeting.  And we also
 6   received a letter from Connecticut Water Works
 7   Association relative to the Water Planning Council
 8   Advisory Group and what their role is.
 9              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And also the
10   approval process.  Didn't yours have the approval
11   process of the plan also?
12              BETSY GARA:  Yes.
13              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Was that directed at
14   the board or the steering committee?
15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think your
16   letter was addressed to the Water Planning
17   Council, wasn't it?
18              BETSY GARA:  Correct, yes.
19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of what
20   the role of the advisory group was relative to the
21   water plan.  And I think, as Maureen said, we do
22   have -- I think we have the structure, you know,
23   the way the structure is set up now, but I think
24   that the advisory group just wanted to know
25   exactly what their role was, and we were going to
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 1   talk more about that at the planning council.
 2              MARGARET MINER:  Just a heads-up, many
 3   people in the advisory group have been looking at
 4   the final approval process of the plan.  So that's
 5   just a heads-up.  Different people have been
 6   looking at a timeline, does it work, and some
 7   other aspects, and we will be bringing it to the
 8   Water Planning Council.  But the consensus of the
 9   group was that there's some problems with the
10   approval process.  It was done at the end of
11   everything else.
12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So that's
13   something we're going to make a recommendation.
14              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes, the advisory
15   group, we talked about it last time, and got a lot
16   of feedback, and Margaret and I will --
17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's hope we
18   have a plan to approve.  Let's spend more energy
19   to get the plan approved than how we're going to
20   get -- let's plan on spending more energy on the
21   plan than getting the plan approved.  I think
22   that's an important part of all this.  Let's focus
23   on the plan together, then we'll worry about, you
24   know, what you want before the committee.
25              So, I don't think we need to -- you
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 1   seem to be really nervous about it.
 2              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes.  When we talk
 3   about it with the advisory board --
 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  You know what, be
 5   careful what you wish for though.  Trust me on
 6   this.  Be careful what you wish for.  You don't
 7   need to open a whole can of worms.
 8              Okay.  Anything else to come before us?
 9              (No response.)
10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Don't we have
11   meetings throughout the year?
12              GAIL LUCCHINA:  No.  I was told that
13   there wasn't a date chosen.  Our hearing room will
14   be available at PURA.  Because I asked Tyra if we
15   already booked a date at PURA for January, and she
16   said no date was set in January.  So we are
17   looking to stay every other month.  We can
18   certainly do one --
19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
20              GAIL LUCCHINA:  -- the first Tuesday.
21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have
22   a meeting of the planning council.  I hope we have
23   another steering committee meeting before the end
24   of the year.
25              GAIL LUCCHINA:  So you'd like the next
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 1   steering committee meeting before the end of the
 2   year?
 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have
 4   a planning council and a steering committee
 5   meeting by the end of the year.  I think that's
 6   important because, God willing, we'll have
 7   NEIWPCC, we'll have a project manager, we'll have
 8   things to talk about, so we can have a --
 9              Okay?  Are we all set?
10              (No response.)
11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you
12   all very much.  Thank you to the people on the
13   phone.
14              Motion to adjourn.
15              GENE LIKENS:  So moved.
16              SAM GOLD:  Second.
17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those in
18   favor?
19              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
20              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very
21   much.
22              (Whereupon, the above proceedings were
23   adjourned at 3:01 p.m.)
24
25
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 1                  CERTIFICATE
 2
 3
 4        I hereby certify that the foregoing 98 pages
 5   are a complete and accurate computer-aided
 6   transcription of my original stenotype notes taken
 7   of the WATER PLANNING COUNCIL STEERING COMMITTEE
 8   MEETING, which was held before JOHN W. BETKOSKI,
 9   III, HEARING OFFICER; Chairman, Water Planning
10   Council; Vice Chairman, Public Utilities
11   Regulatory Authority, at the Department of Energy
12   and Environmental Protection, 79 Elm Street,
13   Hartford, Connecticut, on November 3, 2015.
14
15
16
17
18
19
20                  -----------------------------
21                  Lisa L. Warner, L.S.R. 061
22                  Court Reporter
23
24
25
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 1              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon,
  


 2   everyone, and welcome to the meeting of the State
  


 3   Water Planning Steering Committee.  My name is
  


 4   Jack Betkoski, Vice Chairman of the Public
  


 5   Utilities Regulatory Authority.  And I think we'll
  


 6   start by going around the table introducing
  


 7   ourselves.  And we have a small crowd, so we can
  


 8   introduce the audience as well.
  


 9              This is being transcribed, this
  


10   meeting, and Lisa, my good friend from PURA, is
  


11   here today to transcribe this.  So why don't we go
  


12   right to left.
  


13              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  David LeVasseur,
  


14   Office of Policy and Management.
  


15              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Mike Sullivan,
  


16   Deputy Commissioner of DEEP.
  


17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virginia de Lima,
  


18   Science and Technology Steering Committee.
  


19              ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with the
  


20   steering committee, and chair of the policy
  


21   subcommittee.
  


22              CHRIS CLARK:  Chris Clark, Mohegan
  


23   Tribal.
  


24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen Westbrook,
  


25   Connecticut Water, and cochair of the advisory
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 1   committee.
  


 2              MARGARET MINER:  Margaret Miner, Rivers
  


 3   Alliance of Connecticut, and cochair of the
  


 4   advisory committee.
  


 5              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  Susan Sayre,
  


 6   Assistant Professor of Economics, Smith College.
  


 7              ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord, Connecticut
  


 8   Association of Water Pollution Control Authority.
  


 9              SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, Lower Connecticut
  


10   River Council of Governments.
  


11              GENE LIKENS:  Gene Likens, aquatic
  


12   scientist.
  


13              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Elin Katz, Consumer
  


14   Counsel.
  


15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Hi, I'm Ellen
  


16   Blaschinski, Department of Public Health.
  


17              DAVID SUTHERLAND:  David Sutherland,
  


18   the Nature Conservancy.
  


19              TONY MITCHELL:  Tony Mitchell, Rivers
  


20   Alliance.
  


21              ROBERT YOUNG:  Bob Young, Middletown
  


22   Water and Sewer.
  


23              ROBERT WESNESKI:  Bob Wesneski from the
  


24   Avon Water Company.
  


25              MARTHA SMITH:  Martha Smith, West River
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 1   Watershed Coalition.
  


 2              THOMAS CALLAHAN:  Tom Callahan, UConn.
  


 3              CHERYL CHASE:  Cheryl Chase, DEEP.
  


 4              DENISE RUZICKA:  Denise Ruzicka, DEEP.
  


 5              BRUCE WITTCHEN:  Bruce Wittchen, DEEP.
  


 6              ERIC LINDQUIST:  Eric Lindquist, OPM.
  


 7              DAVID MURPHY:  David Murphy from Milone
  


 8   & MacBroom.
  


 9              DAVID RADKA:  David Radka, Connecticut
  


10   Water.
  


11              MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford, OPM.
  


12              CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne Fitting,
  


13   DEEP.
  


14              LORI MATHIEU:  Lori Mathieu, DPH.
  


15              GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina, PURA.
  


16              NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley, PURA.
  


17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon.
  


18   My goodness gracious.
  


19              Where's Joe McGee?
  


20              JOSEPH McGEE:  I'm here.
  


21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Hello
  


22   Joe.
  


23              JOSEPH McGEE:  I can hear you
  


24   perfectly.
  


25              JULIE ZIMMERMAN:  Julie Zimmerman from
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 1   Yale is on the phone too.
  


 2              JOHN RUDIAK:  And John Rudiak is here
  


 3   until Larry gets here about 2 p.m.
  


 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Very good.
  


 5              So we have a very lengthy agenda here
  


 6   today, so we're going to get right into it.  So
  


 7   we're going to start with Dave LeVasseur who has
  


 8   an update on the procurement process.
  


 9              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you, Jack.
  


10              As everyone remembers from our
  


11   September meeting, I sort of laid out what we were
  


12   going to be presenting here today.  And Matt
  


13   Pafford from my staff and the other members of the
  


14   Water Planning Council have done a great job
  


15   helping us put together the chart that I e-mailed
  


16   out to everybody last Friday, along with various
  


17   options.
  


18              And as I indicated in September, we
  


19   really see from a contractual standpoint there
  


20   being a need for three separate agreements.  One,
  


21   to continue the project management role that Tom
  


22   Callahan so wonderfully handled up until September
  


23   1st, and to actually help us select a contractor
  


24   who will actually write the plan and do oversight
  


25   of that entity or individual, and obviously
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 1   someone to direct the plan itself.
  


 2              My focus, quite frankly, of the last
  


 3   month was doing research on the oversight piece.
  


 4   And as everybody saw from the chart, we stumbled
  


 5   across the fact that we could actually use an MOU
  


 6   with NEIWPCC because they're considered to be a
  


 7   political entity, and therefore we can use an
  


 8   expedited process.  So my recommendation was for
  


 9   the piece of assisting us select a contractor and
  


10   contract oversight after the contractor is hired
  


11   to use NEIWPCC in that capacity.  So I brought
  


12   that to the group today for feedback.  I haven't
  


13   gotten any e-mail responses, so I'm hoping I'll
  


14   get some comments here today.
  


15              And I might as well hit number two as
  


16   well, which is the status of project management.
  


17   We still are up in the air and haven't heard a
  


18   decision from the university, so we really need to
  


19   start thinking about a plan B.  And I must confess
  


20   that I've had a hard time wrapping my arms around
  


21   that piece trying to find the right entity or
  


22   right individual to follow in Tom's footsteps.  So
  


23   I'm hoping for any suggestions for that as well.
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We haven't
  


25   received a statement with regard to that.
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 1              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, we have not.  I
  


 2   think we need to have a back-up plan just to be on
  


 3   the safe side so we're not scrambling around.
  


 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll open
  


 5   it up for discussion on both topics, one and two,
  


 6   relative to the procurement process and the
  


 7   project management process up for discussion.
  


 8              ROBERT MOORE:  I had a question.  On
  


 9   using NEIWPCC, you would contract directly with
  


10   them to do selection and oversight or just
  


11   selection?
  


12              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Selection and
  


13   oversight, and to actually help us in the
  


14   selection process.
  


15              ROBERT MOORE:  Would they then be
  


16   responsible for making all the payments and stuff
  


17   like that, or would that be -- would they have an
  


18   oversight fee on top of that or --
  


19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They would have a fee
  


20   that they would obviously be paid for providing
  


21   that service.
  


22              ROBERT MOORE:  And what would their
  


23   role be with the contractor, to do the planning?
  


24              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  To really do
  


25   day-to-day management and make sure they stay on
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 1   task and help us establish benchmarks and
  


 2   deliverables so that we can make sure that the
  


 3   contractor stays on task.
  


 4              ROBERT MOORE:  So that would be like
  


 5   instead of having an employee, you know, from OPM
  


 6   do it, they would be the contract manager?
  


 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.
  


 8              ROBERT MOORE:  And they would authorize
  


 9   payments and all that stuff?
  


10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They have to get
  


11   OPM's by law.  They have contractual authority on
  


12   behalf of the Water Planning Council in the Public
  


13   Act.
  


14              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would have the
  


15   ability to say, you know, payment is due, but they
  


16   wouldn't actually make the payment, the money
  


17   would flow from OPM to the contractor?
  


18              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, it would probably
  


19   go through NEIWPCC.
  


20              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would be
  


21   managing the plan.
  


22              And the other project manager that Tom
  


23   was filling, that's more to focus on keeping this
  


24   herd of people together?
  


25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And making sure
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 1   there's input and that everybody stays in
  


 2   communication and we stay on goal.
  


 3              ROBERT MOORE:  So that job would
  


 4   basically be to manage us?
  


 5              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.
  


 6              ROBERT MOORE:  And the other job would
  


 7   be to manage the person doing the work?
  


 8              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Correct.
  


 9              ROBERT MOORE:  I wasn't clear.
  


10              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And it's hard to
  


11   know which would be more difficult.
  


12              ROBERT MOORE:  To manage us might be
  


13   more difficult.
  


14              THE COURT REPORTER:  Everybody speak
  


15   up.  That would be great.
  


16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia.
  


17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Some of other states
  


18   who developed plans went with a single large
  


19   consulting firm who filled all those roles.  Was
  


20   that considered?
  


21              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It was.  Because, as
  


22   you saw from the research that we did, it was
  


23   tough to find a single source individual because
  


24   of the breakdown of the DAS.  The list for
  


25   contracts are very specific, and we really
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 1   couldn't find one that fit all the bill.  We
  


 2   thought about NEIWPCC filling all those roles.
  


 3   The only problem that I foresaw with that is with
  


 4   them being located in Massachusetts, I don't know
  


 5   how available they would be for us here in
  


 6   Connecticut.  It's one thing to manage the
  


 7   contractor because obviously there's a vested
  


 8   interest in getting paid there, but I was a little
  


 9   bit worried about their being located out of
  


10   state.
  


11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.
  


12              MARGARET MINER:  Do you have a draft or
  


13   sample MOU that we could have a look at?
  


14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I don't have one yet,
  


15   no.
  


16              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I guess we've
  


17   talked about this a number of times, and I think
  


18   the concept of the project manager perhaps being a
  


19   function of either NEIWPCC or the consultant
  


20   that's selected to the extent that we can minimize
  


21   the number of people who have roles here since we
  


22   already have multiple committees.  And it seems to
  


23   me that the fewer people we have leading it, the
  


24   more likely it is to have somebody responsible in
  


25   time to get it done.  But it could fulfill that
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 1   project manager role even from the other state to
  


 2   the extent there's so much more we do with
  


 3   electronic --
  


 4              JOSEPH McGEE:  This is Joe McGee.  I
  


 5   just lost the connection.  I can't hear the
  


 6   speaker.
  


 7              JOHN RUDIAK:  This is John Rudiak.  I
  


 8   can't hear anyone except Jack.
  


 9              (Pause.)
  


10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, can you hear
  


11   now?
  


12              JOSEPH McGEE:  Yes.
  


13              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We just need to
  


14   walk the microphone around as different people
  


15   talk apparently.
  


16              I had raised the question about whether
  


17   NEIWPCC might be able to fill that role or some
  


18   role with respect to project management, even with
  


19   being an out-of-state entity.  As we talked about
  


20   in the advisory group, our sense is we already
  


21   have multiple committees and multiple people
  


22   responsible at this level, and the more we can
  


23   consolidate the roles of those others that are
  


24   involved might be to our benefit to streamline
  


25   this and keep it moving.  So if there is an
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 1   opportunity to have them do that, I guess that
  


 2   would one of our observations.  And then I presume
  


 3   they will have to develop an RFP to the scope, but
  


 4   some RFP for a selection process.
  


 5              Will they do the selection, or how does
  


 6   that work?
  


 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The selection will be
  


 8   made by us.
  


 9              MARGARET MINER:  This is Margaret.
  


10   Just to the question of is there a sample model
  


11   MOU of this type available to see, and the answer
  


12   was not yet.
  


13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Maureen, to your
  


15   point, NEIWPCC has expressed a willingness to take
  


16   on that project management piece, so that's not
  


17   out of the realm of possibility.
  


18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I mean, time is
  


19   of essence here, so we're going to have to make
  


20   some decision in terms of how we are going to
  


21   proceed.
  


22              ROBERT MOORE:  There are other MOUs
  


23   with NEIWPCC that have been developed in the past.
  


24   So the other question, was there other MOUs that
  


25   have been developed with NEIWPCC for different
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 1   kinds of work?
  


 2              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Actually what's been
  


 3   used in the past at NEIWPCC was the PSA.  And it
  


 4   wasn't until I picked up the statute and actually
  


 5   read it that I found out they were a body politic
  


 6   and corporate.  And I ran it past our contracting
  


 7   and legal folks, and they suggested that, just as
  


 8   we did for the University of Connecticut, we can
  


 9   enter into an MOU since we're both a member of
  


10   NEIWPCC and they're statutorily created as a body
  


11   politic and corporate so --
  


12              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know who the person
  


13   would be, the prospective person to run this
  


14   project?
  


15              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  NEIWPCC hired a woman
  


16   named Jane Ceraso, I believe is her name, who has
  


17   an extensive background in water resource
  


18   management, over 20 years experience in
  


19   Massachusetts.  She's also an attorney and just
  


20   got hired by them, I believe, in August of this
  


21   year.
  


22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  She just started.
  


23              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know, is she
  


24   involved with policy development?
  


25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've actually talked
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 1   to her on the phone.  We spoke with NEIWPCC in our
  


 2   preliminary conversation.  So that was one of the
  


 3   other strengths, and that's why I sent out the
  


 4   e-mail that I sent on Friday that she has a very
  


 5   strong background in water, as opposed to
  


 6   wastewater, which is what NEIWPCC is primarily
  


 7   known for.
  


 8              CHRIS CLARK:  We didn't see any
  


 9   particulars but --
  


10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  DEEP and Public
  


11   Health utilize them, right?
  


12              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  We have.  So DPH
  


13   used the hard process of the PSA.  We're glad to
  


14   learn now that there's a different option for
  


15   contracting, but we use them to assist us in
  


16   development.  So in the Safe Drinking Water Act
  


17   there's also a lot of new regulations.  It just is
  


18   very labor intensive for our staff, and so we use
  


19   them to help us with legal services predominantly,
  


20   but DPH, like DEEP, has been a member of NEIWPCC
  


21   for many years.
  


22              I would agree that, you know, it seems
  


23   like a lot of their funding is directed a little
  


24   bit more on the wastewater side, but they have
  


25   been involved in drinking water and more broadly
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 1   just water issues.  Right now they have a Harmful
  


 2   Algal Bloom Workgroup that is all of the New
  


 3   England states working together to share science
  


 4   impacts, land use factors that can contribute to
  


 5   that.  So they have, I think, a breadth of
  


 6   knowledge of water policy and issues.
  


 7              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Betsey Wingfield.
  


 8   And we have done extensive work with NEIWPCC, both
  


 9   obviously in their capacity as sort of a policy
  


10   and opportunity for the state to get together, but
  


11   also contractual work.  We've done some
  


12   cooperative work with USGS and NEIWPCC.  We've
  


13   also done work with the Long Island Sound study
  


14   and NEIWPCC.  They're really good at figuring out
  


15   how to do contracting and how to manage projects
  


16   to move forward.  And typically I would say we do
  


17   one or two contracts a year.  Typically it has
  


18   been PSAs.  So we also evaluate the MOU option.
  


19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  Thank
  


20   you, Betsey.
  


21              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Just a cautionary
  


22   comment.  The state procurement and the federal is
  


23   very different.  USGS for years worked with them
  


24   under their, whatever term we're using, body
  


25   politic, whatever it was, and then our financial
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 1   folks discovered they were a nonprofit and they
  


 2   were no longer eligible for that kind of
  


 3   arrangement, USGS.  So just a cautionary comment.
  


 4   And the nonprofit status is on their web page.
  


 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
  


 6   comments?
  


 7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would like to
  


 8   approach NEIWPCC and flush out a version of their
  


 9   proposal for providing services and then bring it
  


10   to the Water Planning Council for formal vote,
  


11   probably do a special meeting since our next
  


12   meeting, I think, isn't until December 1st.  So
  


13   that would be my proposal on how to proceed.
  


14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just one further
  


15   question in terms of how do we deal with this in
  


16   the budget right now.  I mean, are we selecting
  


17   their services and then figure out what the budget
  


18   is for the consultant, or how does that work?
  


19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It's all going to
  


20   come out of same pot.
  


21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Okay.
  


22              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So we'll be -- I
  


23   imagine what we will do is back out whatever
  


24   agreement we come to for their services, and then
  


25   the remainder will be available for the
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 1   consultant.
  


 2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And then it gets to
  


 3   the question of relative time commitment or budget
  


 4   commitment for different aspects of the plan,
  


 5   what's the date of the policy and the application
  


 6   and all that stuff, how does that get determined,
  


 7   is that through scope of services, or is the
  


 8   planning council going to make that
  


 9   recommendation?  How do you envision that?
  


10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would envision that
  


11   the planning council will make the ultimate
  


12   determination, but obviously we will welcome any
  


13   input.
  


14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We're just
  


15   concerned that half a million dollars sounds like
  


16   a lot of money, but it's not going to go far.
  


17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we've got
  


18   to get started.
  


19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've got to get
  


20   started.
  


21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Yes.
  


22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's, quite
  


23   frankly, with the project manager it didn't cost
  


24   us a penny so far.  That was just -- I'm hoping,
  


25   still optimistic, that maybe some kind of
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 1   conclusive statement from UConn, but we've got to
  


 2   move ahead with this.  But the ideal would be that
  


 3   which doesn't cost us a penny.
  


 4              Okay.  Any other comments?  This is
  


 5   very important.  Any other comments or questions
  


 6   or concerns?
  


 7              And of course always feel free to
  


 8   e-mail after the meeting today and us know what
  


 9   you're thinking, but we're going to proceed with
  


10   this.
  


11              ROBERT MOORE:  Do you need a
  


12   recommendation from us to say move ahead?
  


13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes, that would
  


14   be very nice.
  


15              ROBERT MOORE:  I'll make a
  


16   recommendation that we move ahead on this.
  


17              GENE LIKENS:  Second.
  


18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion made and
  


19   seconded that we move ahead in exploring an MOU
  


20   with NEIWPCC.
  


21              Any questions?
  


22              All those in favor signify by saying
  


23   aye.
  


24              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
  


25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Opposed?
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 1              (No response.)
  


 2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion approved.
  


 3   Thank you very much.
  


 4              Lori, you're up.  We're going to have a
  


 5   little presentation on the WUCC update by the
  


 6   Department of Public Health.
  


 7              LORI MATHIEU:  I'm Lori Mathieu.  I'm
  


 8   the Section Chief of the drinking water section at
  


 9   the State Department of Public Health under the
  


10   Bureau of Regulatory Services.  My immediate boss
  


11   is Ellen Blaschinski.  The Commissioner is Dr.
  


12   Jewel Mullen.  She's been with us since 2011.
  


13              So I'm here today to talk about the
  


14   coordinated water supply planning law and WUCC
  


15   process.  And what I want to do though is take you
  


16   a little bit back in time and talk a little bit
  


17   about history of drinking water regulation in
  


18   Connecticut.  I think it's important to let you
  


19   know about some of the laws, the statutes, the
  


20   thought process, and where we are today in our
  


21   regulation and oversight at the state level.
  


22              What my department does for drinking
  


23   water and what the drinking water section is
  


24   responsible to do and what the coordinated water
  


25   system water supply process is under regulation
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 1   and statutes and the current status of what the
  


 2   future plan of development is to move forward.
  


 3              So some of the history.  Going way
  


 4   back, 1798, the second President of the United
  


 5   States, John Adams, developed the U.S. Public
  


 6   Health Service.  So the regulation and oversight
  


 7   of public health and water supply started that far
  


 8   back, but not until 1912 did they start issuing
  


 9   the advisories and public health advisory by the
  


10   Public Health Service, and that Public Health
  


11   Service oversaw drinking water regulation in the
  


12   United States until the U.S. EPA took it over in
  


13   1970.
  


14              The Connecticut Department of Public
  


15   Health started in the 1880s, and the very first
  


16   sign of the Department of Public Health being
  


17   involved in drinking water oversight is almost a
  


18   hundred years ago in 1917.  Our engineers were out
  


19   in the field looking at how many cows and sheep
  


20   and what have you in our drinking water supply
  


21   reservoirs.  So we have a hundred years of
  


22   regulatory oversight over the sanitary conditions
  


23   of our drinking water supplies.
  


24              U.S. EPA comes along in the early
  


25   1970s, produces the Safe Drinking Water Act in '74
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 1   and the amendments of '86 and '96, and then the
  


 2   Connecticut EPA received primacy of the Safe
  


 3   Drinking Water Act in '76, and ever since has
  


 4   adopted all of the amendments and the rules that
  


 5   have come along with that.
  


 6              So it was going on in the 19th century,
  


 7   but there was a significant public health issue
  


 8   going on.  If you consumed water, you had a pretty
  


 9   good chance of getting sick or dying from that
  


10   sickness.  There was prevalent gastrointestinal
  


11   infection, disease, typhoid, cholera, dysentery.
  


12   They were prevalent.  And microorganisms were not
  


13   understood in the 1800s.  In the beginning of the
  


14   20th century though filtration, technology,
  


15   disinfection, sanitary protections started to be
  


16   better understood.
  


17              And what were the needs at the time?  A
  


18   lot of industry, a lot of growth and production,
  


19   fire safety, a lot of growth in the cities.  Water
  


20   supplies were totally inadequate, unfiltered,
  


21   unprotected.  If anyone has seen the NBC
  


22   production about the history of their development,
  


23   they're used to the reservoir over here in the
  


24   middle of the city, and it was unsanitary and
  


25   unprotected.  People got sick from drinking.  No
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 1   treatment.  And in 1878 Connecticut State and
  


 2   public health oversight started, and that agency
  


 3   was created, and it exists today.
  


 4              So in the early 20th century because of
  


 5   the issues and the conditions that the public
  


 6   health agency was seeing, around 1904 or 1905,
  


 7   25-32 oversaw was created, oversaw the purity and
  


 8   adequacy to ensure, and gave the responsibility to
  


 9   the Department of Public Health to have oversight
  


10   and broad authority over public health and
  


11   drinking water supplies.  We oversee at that time
  


12   these laws came around in the early 1900s, 1910,
  


13   1920, gave the Department of Public Health
  


14   oversight of source approval, investigation,
  


15   pollution, threat of pollution, and other sanitary
  


16   conditions.
  


17              So fast forward about 50 or 60 years, a
  


18   number of significant laws passed in the seventies
  


19   and eighties which gave more responsibility to the
  


20   health department concerning water supply
  


21   planning, coordinating a water system planning
  


22   process we'll talk more about today, water company
  


23   land oversight, emergency response, and the
  


24   oversight of certified operators for water
  


25   systems.
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 1              So what does our section do?  The
  


 2   drinking water section under the Bureau of
  


 3   Regulatory Services, we are to protect public
  


 4   health.  We are responsible for the purity and
  


 5   adequacy oversight statewide of all public water
  


 6   systems.  The number one mission -- and a lot of
  


 7   our agencies are mandated to look at program
  


 8   measures and accountability, results-based
  


 9   accountability.  Ours is pretty simple, no
  


10   water-borne disease outbreaks.  We don't want
  


11   anyone getting sick and dying because of drinking
  


12   water in the State of Connecticut.  You might say,
  


13   well, that doesn't happen, no one dies from
  


14   drinking water in the State of Connecticut, do
  


15   they?  So we'll go a little bit over some of
  


16   what's going on across the country, which is quite
  


17   interesting these days.
  


18              So our responsibilities.  I gave a
  


19   presentation a couple of weeks back in Texas, and
  


20   I was at an Association of State Drinking Water
  


21   Administrators, so everyone like me across the
  


22   country gets together and we have a lot of
  


23   discussions.  And they say, "Well, Lori, how hard
  


24   is your job, you oversee two systems, three
  


25   systems maybe, you know, it's not that big, right,
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 1   the state is pretty small."  But we regulate --
  


 2   the drinking water section of the health
  


 3   department regulates over 2,500 public water
  


 4   systems.  And you might say why is that.  And we
  


 5   often question that too.  Why is that?
  


 6              So there's over 500 community systems.
  


 7   Of those 550 community systems, 332 of those are
  


 8   small that serve -- most of those 332 serve under
  


 9   100 people, and all of those 332 are not owned by
  


10   a bigger system like Connecticut Water or
  


11   Aquarion.  They're owned by who?  Well, the
  


12   homeowners' association, condominium association,
  


13   basically volunteers.  Yes, they have a certified
  


14   water operator who's a professional who runs the
  


15   system, but the responsible party, if we issue a
  


16   violation, goes to the owner, not the certified
  


17   operator.
  


18              There are over 2,000 noncommunity
  


19   systems.  What's a noncommunity system?  Well, my
  


20   town, I live in Coventry, there's 28 of them.
  


21   There's a CVS with a well.  There is a Dunkin'
  


22   Donuts with a well.  There is a Walgreens with a
  


23   well.  There's a Highland Park Market with a well.
  


24   Each one of those is a system, a noncommunity
  


25   system that the Department of Public Health
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 1   regulates and oversees.  There's 2,000 of them,
  


 2   and they grow every single day.
  


 3              There's over 150 reservoir systems,
  


 4   over 4,000 groundwater supplies, many of those
  


 5   small bedrock wells, under 10 gallons a minute.
  


 6   And we by far have the largest number of systems
  


 7   in New England, which is kind of funny.  We're
  


 8   considered a medium-sized state in the regulatory
  


 9   scheme of EPA, which is not good really.  We're a
  


10   small state.  We shouldn't be considered a
  


11   medium-sized state.
  


12              This shows in blue.  You can't really
  


13   see it that well, but it shows the water service
  


14   areas in the State of Connecticut that serve
  


15   public water.  And you can see that it follows the
  


16   main corridors, I-84, 91 and 95, but it's also
  


17   scattered about in the state.  It doesn't serve a
  


18   lot of obviously, you all know, rural parts of the
  


19   state.  We don't have public water distribution
  


20   everywhere.  And these are the sources.  And these
  


21   are the watersheds, the greens are the watersheds.
  


22              So we have sources scattered about.
  


23   The blues are the aqua protection areas that are
  


24   assigned and overseen by DEEP.  And the reds are
  


25   dots of wells, the protection areas for wells.  So
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 1   there's wells everywhere.  There's watersheds in
  


 2   many towns that affect about 80 or 90 towns,
  


 3   watershed lands.  So we have a lot of sources and
  


 4   a lot of systems spread out over our state.
  


 5              Most of our reservoirs look like this.
  


 6   This is a reservoir in the Town of Ledyard.  It's
  


 7   well protected.  You don't see anybody water
  


 8   skiing or swimming.  You don't see industrial
  


 9   discharges up above it.  You see a lot of land
  


10   protected.  You see a well-protected source.  Many
  


11   of our reservoirs aren't exactly like this, but
  


12   many of our small sources are like this.
  


13              This is a dug well with a cracked cap
  


14   right next to a stream.  So for our new engineers
  


15   we usually show this and say name the number of
  


16   violations.  There's about eight of them,
  


17   violations.  Many of these sources, those sources
  


18   that serve noncommunity systems, we tend to find
  


19   quite often have this situation.  It's a bad
  


20   situation.  Go back to the unsanitary conditions,
  


21   right.  And in this could be mice, rats, all kinds
  


22   of things that create unsanitary conditions and
  


23   poor public health policy.  We have to -- our
  


24   engineers get involved with looking at replacement
  


25   of these sources.  And believe me, if this serves
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 1   a business, this is not a good thing.  And we find
  


 2   this time and time again.  A business, a day care,
  


 3   this is a bad situation that exists across the
  


 4   state.
  


 5              So the drinking water section has two
  


 6   primary roles.  The primacy of the Safe Drinking
  


 7   Water Act.  We have a whole host of state
  


 8   statutory oversight, which I went over before,
  


 9   most of which came from 100 years ago.  So in our
  


10   primacy our engineers, about 30 of them, go out
  


11   and review every system on a three to five-year
  


12   basis.  We also oversee treatment and source
  


13   review and approval.  We oversee a Drinking Water
  


14   State Revolving Loan Fund program that we work
  


15   with the DEEP, our sister agency, on under the
  


16   Clean Water Fund.  We've been able to loan over I
  


17   think on average over the last three years about
  


18   $30 million a year to our public water systems
  


19   statewide to help on infrastructure replacements.
  


20              We oversee drinking water quality, and
  


21   over a half a million water quality samples come
  


22   into our office every year, we have oversight of
  


23   that.  And obviously we have a huge enforcement
  


24   component making sure the systems do what they're
  


25   supposed to do, as well as operators.  Recently
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 1   we've adopted the Groundwater Rule and are working
  


 2   toward adopting the revised Total Coliform Rule,
  


 3   which those two rules really will change the way
  


 4   public water systems are overseen and have been
  


 5   overseen since the seventies.  These are really
  


 6   changing the game for these systems and putting a
  


 7   lot more pressure on those small systems because
  


 8   they have to do things differently and are going
  


 9   to have to spend probably a lot more money to get
  


10   their system into compliance.
  


11              We have a lot of state statutory
  


12   oversight in water company-owned lands.  A hundred
  


13   thousand acres of water company lands are
  


14   regulated.  Water companies can't just sell or
  


15   change the use of that property without a permit
  


16   from the commissioner of DPH.  We oversee
  


17   recreational permitting over that land, sale of
  


18   excess water permits, certified operators, and we
  


19   also oversee plans, individual plans and regional
  


20   plan.
  


21              Now I put this slide in here just for
  


22   interest because it brings you back to a lot
  


23   people say, well, it's just another utility.  But
  


24   it's the only utility that you consume, and people
  


25   can get sick.  So actually my slide is wrong.
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 1   Legionella is number one, is the number one cause
  


 2   across the country of drinking water outbreaks,
  


 3   waterborne disease outbreaks.  In New York City
  


 4   there were 11 deaths attributed to drinking water
  


 5   and Legionella outbreaks, 11.  In Pennsylvania
  


 6   there have been in the last three years 12 deaths
  


 7   due to Legionella in public drinking water.  In
  


 8   the VA Hospital across the country, across the
  


 9   country, 13 deaths due to Legionella.
  


10              Now I'll just leave you with this
  


11   question.  Ebola.  How many people in the United
  


12   States died from Ebola?  I think one.  I think
  


13   one.
  


14              So Legionella is an up-and-coming issue
  


15   within drinking water.  EPA just issued a
  


16   technical guidance.  It's a difficult thing to get
  


17   your hands around.  It's not simple, easy, throw
  


18   more chlorine in the water and we're done with it.
  


19   So there's still ongoing waterborne disease
  


20   outbreaks, there's still issues to deal with, and
  


21   it's a real serious issue which has come into
  


22   Connecticut, and we're even talking about it with
  


23   the water commissioner with Legionella, in
  


24   particular.
  


25              So what's important?  Well, obviously
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 1   to many communities to have an abundant source of
  


 2   water supply means a lot to them.  It really does
  


 3   mean preservation of the public trust because as
  


 4   soon as a business has an E. coli and they have to
  


 5   post "do not drink the water" and they have to
  


 6   throw out their food and they have to throw out
  


 7   their ice, and they have to close down for three
  


 8   or four days to clean out the whole system, the
  


 9   public trust starts to get lost, the chief-elected
  


10   officials, the townspeople, the town councils,
  


11   they start to get concerned.  And ensuring
  


12   sanitary conditions for many facilities such as
  


13   schools, nursing homes, restaurants, hospitals,
  


14   day cares, those are so important to people when
  


15   you think about it.  If something goes wrong in a
  


16   school, there's a real problem.  And we've had
  


17   some situations lately with some waterborne
  


18   disease issues in schools.  It's been interesting.
  


19   There's a lot of interesting stuff going on, and
  


20   people are concerned, specifically what's gone on
  


21   in New York City lately.
  


22              So it's the public trust.  And
  


23   obviously economic growth, but in our world we
  


24   think it's priceless.  We have good sanitary
  


25   conditions and well-protected sources and abundant
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 1   sources so that you can serve who you need to
  


 2   serve in your town.  We think it's priceless.
  


 3              So what's the process that we're
  


 4   talking about today, the planning process,
  


 5   coordinated water system planning process?  We'll
  


 6   go through the statutes.  And it's a legal
  


 7   process.  Why does it exist?  Where did it come
  


 8   from?  What's going on?  What's the present
  


 9   status?  And what's the future of the process?
  


10   And how are we going to accomplish the mission
  


11   that was set about 30 years ago in the
  


12   legislature?
  


13              Well, the coordinated water system
  


14   plan, which is for water supply, came about
  


15   because of the 1981/1982 drought.  Now people in
  


16   the room, Denise Ruzicka, I don't know if you were
  


17   hired yet at DPH, but the laws that came out of
  


18   that drought were significant and changed the
  


19   course of many different things that went on.
  


20   There was a water research task force.  I think
  


21   all of you on the committee here have a copy
  


22   somewhere of that report that came out at that
  


23   time.  If you have the time, you should read that
  


24   report.  It's very interesting what was going on
  


25   at the time and the thought process of why we
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 1   needed to create a whole series of new law because
  


 2   of this scare.  There were literally days of water
  


 3   left I think in Greenwich.  Maybe Bob, you might
  


 4   know a lot more about this than I do.  So there
  


 5   were days -- and people were afraid they were
  


 6   going to run out of water.  They couldn't get
  


 7   enough water if people needed it.
  


 8              So the report in many parts created a
  


 9   whole series of laws.  And the laws we're going to
  


10   focus in on today will be the planning laws, the
  


11   individual water supply planning laws, as well as
  


12   the regional planning laws known as the WUCC
  


13   process.
  


14              So there are statutes and there are
  


15   regulations, and there's a legislative intent
  


16   right in the statute which you don't see anymore.
  


17   You don't see that.  They don't do that anymore.
  


18   But to me 25-33c says it all about what is the
  


19   need for the WUCC process and that DPH shall
  


20   administer the process to coordinate the plan.
  


21              Here are all the statutes, so it's not
  


22   just one little statute, it's many statutes.  A
  


23   complicated process was set out.  Denise Ruzicka
  


24   and Anne Gobin, in my understanding, went over to
  


25   the State of Washington in the mid-eighties to go
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 1   study their process, and maybe Maureen Westbrook.
  


 2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  (Shaking head in
  


 3   the negative.)
  


 4              LORI MATHIEU:  You didn't go to
  


 5   Washington?  But Maureen did work for the Health
  


 6   Department in the eighties.
  


 7              So that process was brought over from
  


 8   the State of Washington and took what is known as
  


 9   the WUCC process which puts together a series of
  


10   essentially four plans -- actually three, three
  


11   major pieces:  An assessment of water supply on a
  


12   regional basis; an exclusive service area
  


13   document; and then what's known as an integrated
  


14   report or a coordinated water system plan.  And it
  


15   brings it all together.  Think of the WUCC plan as
  


16   a 50-year water supply plan for the entire state.
  


17   It coordinates water system planning so that our
  


18   water systems are not trying to serve the same
  


19   area with different water systems, they're not
  


20   competing with one another because that's
  


21   uncoordinated and a waste of time and money, and
  


22   that there's consistency among plans so that
  


23   municipalities and anyone who would like to know
  


24   would know who's going to serve where and when and
  


25   who has the capacity to do that.
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 1              So the regulations, this whole series
  


 2   of regulations that go along with this, talks
  


 3   about all it sets out, the whole set of
  


 4   responsibilities of the WUCC.  It sets out the
  


 5   pieces of each one of plan -- assessment and
  


 6   boundaries and report summary.  There's
  


 7   regulations that require pieces to be part of
  


 8   those plans, and it talks about preparation,
  


 9   submission, approval.  So every part of the
  


10   planning process is either in statute or
  


11   regulation.
  


12              So what have we done over the years?
  


13   Well, in '86, '87, '88, we started, we came up
  


14   with seven areas, seven regions.  We started with
  


15   the Housatonic and moved to the upper Connecticut
  


16   River, South Central and the Southeast.  We've
  


17   created four plans under those statutes and
  


18   regulations.  Only one of them is approved, and
  


19   that's the Southeast.  These were convened in the
  


20   eighties, but the Northeast, the Northwest Hills
  


21   and the Southwest were never convened.  So today
  


22   there are plans, regional plans that exist for
  


23   these four areas, but not for the Northeast,
  


24   Northwest Hills, and Southwest.
  


25              So the idea has always been over the
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 1   last many years for the Health Department to move
  


 2   forward and to try to finish this process
  


 3   statewide and get these other plans up to date.
  


 4   So these just break out when these were convened
  


 5   and when the plans were approved.
  


 6              So what have we done recently?  So in
  


 7   2014 we filed our statute, which guides us through
  


 8   the process of revising the boundaries to kind of
  


 9   get an updated boundary and try to reduce the
  


10   amount of areas that we were dealing with.
  


11   Instead of seven, there should be something more
  


12   like four or three or two maybe.
  


13              So we took in a lot of comments.  We've
  


14   reviewed all those comments.  We followed the law.
  


15   The law breaks out eight factors that we actually
  


16   have to consider in looking at the boundaries.
  


17   And we wanted to assure a couple of things:  One,
  


18   we didn't want to cut a town in half; and two, we
  


19   wanted to follow the new boundaries of the council
  


20   of governments that were just being set through
  


21   this process; and third, we thought it would --
  


22   well, third and fourth.  Third was really
  


23   important with the watershed.  We heard a lot of
  


24   comments from the environmental groups.  We said,
  


25   look, try to follow the major drainage basin
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 1   boundaries.  And fourth, there's a requirement to
  


 2   look at carefully not splitting a water system in
  


 3   half, to keep your water system whole, along with
  


 4   the sources.
  


 5              And so putting all those factors
  


 6   together, we produced a report for Commissioner
  


 7   Mullen in October of last year, and we came up --
  


 8   and these are the eight factors under the statute
  


 9   that we are required to review.  And the map that
  


10   I handed out shows these boundaries.  These are
  


11   the three new WUCC areas, and they do not break up
  


12   the council of government of any towns.  They try
  


13   really hard to follow the major drainage basins,
  


14   and we try really hard not to break up water
  


15   systems, but we did, and we couldn't avoid it.
  


16   And we couldn't avoid not strictly following the
  


17   major drainage with these boundaries, but we tried
  


18   as best as we could.
  


19              So the WUCCs, why are they important?
  


20   A lot of people ask me why even bother, you know,
  


21   why even bother with this effort.  Because it
  


22   really on a regional basis water utilities need to
  


23   come together to talk with the towns, the town
  


24   planners.  It really drives that to meet with the
  


25   council of governments to get the council of
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 1   government staff directly involved in the water
  


 2   supply planning and regional planning and needs of
  


 3   their towns and their council government areas.
  


 4   It brings together issues that local health
  


 5   directors bring more attention about pollution of
  


 6   private wells.  It brings in the town planners
  


 7   when they're thinking about where they're going to
  


 8   move water or where they think they have enough
  


 9   water.  A lot of times in towns they will make
  


10   decisions without having a clue as to is there
  


11   enough water supply to serve the subdivision or
  


12   not.  There are assumptions that are made all the
  


13   time in local decisions.
  


14              So it really needs to also highlight to
  


15   bring forward what are the needs of the state,
  


16   what are the needs of the region, are there
  


17   priority areas that need attention immediately
  


18   because there's a public health issue.  And it's
  


19   also a forum in the meetings that are held between
  


20   the members, the members of the public water
  


21   systems and the council of government and
  


22   executive directors, to resolve issues locally,
  


23   not by the state agencies.  The state agencies are
  


24   not members.  Ourselves, OPM, DEEP and PURA, we're
  


25   kind of on the outside looking in on this process.
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 1   We don't drive this process.  The members do, the
  


 2   public water systems and the council of
  


 3   governments do.  So it's a guide for system
  


 4   growth, it's a guide to coordinate individual
  


 5   plans, and also to look at areas of exclusive
  


 6   water service.
  


 7              So moving forward what are we doing?
  


 8   We've been gathering information, working with a
  


 9   consulting firm, Milone & MacBroom, over the last
  


10   couple of months.  We've held three -- in
  


11   September we held three informational meetings in
  


12   the three new WUCC areas.  We would like -- and
  


13   we've been developing standard procedures under
  


14   the regulatory requirements and been working to
  


15   move those out and get people thinking about
  


16   setting up standard process and how to vote or not
  


17   vote or how to proceed under the meeting
  


18   structure.  And our plan is early '16 for DPH to
  


19   hire a consultant to assist the three WUCCs to
  


20   move forward and produce the plan for each one of
  


21   the three areas.  So we plan to convene under our
  


22   commissioner's authority to convene the three
  


23   WUCCs in early 2016.
  


24              So again, the WUCCs will tell you a
  


25   number of things.  You will know what are the
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 1   water supply needs and where is the excess
  


 2   capacity or who thinks they have excess capacity.
  


 3   We would have a plan to meet future water supply
  


 4   needs.  We include all partners and stakeholders
  


 5   in the public meetings that are held.  We're going
  


 6   to focus on -- and this is something that I know
  


 7   we talked -- our agency, as well as DEEP, we
  


 8   talked a lot about water conservation and the need
  


 9   to get really serious about water conservation.
  


10   Instead of using our precious water that we
  


11   protect so well with our sources just for
  


12   irrigation, there needs to be a time where we're
  


13   thinking differently, as well as emergency
  


14   preparedness has changed dramatically just over
  


15   the last five years and the need to be more
  


16   prepared than we've ever been before.
  


17              We want a complete statewide whole
  


18   plan, and we want to make it a dynamic plan and an
  


19   implementable plan, not something that's going to
  


20   sit on the shelf and collect dust.  So there's
  


21   been a lot of interest in what the data collection
  


22   contract has been and what we've been doing in the
  


23   last few months with help from Milone & MacBroom.
  


24   Dave Murphy is here today.  Milone & MacBroom has
  


25   been collecting and organizing data that will be
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 1   utilized -- that will be part of the WUCC process,
  


 2   part of the WUCC plan.  And their work will be
  


 3   done by the end of the year, collecting and
  


 4   organizing information, and we're going to be
  


 5   tying it to GIS information trying to make
  


 6   everything digital, unlike what we did 20 or 30
  


 7   years ago.
  


 8              So these are the pieces of information
  


 9   that are getting collected.  I know there's some
  


10   interest in this as well, so I have a few slides
  


11   that goes from -- and it's everything that needs
  


12   to be pulled together, basic level of information
  


13   that's going to be used to put together the plan.
  


14   So all of these pieces of information are getting
  


15   collected and organized so that we're ready to go
  


16   at the beginning of 2016, as well as all this,
  


17   safe yield, purchased water, growth trends.  A lot
  


18   of this information is coming out of individual
  


19   water supply plans from the utilities from the
  


20   Department of Public Health record.
  


21              So here's my schematic of what I think
  


22   about because I get a lot of questions about,
  


23   well, the WUCC is the water plan and water plan is
  


24   the WUCC.  No, it really isn't.  It really isn't
  


25   because the WUCC is just one small piece of what
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 1   the state water plan is set up to do.  The
  


 2   legislation is pretty clear.  You have 17 items to
  


 3   consider.  The WUCC is just one input of that
  


 4   talking about water supply needs and public health
  


 5   needs for water supply.  That's all it is.  And
  


 6   people ask me, well, it's going to do this, it's
  


 7   going to do that, it's terrible, it's this, it's
  


 8   that, it's the Darth Vader of water, you know,
  


 9   it's terrible.  And I say, you know what, all it
  


10   is is a plan.  It's a plan.  It's a plan that 30
  


11   years ago we thought was so important to get done.
  


12   We didn't get it done.  The shame of it is it
  


13   didn't get done years ago, but our mission is to
  


14   finish the process.  The planning process takes
  


15   two years.  And once we convene we have two years
  


16   to finish the plans.  So we believe that, you
  


17   know, by end of the year '18 we'll have all of
  


18   these plans complete.  By the year '19 we'll have
  


19   one plan that we can hand to anybody to talk about
  


20   water supply needs, either regionally or locally
  


21   or statewide.
  


22              So thank you.  And thank you for your
  


23   time listening to me.  I appreciate it.
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very
  


25   much, Lori.  Excellent presentation.  You really
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 1   gave a great history of the water issues you've
  


 2   had in the state.
  


 3              So I'll open it up for any questions or
  


 4   anything you might have for Lori.
  


 5              ROBERT MOORE:  Lori, the WUCC is going
  


 6   to be faced with the same issues that we have in
  


 7   this plan.  A lot of the information that was in
  


 8   the WUCC is going to be redacted from the plan.
  


 9   How are you going to handle that?
  


10              This is Maureen's question but --
  


11              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I know.
  


12              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's an
  


13   interesting question because we've been at the
  


14   forefront --
  


15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  I think you have to
  


16   go to the podium.
  


17              LORI MATHIEU:  Okay.  FOI is an
  


18   interesting question.  We've been dealing with it
  


19   since the FOI law passed in 2003.  To be honest
  


20   with you, we didn't really understand the full
  


21   benefit of when it passed.  It passed under an
  


22   implementer bill, from what I remember.  It did
  


23   not have a public hearing.  And no one had a
  


24   chance to comment on it.  If we did, and we had a
  


25   chance as agencies to study it, I don't think it
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 1   would have passed in the way it's passed today.
  


 2              When you read it, it says, you know --
  


 3   I had my folder.  Anyway, it's over there.  But it
  


 4   says -- you know, it gives some very specific
  


 5   potability assessments, emergency plans, you know,
  


 6   all these other things, very specific items.  And
  


 7   then it says and portions of water supply plans
  


 8   that may present a risk, bla, bla, bla, bla, bla,
  


 9   and there's a couple other fuzzy phrases there
  


10   that put in a lot of -- they're not objective;
  


11   they're very subjective.
  


12              So it brings up, you know, a lot of
  


13   judgment.  So when we get an FOI request, like the
  


14   request we got from Margaret for all four of the
  


15   plans, the latest one was for Margaret, so we said
  


16   let's go through the process.  The process is we
  


17   go to the Department of Administrative Services
  


18   for a security risk review, and specifically Jeff
  


19   Beckham, who's their lead counsel, spends his
  


20   time, along with the head of security for
  


21   buildings, Ray Philbrick, spends his time working
  


22   with us.  We work on the redactions with them, and
  


23   it takes an awful lot of time.  There's a lot of
  


24   judgment call.  And frankly having been a
  


25   conservative, I would say yes because of the
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 1   judgment call involved.  It's a serious issue,
  


 2   even today, security risk, a serious issue.  Just
  


 3   ask anybody who's involved with it.
  


 4              I understand Art House was talking
  


 5   about cybersecurity.  It's still today a risk.  I
  


 6   still see the security reviews that come across my
  


 7   desk.  There still are threats, people looking to
  


 8   gather information to do harm to public water
  


 9   systems.  So it really is still a threat, but I
  


10   think the law needs to change, if you ask me.  And
  


11   you did, you asked me, so I'm going to -- I think
  


12   the law needs to change.  I will get -- Ellen and
  


13   I were talking.  We talk a lot about it.  One of
  


14   the things we talked about recently was the amount
  


15   of time my staff took to redact those WUCC plans,
  


16   over 30 hours of my staff's time.  And you can't
  


17   give that to an intern, you have to give it to a
  


18   person who has experience in doing the redactions.
  


19   We gave it to a person who was at a lower pay, and
  


20   he looked at it and he did, he gave it to his
  


21   supervisor, and the supervisor totally redid it,
  


22   80 percent different from the intern to the
  


23   supervisor.
  


24              So to me it shows the law isn't very
  


25   clear, it doesn't work very well, the process is
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 1   lengthy, and anybody who deals with FOI as a state
  


 2   agency or a local agency knows that you have to be
  


 3   responsive or people get upset at you.
  


 4              Right, Margaret?  You know.
  


 5              MARGARET MINER:  I'm a very calm
  


 6   person.
  


 7              LORI MATHIEU:  And we've heard you over
  


 8   the years.  And frankly you and I talked about
  


 9   this.  It's such a frustrating process because
  


10   you, under FOI, should be able to share
  


11   information that you want to share and be clear
  


12   about it, and we can't do that because it's such a
  


13   very subjective process under the statute.  And
  


14   frankly I think the statute needs to change.  So
  


15   that's just my editorial.
  


16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Stay there, Lori,
  


17   in case there's any --
  


18              Yes, Margaret.
  


19              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Thank you, Lori,
  


20   for that.  If anybody wants to see, I mean, the
  


21   latest plans I asked for are the ones that have
  


22   been public for, you know, until recently for ten
  


23   years, eight years.  You can go to the web site
  


24   and look at the plans, and you'll see the blacked
  


25   out sections where data is.  And sometimes I don't







50


  
 1   know what there is under it.  It's like a whole
  


 2   half page marked up.  I'm assuming it's something
  


 3   critical.  But you can see for yourselves what
  


 4   those plans look like.  So yes, I've been hesitant
  


 5   to create more that's just going to be redacted.
  


 6              Two questions:  At one of the
  


 7   presentations you did, Lori, Mary Mushinsky stood
  


 8   up, Representative Mary Mushinsky, and said the
  


 9   WUCC plan should be coordinated or integrated with
  


10   the water planning, the comprehensive water
  


11   planning.  I understand your reasons saying no,
  


12   but there is really a large overlap in the data
  


13   that's needed and the planning that's needed to be
  


14   done because in the WUCC statute there was no --
  


15   there was very little comprehensive water
  


16   planning.  And so the requirement is to do
  


17   assessments of regional environmental assets, as
  


18   well as water supply planning.
  


19              So I do feel the plans overlap and that
  


20   your arrows that you showed, you know, WUCCs will
  


21   just be one source of information in forming the
  


22   comprehensive plan.  It's not just a little arrow
  


23   among many, it is a big part.  It should have a
  


24   big arrow.  And, you know, that sometimes we feel
  


25   like you'll do the water supply planning, and







51


  
 1   we'll get what's left after you all do your water
  


 2   supply planning.  I know that's simplistic.
  


 3              The other problem that I've seen over
  


 4   the years is that it's really an exclusionary
  


 5   process with very vague governing guidelines or
  


 6   criteria.  And most WUCC meetings, I don't know
  


 7   how many members have even been notified, they may
  


 8   have been notified or some.  I don't think people
  


 9   know how to notify them.  The customers are not at
  


10   the table.  Really the main purpose of the WUCCs,
  


11   as I understand it, is to set up exclusive service
  


12   areas.  And I have some questions about their
  


13   enforceability, how that's done.  But in general
  


14   it sets up exclusive service areas for water
  


15   supply throughout the state so there's not a
  


16   competition, there is organization.  I would think
  


17   it would be very important to have the customers
  


18   represented.  Customers who are familiar with
  


19   water companies may have feelings about one more
  


20   than the other or experience.
  


21              So that's -- and of course
  


22   environmental.  You say we can come to the
  


23   meeting, customers can come to the meeting, but as
  


24   far as I know there's no significant input.  As it
  


25   happens, you and many people at DPH are very
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 1   responsive, but officially and formally we can get
  


 2   up and say something but nobody needs to pay
  


 3   attention to it.  So the exclusionary, the
  


 4   exclusionary aspect, the overlap with water
  


 5   planning, why should we be putting energy into two
  


 6   separate roads, and then of course, but I don't
  


 7   have to say another word about FOI.
  


 8              So I am worried about the WUCC process.
  


 9   Also, I think it's very hard to follow the
  


10   statute.  I have no -- the statute has multiple
  


11   layers of hearings, approvals, new hearings, back
  


12   and forth, but I guess that will be your problem
  


13   to worry about.
  


14              LORI MATHIEU:  If you want to see
  


15   layers, look at the Groundwater Rule.  These laws
  


16   are nothing compared to Federal Law and then the
  


17   laws that these water systems are going to have to
  


18   deal with.  So this is where we disagree.  I don't
  


19   know if you had a question in there.  Most of that
  


20   was statements but --
  


21              MARGARET MINER:  I did want to make the
  


22   points I made.  You have answered one of my
  


23   questions on FOI in a very nice way, so perhaps
  


24   you have other answers.
  


25              LORI MATHIEU:  So the exclusionary
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 1   part, I don't think it's exclusionary at all.  As
  


 2   a matter of fact, they're public meetings
  


 3   published under the Secretary of State and
  


 4   published with the town clerks right now which is
  


 5   a wonderful process.  They actually put it up on
  


 6   line.  So these are publicized meetings open to
  


 7   the public, and we've never excluded anyone from
  


 8   coming, ever.  As contentious as the Southeast
  


 9   area was, we've never stopped anyone from coming
  


10   to those meeting, ever.
  


11              So it's a wide-open process and
  


12   everyone is allowed to come and speak, set as an
  


13   agenda, and there's open forum for people to come
  


14   and speak.  And over the years there's been many
  


15   people that have come and have put their items on
  


16   the table that are not members that have been a
  


17   big part, including the Farmington River Watershed
  


18   Association in the eighties had an extra report
  


19   completed.  Denise might remember more of this,
  


20   and Jim Connelly and Gary Johnson were a part of
  


21   this, spent a year-long process working on an
  


22   extra report as part of the WUCC to address the
  


23   concerns that were brought forward at the time
  


24   between the MDC and the Farmington River Watershed
  


25   Association.
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 1              So the WUCC does listen.  So that's
  


 2   what I say about that.  It is not exclusionary at
  


 3   all.  And the members are the public water
  


 4   systems, as well as the council of governments.
  


 5   And I think the council of government membership
  


 6   brings a lot to the table as far as bringing in
  


 7   the true planners, the people that understand the
  


 8   region, the people that understand the water
  


 9   supply needs within those areas.  To me it's not
  


10   an exclusionary process.  It's a very open
  


11   process, very well-publicized process.  And if you
  


12   have any other ideas about getting the word out,
  


13   we have an extensive other interested party, as
  


14   Bruce does, for this process, a very extensive
  


15   other interested party e-mail list that we e-mail
  


16   around to just about everybody we can think of to
  


17   involve them in the process.
  


18              So we have many meetings.  They are
  


19   open.  They are published.  And, you know, we're
  


20   going to move forward.  I think that moving
  


21   forward now I think is more important than ever
  


22   because we need the information for this process.
  


23   The data that's getting collected will be very
  


24   informative to the state water plan.  And so we're
  


25   going to put it in a form and format that can be
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 1   used for anybody.
  


 2              Now in every one of those pieces on
  


 3   those slides that I shared with you there's a lot
  


 4   of FOI issues with every one of those pieces
  


 5   unfortunately.  And in the eighties you could
  


 6   share those broadly, in the nineties you could
  


 7   share them broadly, but after 2011, you know --
  


 8   after 2001, sorry, 2001, you can't because of the
  


 9   law that passed.
  


10              So I think there needs to be a real
  


11   serious review of the FOI law and to have
  


12   people sit -- and we tried years ago.  We didn't
  


13   get too far.
  


14              MARGARET MINER:  We all did try.
  


15              LORI MATHIEU:  I just saw an e-mail
  


16   from Betsey right before this meeting sending out
  


17   information to this group about FOI.  So maybe we
  


18   can have a real serious discussion and make some
  


19   change that makes a lot of sense to the agencies
  


20   that have been dealing with the redactions and the
  


21   amount of time we've spent in this process.  And I
  


22   think Jeff Beckham is a key to that because he's a
  


23   very important piece in reviewing the security
  


24   risk.
  


25              MARGARET MINER:  I just want to
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 1   mention, not a question, but I have been asked,
  


 2   well, do you impose all security redactions.  No,
  


 3   there are secrets for security like your computer
  


 4   operating systems and how you access them.  I
  


 5   don't know how secure they are, but we're not
  


 6   interested in them.  And if it's really a secret,
  


 7   either we don't need it, don't want it, or we
  


 8   don't even know about it.  So we're not -- we do
  


 9   recognize it's a dangerous world, and water
  


10   utilities should be doing a lot, maybe more than
  


11   they're doing about security, and we support that.
  


12   We just feel this missed the target widely the
  


13   laws on FOI.  And I thank you for reviewing it.
  


14              LORI MATHIEU:  Sure.  Thank you.
  


15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
  


16   questions for Lori?
  


17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So Lori, thanks.
  


18   This is great.  I feel partly responsible.  I
  


19   remember back when we started this hearing I think
  


20   I was the one that said what's a WUCC.  So thank
  


21   you very much.
  


22              I've got just a couple of questions.  I
  


23   was taking notes.  And I think back in the -- I
  


24   think you were saying back in the eighties you
  


25   were initially looking at seven regions?
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 1              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
  


 2              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And three regions
  


 3   didn't make any progress at all?
  


 4              LORI MATHIEU:  Right.
  


 5              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  The others came up
  


 6   with plans and then one, Southeast --
  


 7              LORI MATHIEU:  Is approved, yes.
  


 8              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  -- is approved.
  


 9   What's going to happen with, for example,
  


10   Southeast now that these three kind of super
  


11   regions, what happens to the --
  


12              LORI MATHIEU:  Existing plans?
  


13              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  How does that -- do
  


14   they have to start all over again?
  


15              LORI MATHIEU:  The existing plans don't
  


16   go away.  They become incorporated as part of the
  


17   planning process.
  


18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Do they have to like
  


19   revisit?
  


20              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes, they have to be
  


21   updated, absolutely.
  


22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  I guess, I'm just
  


23   jumping around here a little bit.  On the FOIA
  


24   question, and I agree with you, but I wonder --
  


25   and changes do need to be made.  I wonder in the
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 1   meantime -- and it takes a while to change law.
  


 2   Maybe we'll be here seven months from now,
  


 3   whatever the time frame is.  And I wonder if there
  


 4   is like some benefit to having like the policy
  


 5   committee kind of take a look at this.  If one of
  


 6   the questions is like how state agencies interpret
  


 7   the law, and if it's vague, then perhaps there's
  


 8   some merit to having some of the members of the
  


 9   policy group take a look at it to see if there is
  


10   a different set of eyes like this is how we think
  


11   you might kind of deal with some of the issues
  


12   that Margaret has raised and that Lori has talked
  


13   about as well, that kind of in the meantime enable
  


14   us to make some progress in this area because a
  


15   lot of our efforts have been dependent on
  


16   everybody at the table being able to access
  


17   information.  If we're going to be able to reach
  


18   conclusions, reach consensus on some of these
  


19   things, people are going to need to know what
  


20   that's based on.
  


21              So to the extent that some people have
  


22   all the information and others don't have anywhere
  


23   near as much, that's a problem for this group, the
  


24   steering committee for the Water Planning Council,
  


25   so we've got to kind of put aside how we all feel
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 1   about Margaret.  I mean, if she wasn't here, the
  


 2   issue would be the same.  We need to kind of
  


 3   figure out like a way to improve our ability to
  


 4   serve the public with the validity of the data
  


 5   that we're using to draw a conclusion.  So I'm not
  


 6   sure how that kind of fits in, Bob, to what the
  


 7   Committee is doing, but that might be another way
  


 8   to start --
  


 9              ROBERT MOORE:  That first issue, I'll
  


10   talk about that.
  


11              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  All right.  And then
  


12   I guess it was interesting to hear that Maureen
  


13   started off at the health department.  So thank
  


14   you for that.
  


15              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I didn't get to
  


16   go to Washington.
  


17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One of the things
  


18   that you were saying up there was so the WUCC
  


19   process is designed to bring together all these
  


20   players, you know, to talk about the various
  


21   things and then establish exclusive service areas.
  


22   Could you talk about what that means and how that
  


23   kind of relates to the state water plan?
  


24              LORI MATHIEU:  Exclusive service areas
  


25   in particular?
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 1              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Yes.
  


 2              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's exactly what
  


 3   it is.  It's an area set up of exclusive water
  


 4   supply service by one utility so that you cannot
  


 5   have another utility come in here and provide
  


 6   water service.
  


 7              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So is that if these
  


 8   three WUCC processes, this process went
  


 9   successfully forward, then each one of those would
  


10   be an exclusive service area, and then so one
  


11   utility would basically have control?
  


12              LORI MATHIEU:  You would have
  


13   individual assigned exclusive service areas.
  


14   Unfortunately, I don't have a copy of the map of
  


15   any one of the WUCCs that were set up, but
  


16   essentially in this area of the state you have MDC
  


17   that has their service area, and then you have New
  


18   Britain, they have their exclusive service area.
  


19   They get their existing service area, you have
  


20   what you have, and then you claim areas of growth
  


21   beyond that.  And that should be connected to your
  


22   water supply plan to show how you can serve that
  


23   area.  And then during the process, the planning
  


24   process, you might have other utilities saying,
  


25   look, I want to serve that same area, this is how
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 1   I'm going to do it.  And that's where the whole
  


 2   negotiating process comes about.  In the Southeast
  


 3   you had quite a few overlapping claims.
  


 4              For instance, the Town of North
  


 5   Stonington had eight different entities claiming
  


 6   the entire town.  Because, if you remember, at
  


 7   that time it was the late nineties and the
  


 8   Foxwoods Casino just got built.  There was a lot
  


 9   of ongoing, you know, big plans for Route 2 and
  


10   off of I-95, and so there was a lot of discussion
  


11   about development in the area.  So all the
  


12   utilities in the area wanted the Town of North
  


13   Stonington.  In the end the Town of North
  


14   Stonington won out.  The town is an exclusive
  


15   service area.
  


16              So the process is setting up areas of
  


17   where a utility can serve and where a utility has
  


18   excess water to be able to serve that area and is
  


19   connected to their individual water supply plan
  


20   that shows the safe yield and available water and
  


21   margin of safety over a 50-year period of time.
  


22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Thank you.
  


23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen.
  


24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  If I could just add
  


25   on that.  The part about the exclusive service
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 1   area, I think one of the things that's been the
  


 2   greatest benefit from that from a water utility
  


 3   perspective and from a customer perspective, quite
  


 4   frankly, is the ability to know where systems are
  


 5   going to expand and where the infrastructure
  


 6   should be.  There's no point in making the
  


 7   pipelines that are coming in either across each
  


 8   other or bump into each other, there's enough
  


 9   investment we have to make just to replace aging
  


10   infrastructure without replacing things that are
  


11   not really serving the greatest purpose.
  


12              So I think that's really from an
  


13   operational perspective one of the greatest
  


14   benefits of the WUCC is to have utilities identify
  


15   where it makes sense for them to serve, who has
  


16   adequate supplies, and how you will reasonably be
  


17   expected to meet those needs long term, and then
  


18   make sure you don't have a lot of redundancy in
  


19   those investments in that infrastructure to serve
  


20   those customers.  So I think that's a real
  


21   important part of it is how to benefit long term,
  


22   even in the ones that have been and maybe even
  


23   those not formally adopted.
  


24              LORI MATHIEU:  And along with that, the
  


25   town planners, the council of governments,
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 1   regional people and local health department, they
  


 2   start to understand who's going to be where and
  


 3   when if there's an issue and they know who they
  


 4   can turn to.  And also it's connected to the
  


 5   certificate law, the certificate of public
  


 6   convenience and necessity, that looks at
  


 7   developing new systems as stand-alone systems.  If
  


 8   you have a claimed area, if you claim that entire
  


 9   Town of North Stonington and you want to build a
  


10   new elderly housing out in the middle of the
  


11   woods, well, the Town of North Stonington will
  


12   have to own that water system.
  


13              No longer are we going to create new
  


14   small community systems.  The exclusive service
  


15   area will guide the development of not only their
  


16   own system but also the development, or hopefully
  


17   the lack of development, of new small community
  


18   systems that are run by a mobile home park owner
  


19   who lives in Florida and could care less about the
  


20   people who live there.  We run into that time and
  


21   time again.  The time is to stop that, and that's
  


22   one of the powers of the exclusive service area as
  


23   well.
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other
  


25   questions for Lori?
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 1              MS. BLASCHINSKI:  If I could, I'd just
  


 2   make one follow-up comment on that.  I think DPH
  


 3   has tried to learn a bit from our sister agency at
  


 4   DEEP and how you handle municipal facility
  


 5   planning statewide.  So we have all these condo
  


 6   associations who become public water systems, and
  


 7   then we have to regulate them.  And then
  


 8   ultimately the condo association board of
  


 9   directors decides they're going to retire, they
  


10   don't want to do that anymore, and yet they're a
  


11   public water system.  And DPH is responsible for
  


12   overseeing that.  And what we came to learn was
  


13   with municipal facilities plans that if a condo
  


14   association becomes a community wastewater
  


15   treatment system that the town in which they exist
  


16   would have responsibility for managing that
  


17   community wastewater system, and it assisted quite
  


18   a bit in the creation of new systems.  So we'd
  


19   like to just keep that a similar process so that
  


20   it's not a quick, put this well in the ground,
  


21   build these condos, how fast can I sell them for,
  


22   how much money.  It's long term this is where
  


23   somebody is going to reside.  They will need a
  


24   long-term reliable source of drinking water for
  


25   their use.
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 1              So there's some of the similarities I
  


 2   think with municipal facility planning.  I think
  


 3   the difference in that is it's completely
  


 4   municipally owned.  I think there's a lot of
  


 5   private entities who are in the business of
  


 6   providing municipal facility service, but I'm sure
  


 7   others could correct me.
  


 8              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  There's one major
  


 9   one, Ellen.
  


10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Anything
  


11   else?
  


12              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One more quick
  


13   question.  You started off talking about like the
  


14   number of systems that you regulate.
  


15              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
  


16              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  It seems like a lot.
  


17              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.
  


18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Will this process
  


19   with the exclusive service areas and/or the WUCCs,
  


20   does that kind of drive down the number?
  


21              LORI MATHIEU:  It was meant to.  Part
  


22   of the report that Bob wrote was to stop the
  


23   growth of the small systems because in the
  


24   seventies and eighties systems were -- small condo
  


25   systems were being built, and they were failing
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 1   the next day, literally failing.  So I think it
  


 2   will work really hard to reduce the number of
  


 3   systems that are out there.
  


 4              One of the bigger problems is when you
  


 5   talk about the growth of noncommunity systems, and
  


 6   we have towns such as Brookfield that, thank God,
  


 7   that Brookfield is being resolved, there was 180
  


 8   public water systems along Federal Road in the
  


 9   Town of Brookfield, 180.  And if you know Federal
  


10   Road, specifically the southern part of Federal
  


11   Road, every one of those shopping centers had a
  


12   well in a pit that you would drive over.
  


13              So if you went to the Panara Bread,
  


14   right, that's down in the southern part of
  


15   Brookfield, that well is in a pit that your car is
  


16   sitting over.  And even though it's groundwater,
  


17   it's filled with, let's see, you know, radium,
  


18   uranium, arsenic and MTBE and all kinds of VOCs.
  


19   So mix all that together, you are putting -- and
  


20   they wanted to continue to put more in there.
  


21              So the idea of planning better, the
  


22   problem we have is we're still growing more of the
  


23   Brookfields of the world.  We're still just saying
  


24   here's another building, here's another well,
  


25   here's another building, here's another well.  And
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 1   towns need to start thinking about that, and so
  


 2   does the state.  The state needs to rethink their
  


 3   policy on growth of public water in those towns.
  


 4              Like my town, 28 noncommunity systems
  


 5   in my town, and it's going to continue to grow
  


 6   because there's no other bigger infrastructure.
  


 7   So that's part of the effort of the WUCC is to
  


 8   limit the growth of these systems.
  


 9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any other
  


10   questions?
  


11              (No response.)
  


12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Lori, thank you
  


13   very much.  It was a great topic, great
  


14   discussion.
  


15              (Applause.)
  


16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Next we're up for
  


17   the policy subcommittee report.
  


18              ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.  We've had
  


19   two meetings over the last two months.  And one of
  


20   the first things we did is ask the Council's
  


21   questions which were answered.  We were a little
  


22   bit concerned about the question about clarifying
  


23   the roles of the project manager.  The first part
  


24   of that seemed that the project manager reports to
  


25   the WPC, interacts, and then the second part of
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 1   that question we were a little bit confused about
  


 2   the role of the project manager in helping or
  


 3   driving the steering committee.  So I think that
  


 4   was answered a little better this morning or
  


 5   earlier in this meeting, so I think we'll be
  


 6   comfortable with that answer.
  


 7              The two meetings focused on two primary
  


 8   issues:  One is the redacted information on water
  


 9   supplies, and felt that really without a clear
  


10   decision on what information was going to be
  


11   available that the report would be lacking and
  


12   would be missing things and people wouldn't trust
  


13   it because they wouldn't be able to see how much
  


14   water is where in terms of drinking water.
  


15              So we turned it back to you, Mike, and
  


16   said that we thought there was some information
  


17   that could be focused on -- and then try to work
  


18   with the agencies at DAS to come up with a
  


19   solution.  And the issues that we focused on --
  


20   and the water utilities were there -- were that
  


21   reservoirs are clearly identified.  Most of the
  


22   maps that we've ever seen by name, they're clearly
  


23   marked on the highway that there's a reservoir
  


24   there.  We know where the protected lands are,
  


25   Class I and Class II lands are, and so that issue
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 1   seemed to be -- there's an area in that area that
  


 2   could be defined clearly and continued to be
  


 3   focused.
  


 4              We thought that the consumptions and
  


 5   the yields, consumptive uses were important.  The
  


 6   primary issue we need to know is how much water is
  


 7   coming out of here and generally where it's going.
  


 8   So the consumptive use might be an area where you
  


 9   could reach some kind of agreement and that the
  


10   issue of related -- the reservoirs consumptive
  


11   uses and maybe the interconnection with other
  


12   utilities.  So not -- we didn't actually know --
  


13   didn't need to know exactly where they were
  


14   connected, but it would be nice to know that MDC
  


15   is connected to Manchester and Cromwell in case of
  


16   emergency and stuff like that.  So it would be
  


17   nice if those things would be -- you don't need to
  


18   know where the pipes were, you just need to know
  


19   that there was an area where they could coexist.
  


20              And so there were some issues like that
  


21   which would lead to we didn't need to know about
  


22   what their treatment consisted of and what the
  


23   chemicals they use consisted of, you know, what
  


24   the peak concentrations were of chemicals, you
  


25   know, where the distribution system was, and a
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 1   variety of those things, what kind of storage
  


 2   tanks, but a lot of information is available from
  


 3   other places.  I mean, if you knew where fire
  


 4   hydrants are, they're clearly marked on the road,
  


 5   you know, Call Before you Dig will tell you where
  


 6   everything is.
  


 7              So there's some inconsistencies, but we
  


 8   felt that if we met with the water utilities and
  


 9   DAS and members of the planning council, we may be
  


10   able to isolate those issues which could be
  


11   protected, but I think all three have to be at the
  


12   table.  I think the water companies have to be
  


13   there, you know, the council has to be there and
  


14   the DAS.  And if it needs a legislative change, it
  


15   could be a simple change, you could get it fairly
  


16   rapidly, but perhaps not, but I mean, at least, if
  


17   you're focused on what is critical in making the
  


18   plan successful, there are not that many big
  


19   issues, and consumptive use is probably the most
  


20   important part of it.
  


21              So that was our information, and if the
  


22   Council doesn't want to do it, I'm sure the policy
  


23   committee would be happy to focus more attention
  


24   on that, but we thought it needed to have people
  


25   with titles.  And that's where we left that.  And
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 1   the utilities supported that.  So that was one of
  


 2   our policy recommendations.
  


 3              The other policy recommendation we had
  


 4   was that the -- these are in writing so they'll
  


 5   come out easier -- was that the registrations need
  


 6   to be identified.  The registrations were made in
  


 7   1982.  There has been no cleaning or culling of
  


 8   them ever since.  And we recommended that the DEEP
  


 9   write to the registrants asking them a few simple
  


10   questions focusing on do they still own it, is the
  


11   information still correct, do they still need the
  


12   water, or has something else happened in between,
  


13   are they willing to give up some of the uses that
  


14   they had or not.  But we wanted to make sure it
  


15   wasn't in a threatening way that said that, you
  


16   know, a farmer who's irrigating that he's not
  


17   going to answer the question.  It has to be in a
  


18   constructive way.
  


19              And then if we felt that there was no
  


20   answer and we needed more information, we need to
  


21   follow up with some kind of additional authority
  


22   to get what is registered.  That leaves a
  


23   little -- like Betsey gave us a report or a chart
  


24   of all the number of registrations and where they
  


25   were going to.  I mean, the power utilities took a
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 1   lot, but we all know who they are, and one of them
  


 2   is gone, but it's still listed as a registration.
  


 3              So that if there's an issue that that
  


 4   can be cleared up which would help focus in on how
  


 5   much water is where and how much is available or
  


 6   not available.  So that's something we recommend
  


 7   that DEEP follow through on and we gave them some
  


 8   suggestions.
  


 9              The third policy that we were
  


10   recommending and we discussed is that there be no
  


11   change in the policy to protect the water supply,
  


12   that Connecticut is unique in being able to have
  


13   no discharge of wastewater into the water supply
  


14   system and reaffirm that that should not be looked
  


15   at as a change in this plan.
  


16              We did talk about whether or not other
  


17   Class B waters or other waters could be used for
  


18   different purposes.  We haven't fully fleshed that
  


19   out yet, but there are other uses for grey water
  


20   and other uses for recycled water.  We haven't
  


21   gotten into that, but for potable water supply
  


22   there was consensus on the AA standard.
  


23              And we looked at recent events in South
  


24   Carolina and other places that flooded, and we
  


25   have the unique ability to keep that from
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 1   happening here.  That would be the policy of the
  


 2   state.  And also protection of the Class I and II
  


 3   waters, which also went along with that, so that
  


 4   the supplies be protected also from land uses.
  


 5              Those are the main policy ones.  We
  


 6   also discussed whether or not the plan should
  


 7   promote -- these are some of the plethora of
  


 8   policy questions that Virginia raised in her
  


 9   report.  We've only got time to talk about a few,
  


10   and that was should the water plan promote
  


11   conservation.  Our answer was yes, and other
  


12   answers that support policy.
  


13              But we also talked about leak
  


14   detection.  We haven't finalized that, but it's
  


15   something that we're looking at is how to deal
  


16   with leaks in utilities.  We're not ready to deal
  


17   with that, but that was one of the other ones that
  


18   we should look at.  We'll get into the details of
  


19   that.
  


20              We also talked a little bit about the
  


21   State Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and
  


22   suggested that a policy for replacement of
  


23   utilities be given greater priority or priority so
  


24   that the funds be focused on replacement of the
  


25   infrastructure that's necessary to maintain an
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 1   active water supply, which is more important in
  


 2   consideration of rising sea levels.  There's a lot
  


 3   of other issues that are related to using those
  


 4   funds for the enhancement, replacement of and
  


 5   protection of the utilities rather than expansion
  


 6   of -- so we think that should be one.  We have to
  


 7   talk about that further, but that was one of the
  


 8   early responses that we had.
  


 9              So that was basically the results of
  


10   our meeting so far.  At the next meeting we're
  


11   going to actually look at some ag uses and then
  


12   try to focus in on some of the needs that may be
  


13   changing over the changing agriculture uses in the
  


14   state and been employed, and some folks can talk
  


15   about that.
  


16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of work
  


17   there.  Thank you very much.  It's very very well
  


18   done.
  


19              Yes.
  


20              MARGARET MINER:  The question of
  


21   staying with the AA standard for drinking water,
  


22   we do support it.  It took some discussion some
  


23   years ago with our board to come to that decision.
  


24   It does involve sacrifice of our best upland
  


25   streams and aquifers.  If water supply is needed,
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 1   that's where the supply is sought.  I just -- we
  


 2   still support it, but I'm becoming a little
  


 3   anxious because of the stream classification
  


 4   process.  We have streams that are Class I and II,
  


 5   the highest ranking streams, cold water streams.
  


 6   And if a water company has sort of dibs on it, say
  


 7   they have future plans to develop that, that
  


 8   stream drops down and becomes a III, less
  


 9   protected.
  


10              And so I'm hoping that -- I do agree
  


11   that if companies have made a truly significant
  


12   investment on counting on supply that's needed,
  


13   that's one thing, but I am concerned that too many
  


14   of our high-quality upland waters have the utility
  


15   flag being put down on them and may be at risk in
  


16   the future.  And frankly, I don't think it helps
  


17   the utility that much either because once the
  


18   stream or that stream segment becomes a Class III,
  


19   other things can happen there that might not be
  


20   desirable for the utility.
  


21              So that's been a nagging question, and
  


22   I just wanted you to know that for us it isn't a
  


23   slam dunk.  We support the standard.  We think
  


24   it's important, but it comes at a price.
  


25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
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 1              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a question.
  


 2   So the policy group that I do sit on, one thing
  


 3   I'm a little curious about is how do we integrate
  


 4   the wastewater side of this equation?  I don't
  


 5   know enough to know if wastewater is conservation
  


 6   even a possibility.  Is that something that we
  


 7   could -- you know, is leak detection a possibility
  


 8   or a way to save water?  Are we as a policy, in
  


 9   addition to looking at funding for drinking water
  


10   SRF, going to look at the priorities for the clean
  


11   water SRF?  Are we going to think about how
  


12   similar to economic development being impacted by
  


13   the availability of potable water, it's also
  


14   impacted pretty heavily by the availability of
  


15   public wastewater systems?
  


16              So maybe that's going to be coming, you
  


17   know, sort of to that agriculture is going to be
  


18   another area of focus, maybe wastewater in terms
  


19   of interbasin transfers, what impact does it have
  


20   to inland water bodies, impact to harmful algal
  


21   blooms, pollutants in Long Island Sound, et
  


22   cetera, is that going to be covered in the future
  


23   policy work?
  


24              ROBERT MOORE:  Sure.  I mean, those are
  


25   great answers.  I think the questions, obviously
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 1   combined sewer overflows, infiltration, those are
  


 2   all things that impact the quality and also the
  


 3   quantity.  Some of our rivers, like the
  


 4   Quinnipiac, have been virtually allocated for, you
  


 5   know, most of its capacity for waste assimilation.
  


 6   That's a pretty unique situation for a river to be
  


 7   in is that, you know, its capacity for additional
  


 8   waste, it means that water would have to come -- I
  


 9   think there was a proposal in Meriden.  I think
  


10   the water -- the power plant would withdraw water
  


11   from the Connecticut River and put it in the
  


12   Quinnipiac and only because there's not enough
  


13   water in Connecticut to support our plan.
  


14              So there's going to be issues like
  


15   that, you know, where a river -- I think the Still
  


16   River in the Danbury area --
  


17              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.
  


18              ROBERT MOORE:  -- and a few of those
  


19   are in that same situation where most of the
  


20   capacity of the river, because of the assimilated
  


21   waste, has been allocated already.
  


22              So I think those are critical issues,
  


23   you know, in the future.
  


24              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.
  


25              GENE LIKENS:  I'll just speak loud.
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 1   This is a process question.  How will the
  


 2   subcommittee reports be used?  How will that be
  


 3   incorporated?  Is this information being passed
  


 4   along to the writers of the plan or what?  I
  


 5   didn't understand.
  


 6              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  That's how we
  


 7   envision it working, yes.  The input from the
  


 8   subcommittees, the workgroups, comes here, and
  


 9   then it gets incorporated ultimately when the
  


10   contractor is on board.
  


11              GENE LIKENS:  Incorporated directly, or
  


12   will there be further discussion, further
  


13   analysis?
  


14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  There will be more
  


15   discussion, I'm sure, I would think, at this
  


16   level.
  


17              GENE LIKENS:  And when will that occur?
  


18   This is a process --
  


19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  And it's a good
  


20   question.  For example, one of the things that
  


21   came out of the recommendation here today was that
  


22   something regarding the FOI will be a follow-up
  


23   with the Water Planning Council itself.  So once
  


24   we go through the minutes of this meeting and see
  


25   some of the recommendations that come out of the
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 1   report, we'll plan accordingly how we're going to
  


 2   follow up on that with the Water Planning Council.
  


 3   Maybe hopefully at that point we'll have some
  


 4   outside consultants.  And the whole thing is going
  


 5   to be -- anything that's going to the various
  


 6   committees is going to come back and be vetted by
  


 7   this group before it goes into a final version for
  


 8   the plan.
  


 9              GENE LIKENS:  Okay.
  


10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's a
  


11   very -- I mean, your question is a good one.
  


12   Obviously that report, a lot of work went into
  


13   that report, and we'll have a follow-up meeting on
  


14   how we're going to be utilizing that.  So I think
  


15   that's the beginning.  But again, the steering
  


16   committee is going to look at these topics, make
  


17   recommendations to the council, and then write a
  


18   report.
  


19              Any other questions or comments?
  


20              (No response.)
  


21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you
  


22   very much to your committee.
  


23              And Virginia.
  


24              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Before I start, the
  


25   invitation on the web was 1 to 2:30.  Is that what
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 1   we are planning for this meeting?
  


 2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  No.  How
  


 3   long do we have this room, Betsey?
  


 4              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Four.
  


 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what I
  


 6   thought.
  


 7              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Can I just say, it
  


 8   did say 1 to 3:30, so I have a 3 o'clock.
  


 9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, well --
  


10              Virginia, I hope you're not going to go
  


11   on for an hour and a half.
  


12              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  What I was going to
  


13   say is essentially everybody around the table have
  


14   at their seat a brief summary of what the Science
  


15   and Technical Committee has done and a draft of
  


16   where we are with the spreadsheet we're putting
  


17   together.  And it's relatively self-explanatory.
  


18   So I will very happily just pass on doing a
  


19   presentation here.
  


20              I do want to say with the spreadsheet
  


21   this is not the most recent version, but it is
  


22   fairly recent and only two pages -- only the first
  


23   couple of things indicate just so you can see what
  


24   the spreadsheet covered, and then from there on in
  


25   it's just categories of data that we have
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 1   generated through our brainstorming sessions.
  


 2              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  You have in "Do
  


 3   the data exist," you have "yes" and then you have
  


 4   slashes and sometimes there are spaces between
  


 5   "yes," and I just wasn't quite sure what that was
  


 6   meaning.
  


 7              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We had about eight
  


 8   different people providing information to this,
  


 9   and so all the different spreadsheets were merged,
  


10   and so each individual is separated by a slash.
  


11   So if they didn't respond, well, they didn't
  


12   respond, and they got a space.
  


13              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  That makes more
  


14   sense.  Thank you.
  


15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, what has
  


16   happened in our meetings is that we've gotten into
  


17   more philosophical and policy-type of discussions,
  


18   and that's the list on the front page that we
  


19   passed along to the policy committee.  I
  


20   referenced that a few minutes ago.  And then there
  


21   was a question raised whether that was
  


22   appropriately handled by the policy committee or
  


23   by this group.  And I don't know, I was not at the
  


24   meeting last week.  I don't know if you resolved
  


25   some of those.  But I would encourage the people
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 1   in the steering committee to be looking at some of
  


 2   those policy-type questions because it will inform
  


 3   how the final plan evolves.
  


 4              On a separate issue, sort of a link
  


 5   between the policy group and the science group,
  


 6   talking particularly about data being available,
  


 7   you may recall a couple of months ago this group
  


 8   enforced the grant application reviewing a project
  


 9   for the U.S. Geological Survey that included the
  


10   SSWUDS database and other pieces.  Without the
  


11   data to go into SSWUDS, it loses a lot of its
  


12   value.
  


13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Questions or
  


14   comments for Virginia?
  


15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We are open to
  


16   ideas, suggestions, more kinds of data, more
  


17   answers to filling in the spreadsheet.  As I said,
  


18   the spreadsheet would have been like 25 pages long
  


19   if I printed the whole thing out, but some of the
  


20   discussion we had, for instance, the second column
  


21   as to why is data needed, somebody said, well,
  


22   dah, but we -- and also if it exists, we don't
  


23   have to make a case for why it's needed.  But then
  


24   there was some discussion of the validity of
  


25   having it as an informative piece because many
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 1   folks around this table and in this room have
  


 2   different levels of expertise.  Somebody might not
  


 3   understand how a particular type of data is used.
  


 4   So that we decided to keep that in there for
  


 5   that -- to provide information to people who may
  


 6   not be familiar with that type of data.  But the
  


 7   primary reason for that column was if data did not
  


 8   exist, we would need to make a compelling case to
  


 9   create it.
  


10              And just to use a non-touchy example,
  


11   if we decided that information on groundwater
  


12   wells, location of groundwater wells, I'm talking
  


13   about not ones regulated by the Department of
  


14   Health, probably like domestic wells, and the
  


15   depth of those wells, if those data were
  


16   determined to be important for the plan, currently
  


17   they exist only in paper files.  And if there was
  


18   a good case why those were essential, then perhaps
  


19   money would be found to create a digital database
  


20   with that information rather than paper files.  We
  


21   would have to make a case before somebody would be
  


22   willing to expend those resources.
  


23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?
  


24              (No response.)
  


25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We have a
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 1   Statewide Water Plan website update.
  


 2              ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'll come up to the
  


 3   podium.  I'm Eric Lindquist from OPM.
  


 4              So following the previous steering
  


 5   committee meeting, the draft design for the new
  


 6   WPC web site was finalized and submitted to the
  


 7   Department of Administrative Services, DAS, a
  


 8   state agency that oversees all of the state's web
  


 9   sites.  DAS is currently in the process of
  


10   building out the web site now and integrating it
  


11   into the state's Enterprise infrastructure.  And
  


12   meanwhile, I am providing and developing content
  


13   for the pages for the site.
  


14              There's two pages actually from which
  


15   I'd like to coordinate with DEEP, DPH and PURA on
  


16   subject matter.  Those pages essentially give an
  


17   overview of how the water is managed in the state,
  


18   as well as our water resources that we have.  So
  


19   my goal for those two pages is to take what is a
  


20   large amount of complicated, complex information,
  


21   laws, regulations from the various agencies, DEEP,
  


22   PURA, DPH, and basically consolidate them into one
  


23   cohesive, concise, easy-to-understand format that
  


24   the general public can come to and easily sit down
  


25   in just a few minutes and get a good understanding
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 1   of how we currently manage water resources in the
  


 2   state.
  


 3              So essentially provide a resource to
  


 4   those that are coming into this with a fresh set
  


 5   of eyes that aren't aware of, you know, the things
  


 6   that we're aware of so that they can easily
  


 7   understand and jump in and have a resource they
  


 8   can use.  So just a heads-up that I'll be reaching
  


 9   out to those agencies in the coming days,
  


10   hopefully, to work with them on this.
  


11              I'm planning to have an initial draft
  


12   of the site launched before the end of the year.
  


13   So hopefully the next time we meet we can put it
  


14   up on the screen and go through it.  So all right.
  


15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Eric.
  


16   Eric is doing a great job, and we appreciate it.
  


17              The Other States on the agenda, the
  


18   Other States Work Group Report.  We're going to
  


19   have a little discussion about plans found to be
  


20   most useful for the creation of Connecticut's plan
  


21   and the aspects of individual plans that should be
  


22   utilized by the committee.
  


23              And I guess, Virginia and Bob, are you
  


24   looking at any of the other statewide plans?
  


25              ROBERT MOORE:  We looked at the table
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 1   of contents and thought it was really good at our
  


 2   meeting.
  


 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has anybody had
  


 4   an opportunity to look at --
  


 5              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Several people on
  


 6   the Science and Technical Work Group were part of
  


 7   the Other State Plan Work Group, and so amongst us
  


 8   we looked at many.
  


 9              Is there a specific target of your
  


10   question?
  


11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, it's on the
  


12   agenda.  I mean, not really.  I mean, it was on
  


13   the agenda.  A lot of work went into that.
  


14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  One of the things I
  


15   would like to stress about that -- and is Matt
  


16   still here?  Oh, there you are.  You might want to
  


17   jump in.  The focus of this group has been more on
  


18   that table of contents.  The Other States Group
  


19   got together and redid that update based on some
  


20   input that we got from the steering committee at
  


21   the workshop.  I want to emphasize that most of
  


22   the work that the Other States Committee did
  


23   was -- resulted in the whole document that was
  


24   sent out as an attachment to the invitation to
  


25   this meeting.  It was this one.  And this has a
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 1   very extensive table in it that I know, if I were
  


 2   one of you, I would get there and go, oh, my
  


 3   goodness, and sort of cover it that way.  I
  


 4   encourage you very strongly to look at that table.
  


 5   There is an incredible amount of information in
  


 6   there on how other states handle specific issues
  


 7   that we deem to be important for our process.
  


 8              The way that gets started is we came up
  


 9   with questions that we thought were germane to the
  


10   process and really important to address, and then
  


11   each of us, as we looked at other states' plans,
  


12   went through those questions and saw how other
  


13   states address those questions.  So it's an
  


14   incredibly valuable resource that so far has not
  


15   been the focus of the discussions here.
  


16              So you can't do it in two or three
  


17   minutes, as we're speaking here, but please do go
  


18   through it.  It may clarify a lot of the concerns
  


19   that we're running into, have run into, and will
  


20   run into during this process.  And then there are
  


21   links to more information on many, not all, but
  


22   many of those issues that if somebody really wants
  


23   to delve into it, you can do so.
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So perhaps
  


25   the steering committee will look at this for
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 1   future meetings and actually --
  


 2              Yes, Margaret.
  


 3              MARGARET MINER:  There's a lot of good
  


 4   information here.  David Radka at different
  


 5   meetings has mentioned that he particularly likes
  


 6   the Oregon plan.  And I asked why and had a quick
  


 7   look at it, and he said because they're starting
  


 8   off where we are data gathering and felt we were
  


 9   starting in the same place, and it was a very --
  


10   it was a science-based database plan.
  


11              So I wanted to mention there are a
  


12   couple of plans that David likes, particularly the
  


13   Oregon plan, and there's another in Nebraska that
  


14   he liked.  So I guess what I did is I looked at
  


15   the Oregon plan, and I looked at the Nebraska,
  


16   okay, what are the features here, and then looking
  


17   through the rest, okay, what do the other plans
  


18   do.
  


19              So I don't know who will get stuck with
  


20   the assignment from the agencies, but it really is
  


21   worthwhile looking through.  And I think some
  


22   people, like Virginia and others, if you have
  


23   questions, he really has looked at a few plans and
  


24   could give you a briefing on what's in them and
  


25   what their strengths and weaknesses are.
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 1              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I don't know if
  


 2   it's something that might be worth a presentation
  


 3   in a future meeting and kind of go through it, the
  


 4   highlights.
  


 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the next
  


 6   meeting that's what we'll do.  We'll start off
  


 7   with a presentation of that, which is a nice segue
  


 8   actually to the final items we discussed, perhaps
  


 9   doing Webinars of various topics of interest.
  


10              MARGARET MINER:  Yes, that is the
  


11   segue.  We were thinking that all of us have some
  


12   areas we know better than others, and then on some
  


13   of these specialty items, instead of having
  


14   general presentations, it might be good if someone
  


15   wants to know more about, say, registrations, what
  


16   the law has been, what the court interpretations
  


17   have been, there could be either a Webinar or a
  


18   small group meeting for people that might have a
  


19   special interest that want a little more in-depth
  


20   on a particular subject.  And that way -- well, we
  


21   just thought that would be a more efficient way of
  


22   members gathering information so we could move
  


23   forward more quickly.
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  So I
  


25   think that's what we'll do, we'll take that --
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 1   probably state water plans in terms of --
  


 2              MARGARET MINER:  That would be ideal.
  


 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what we'll
  


 4   do.
  


 5              Any other business to come before us?
  


 6              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may, it's very
  


 7   hard for each of us to focus on this when we're
  


 8   not actually in this room.  I would propose that
  


 9   we spend a few minutes gathering ideas of what
  


10   kinds of expertise we might want to focus on so
  


11   that we can actually start moving on that.
  


12              Sam, may I use you as an example?
  


13              SAM GOLD:  Sure.
  


14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For example, when
  


15   the science and technical group was talking about
  


16   that issue, why we need to use data, we
  


17   acknowledge that not everybody knows everything.
  


18   In that context Sam admitted that he doesn't know
  


19   that much hydrology.
  


20              And so in response to that, some of you
  


21   have seen the Water 101 presentation that I have
  


22   done.  I said, you know, would that help, that
  


23   kind of thing help.  And so that's one example of
  


24   something that we could do if we had a Webinar,
  


25   and anybody who wanted to know how groundwater and
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 1   surface water are interconnected and those types
  


 2   of things, could participate in it rather than
  


 3   taking the time of this group in one of these
  


 4   meetings where, you know what, quite a number of
  


 5   people do understand hydrology.
  


 6              So I think if we could gather now what
  


 7   expertise is available that will -- I just offered
  


 8   to do Water 101, but other people, not just in the
  


 9   steering committee, but in the room in general
  


10   could present, or what people would like to see,
  


11   and get more information on so that we can start
  


12   putting together a schedule of those things.
  


13              MARGARET MINER:  Beth Barton was
  


14   specifically mentioned at the meeting.  So because
  


15   she speaks up so much, we thought she would be an
  


16   ideal educator.
  


17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, for
  


18   example, Lori Mathieu said there's going to be a
  


19   cybersecurity seminar up in Massachusetts.  I
  


20   mean, we have to get the information out.  There's
  


21   a link to the presentation on our web site.
  


22              ROBERT MOORE:  I was involved in the
  


23   report with DEP on climate impacts, so I think
  


24   there is a report on climate impacts.  I don't
  


25   know if it was ever finished, but I was reviewing
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 1   it several years ago.  So maybe if there is a
  


 2   report on climate impacts that some of that be
  


 3   presented.  I think the report was done.  I
  


 4   reviewed part of it so --
  


 5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  


 6              ROBERT MOORE:  But that might be
  


 7   something where not a lot of us have any expertise
  


 8   or knowledge of what was in that report, but it
  


 9   might be something that's worth having a meeting
  


10   just to show what we know, what has already been
  


11   done on climate impacts.  It's destined to be one
  


12   of the more difficult things for us to deal with.
  


13              MS. WESTBROOK:  Related to the utility,
  


14   whether its operator status, that kind of stuff,
  


15   infrastructure challenges, those kind of things,
  


16   I'm sure there are a number of people in the
  


17   industry who can speak to any specific areas
  


18   relating to water utility operations, planning,
  


19   investments, that kind of stuff.  Maybe it's
  


20   something we can do at the next meeting, you know,
  


21   prior to the meeting, half hour prior to the
  


22   meeting people could meet as opposed to trying to
  


23   find a separate time, kind of add on to the
  


24   regular meeting.
  


25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So the
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 1   idea is that we'll take some of these
  


 2   recommendations here and come up with Webinars or
  


 3   something as an extension so we don't take up a
  


 4   lot of these meetings.  We could go through a
  


 5   water rate case.  Maureen loves it.  They're a lot
  


 6   of fun.  So we might, for instance, go through and
  


 7   look at that process and see how to set rates.
  


 8              GENE LIKENS:  We might want to add to
  


 9   that emerging water quality issues.
  


10              MARGARET MINER:  Glenn Warner has
  


11   raised the question pretty often.  To what extent
  


12   is this water plan primarily very strongly
  


13   directed towards quantity and volume; and if we
  


14   want to consider quality, how deep do we want to
  


15   go into that?  Is the plan meant to do both, or is
  


16   that what we're prepared for?  I don't have an
  


17   answer, but I know he's raised that question a few
  


18   times.
  


19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think we have
  


20   some good recommendations.
  


21              Anything else?
  


22              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Did you
  


23   intentionally skip Item Number 6?
  


24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Item 6 was
  


25   correspondence -- I think that's more of a --
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 1   "Discussion of recent correspondence received by
  


 2   the Council."  I think that's the Water Planning
  


 3   Council, not this.  The only letters that -- we
  


 4   did receive a letter from Gene Likens, and we
  


 5   addressed that at the last meeting.  And we also
  


 6   received a letter from Connecticut Water Works
  


 7   Association relative to the Water Planning Council
  


 8   Advisory Group and what their role is.
  


 9              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And also the
  


10   approval process.  Didn't yours have the approval
  


11   process of the plan also?
  


12              BETSY GARA:  Yes.
  


13              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Was that directed at
  


14   the board or the steering committee?
  


15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think your
  


16   letter was addressed to the Water Planning
  


17   Council, wasn't it?
  


18              BETSY GARA:  Correct, yes.
  


19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of what
  


20   the role of the advisory group was relative to the
  


21   water plan.  And I think, as Maureen said, we do
  


22   have -- I think we have the structure, you know,
  


23   the way the structure is set up now, but I think
  


24   that the advisory group just wanted to know
  


25   exactly what their role was, and we were going to
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 1   talk more about that at the planning council.
  


 2              MARGARET MINER:  Just a heads-up, many
  


 3   people in the advisory group have been looking at
  


 4   the final approval process of the plan.  So that's
  


 5   just a heads-up.  Different people have been
  


 6   looking at a timeline, does it work, and some
  


 7   other aspects, and we will be bringing it to the
  


 8   Water Planning Council.  But the consensus of the
  


 9   group was that there's some problems with the
  


10   approval process.  It was done at the end of
  


11   everything else.
  


12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So that's
  


13   something we're going to make a recommendation.
  


14              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes, the advisory
  


15   group, we talked about it last time, and got a lot
  


16   of feedback, and Margaret and I will --
  


17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's hope we
  


18   have a plan to approve.  Let's spend more energy
  


19   to get the plan approved than how we're going to
  


20   get -- let's plan on spending more energy on the
  


21   plan than getting the plan approved.  I think
  


22   that's an important part of all this.  Let's focus
  


23   on the plan together, then we'll worry about, you
  


24   know, what you want before the committee.
  


25              So, I don't think we need to -- you
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 1   seem to be really nervous about it.
  


 2              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes.  When we talk
  


 3   about it with the advisory board --
  


 4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  You know what, be
  


 5   careful what you wish for though.  Trust me on
  


 6   this.  Be careful what you wish for.  You don't
  


 7   need to open a whole can of worms.
  


 8              Okay.  Anything else to come before us?
  


 9              (No response.)
  


10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Don't we have
  


11   meetings throughout the year?
  


12              GAIL LUCCHINA:  No.  I was told that
  


13   there wasn't a date chosen.  Our hearing room will
  


14   be available at PURA.  Because I asked Tyra if we
  


15   already booked a date at PURA for January, and she
  


16   said no date was set in January.  So we are
  


17   looking to stay every other month.  We can
  


18   certainly do one --
  


19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.
  


20              GAIL LUCCHINA:  -- the first Tuesday.
  


21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have
  


22   a meeting of the planning council.  I hope we have
  


23   another steering committee meeting before the end
  


24   of the year.
  


25              GAIL LUCCHINA:  So you'd like the next
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 1   steering committee meeting before the end of the
  


 2   year?
  


 3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have
  


 4   a planning council and a steering committee
  


 5   meeting by the end of the year.  I think that's
  


 6   important because, God willing, we'll have
  


 7   NEIWPCC, we'll have a project manager, we'll have
  


 8   things to talk about, so we can have a --
  


 9              Okay?  Are we all set?
  


10              (No response.)
  


11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you
  


12   all very much.  Thank you to the people on the
  


13   phone.
  


14              Motion to adjourn.
  


15              GENE LIKENS:  So moved.
  


16              SAM GOLD:  Second.
  


17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those in
  


18   favor?
  


19              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.
  


20              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very
  


21   much.
  


22              (Whereupon, the above proceedings were
  


23   adjourned at 3:01 p.m.)
  


24
  


25
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            1              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon, 



            2   everyone, and welcome to the meeting of the State 



            3   Water Planning Steering Committee.  My name is 



            4   Jack Betkoski, Vice Chairman of the Public 



            5   Utilities Regulatory Authority.  And I think we'll 



            6   start by going around the table introducing 



            7   ourselves.  And we have a small crowd, so we can 



            8   introduce the audience as well.  



            9              This is being transcribed, this 



           10   meeting, and Lisa, my good friend from PURA, is 



           11   here today to transcribe this.  So why don't we go 



           12   right to left.



           13              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  David LeVasseur, 



           14   Office of Policy and Management.  



           15              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Mike Sullivan, 



           16   Deputy Commissioner of DEEP.  



           17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Virginia de Lima, 



           18   Science and Technology Steering Committee.  



           19              ROBERT MOORE:  Bob Moore with the 



           20   steering committee, and chair of the policy 



           21   subcommittee.  



           22              CHRIS CLARK:  Chris Clark, Mohegan 



           23   Tribal.    



           24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Maureen Westbrook, 



           25   Connecticut Water, and cochair of the advisory 
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            1   committee.  



            2              MARGARET MINER:  Margaret Miner, Rivers 



            3   Alliance of Connecticut, and cochair of the 



            4   advisory committee.  



            5              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  Susan Sayre, 



            6   Assistant Professor of Economics, Smith College.



            7              ANDREW LORD:  Andrew Lord, Connecticut 



            8   Association of Water Pollution Control Authority.  



            9              SAM GOLD:  Sam Gold, Lower Connecticut 



           10   River Council of Governments.  



           11              GENE LIKENS:  Gene Likens, aquatic 



           12   scientist.  



           13              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Elin Katz, Consumer 



           14   Counsel.



           15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Hi, I'm Ellen 



           16   Blaschinski, Department of Public Health.  



           17              DAVID SUTHERLAND:  David Sutherland, 



           18   the Nature Conservancy.  



           19              TONY MITCHELL:  Tony Mitchell, Rivers 



           20   Alliance.  



           21              ROBERT YOUNG:  Bob Young, Middletown 



           22   Water and Sewer.  



           23              ROBERT WESNESKI:  Bob Wesneski from the 



           24   Avon Water Company.



           25              MARTHA SMITH:  Martha Smith, West River 
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            1   Watershed Coalition.  



            2              THOMAS CALLAHAN:  Tom Callahan, UConn. 



            3              CHERYL CHASE:  Cheryl Chase, DEEP.



            4              DENISE RUZICKA:  Denise Ruzicka, DEEP.  



            5              BRUCE WITTCHEN:  Bruce Wittchen, DEEP.  



            6              ERIC LINDQUIST:  Eric Lindquist, OPM.  



            7              DAVID MURPHY:  David Murphy from Milone 



            8   & MacBroom.



            9              DAVID RADKA:  David Radka, Connecticut 



           10   Water.  



           11              MATTHEW PAFFORD:  Matt Pafford, OPM.  



           12              CORINNE FITTING:  Corinne Fitting, 



           13   DEEP.  



           14              LORI MATHIEU:  Lori Mathieu, DPH. 



           15              GAIL LUCCHINA:  Gail Lucchina, PURA.  



           16              NICHOLAS NEELEY:  Nick Neeley, PURA.



           17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Good afternoon.  



           18   My goodness gracious.  



           19              Where's Joe McGee?  



           20              JOSEPH McGEE:  I'm here. 



           21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.  Hello 



           22   Joe.  



           23              JOSEPH McGEE:  I can hear you 



           24   perfectly.  



           25              JULIE ZIMMERMAN:  Julie Zimmerman from 
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            1   Yale is on the phone too.  



            2              JOHN RUDIAK:  And John Rudiak is here 



            3   until Larry gets here about 2 p.m.



            4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Very good.  



            5              So we have a very lengthy agenda here 



            6   today, so we're going to get right into it.  So 



            7   we're going to start with Dave LeVasseur who has 



            8   an update on the procurement process.  



            9              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Thank you, Jack.  



           10              As everyone remembers from our 



           11   September meeting, I sort of laid out what we were 



           12   going to be presenting here today.  And Matt 



           13   Pafford from my staff and the other members of the 



           14   Water Planning Council have done a great job 



           15   helping us put together the chart that I e-mailed 



           16   out to everybody last Friday, along with various 



           17   options.  



           18              And as I indicated in September, we 



           19   really see from a contractual standpoint there 



           20   being a need for three separate agreements.  One, 



           21   to continue the project management role that Tom 



           22   Callahan so wonderfully handled up until September 



           23   1st, and to actually help us select a contractor 



           24   who will actually write the plan and do oversight 



           25   of that entity or individual, and obviously 
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            1   someone to direct the plan itself.  



            2              My focus, quite frankly, of the last 



            3   month was doing research on the oversight piece.  



            4   And as everybody saw from the chart, we stumbled 



            5   across the fact that we could actually use an MOU 



            6   with NEIWPCC because they're considered to be a 



            7   political entity, and therefore we can use an 



            8   expedited process.  So my recommendation was for 



            9   the piece of assisting us select a contractor and 



           10   contract oversight after the contractor is hired 



           11   to use NEIWPCC in that capacity.  So I brought 



           12   that to the group today for feedback.  I haven't 



           13   gotten any e-mail responses, so I'm hoping I'll 



           14   get some comments here today.  



           15              And I might as well hit number two as 



           16   well, which is the status of project management.  



           17   We still are up in the air and haven't heard a 



           18   decision from the university, so we really need to 



           19   start thinking about a plan B.  And I must confess 



           20   that I've had a hard time wrapping my arms around 



           21   that piece trying to find the right entity or 



           22   right individual to follow in Tom's footsteps.  So 



           23   I'm hoping for any suggestions for that as well.



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We haven't 



           25   received a statement with regard to that.  
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            1              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, we have not.  I 



            2   think we need to have a back-up plan just to be on 



            3   the safe side so we're not scrambling around.



            4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  We'll open 



            5   it up for discussion on both topics, one and two, 



            6   relative to the procurement process and the 



            7   project management process up for discussion.  



            8              ROBERT MOORE:  I had a question.  On 



            9   using NEIWPCC, you would contract directly with 



           10   them to do selection and oversight or just 



           11   selection?  



           12              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Selection and 



           13   oversight, and to actually help us in the 



           14   selection process.



           15              ROBERT MOORE:  Would they then be 



           16   responsible for making all the payments and stuff 



           17   like that, or would that be -- would they have an 



           18   oversight fee on top of that or -- 



           19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They would have a fee 



           20   that they would obviously be paid for providing 



           21   that service.  



           22              ROBERT MOORE:  And what would their 



           23   role be with the contractor, to do the planning?  



           24              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  To really do 



           25   day-to-day management and make sure they stay on 









                                      11                         



�





                                                                 





            1   task and help us establish benchmarks and 



            2   deliverables so that we can make sure that the 



            3   contractor stays on task.  



            4              ROBERT MOORE:  So that would be like 



            5   instead of having an employee, you know, from OPM 



            6   do it, they would be the contract manager?  



            7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.



            8              ROBERT MOORE:  And they would authorize 



            9   payments and all that stuff?  



           10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  They have to get 



           11   OPM's by law.  They have contractual authority on 



           12   behalf of the Water Planning Council in the Public 



           13   Act.  



           14              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would have the 



           15   ability to say, you know, payment is due, but they 



           16   wouldn't actually make the payment, the money 



           17   would flow from OPM to the contractor?  



           18              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  No, it would probably 



           19   go through NEIWPCC.  



           20              ROBERT MOORE:  So they would be 



           21   managing the plan.  



           22              And the other project manager that Tom 



           23   was filling, that's more to focus on keeping this 



           24   herd of people together?  



           25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  And making sure 
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            1   there's input and that everybody stays in 



            2   communication and we stay on goal.  



            3              ROBERT MOORE:  So that job would 



            4   basically be to manage us?  



            5              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Right.



            6              ROBERT MOORE:  And the other job would 



            7   be to manage the person doing the work?  



            8              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Correct.



            9              ROBERT MOORE:  I wasn't clear.  



           10              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And it's hard to 



           11   know which would be more difficult.



           12              ROBERT MOORE:  To manage us might be 



           13   more difficult.  



           14              THE COURT REPORTER:  Everybody speak 



           15   up.  That would be great.



           16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Virginia.



           17              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Some of other states 



           18   who developed plans went with a single large 



           19   consulting firm who filled all those roles.  Was 



           20   that considered?  



           21              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It was.  Because, as 



           22   you saw from the research that we did, it was 



           23   tough to find a single source individual because 



           24   of the breakdown of the DAS.  The list for 



           25   contracts are very specific, and we really 
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            1   couldn't find one that fit all the bill.  We 



            2   thought about NEIWPCC filling all those roles.  



            3   The only problem that I foresaw with that is with 



            4   them being located in Massachusetts, I don't know 



            5   how available they would be for us here in 



            6   Connecticut.  It's one thing to manage the 



            7   contractor because obviously there's a vested 



            8   interest in getting paid there, but I was a little 



            9   bit worried about their being located out of 



           10   state.



           11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Margaret.



           12              MARGARET MINER:  Do you have a draft or 



           13   sample MOU that we could have a look at?  



           14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I don't have one yet, 



           15   no.



           16              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And I guess we've 



           17   talked about this a number of times, and I think 



           18   the concept of the project manager perhaps being a 



           19   function of either NEIWPCC or the consultant 



           20   that's selected to the extent that we can minimize 



           21   the number of people who have roles here since we 



           22   already have multiple committees.  And it seems to 



           23   me that the fewer people we have leading it, the 



           24   more likely it is to have somebody responsible in 



           25   time to get it done.  But it could fulfill that 
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            1   project manager role even from the other state to 



            2   the extent there's so much more we do with 



            3   electronic -- 



            4              JOSEPH McGEE:  This is Joe McGee.  I 



            5   just lost the connection.  I can't hear the 



            6   speaker.  



            7              JOHN RUDIAK:  This is John Rudiak.  I 



            8   can't hear anyone except Jack.  



            9              (Pause.)



           10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Joe, can you hear 



           11   now?  



           12              JOSEPH McGEE:  Yes.  



           13              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We just need to 



           14   walk the microphone around as different people 



           15   talk apparently.  



           16              I had raised the question about whether 



           17   NEIWPCC might be able to fill that role or some 



           18   role with respect to project management, even with 



           19   being an out-of-state entity.  As we talked about 



           20   in the advisory group, our sense is we already 



           21   have multiple committees and multiple people 



           22   responsible at this level, and the more we can 



           23   consolidate the roles of those others that are 



           24   involved might be to our benefit to streamline 



           25   this and keep it moving.  So if there is an 
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            1   opportunity to have them do that, I guess that 



            2   would one of our observations.  And then I presume 



            3   they will have to develop an RFP to the scope, but 



            4   some RFP for a selection process.  



            5              Will they do the selection, or how does 



            6   that work?  



            7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  The selection will be 



            8   made by us.



            9              MARGARET MINER:  This is Margaret.  



           10   Just to the question of is there a sample model 



           11   MOU of this type available to see, and the answer 



           12   was not yet.



           13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.



           14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Maureen, to your 



           15   point, NEIWPCC has expressed a willingness to take 



           16   on that project management piece, so that's not 



           17   out of the realm of possibility.



           18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I mean, time is 



           19   of essence here, so we're going to have to make 



           20   some decision in terms of how we are going to 



           21   proceed.  



           22              ROBERT MOORE:  There are other MOUs 



           23   with NEIWPCC that have been developed in the past.  



           24   So the other question, was there other MOUs that 



           25   have been developed with NEIWPCC for different 









                                      16                         



�





                                                                 





            1   kinds of work?  



            2              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  Actually what's been 



            3   used in the past at NEIWPCC was the PSA.  And it 



            4   wasn't until I picked up the statute and actually 



            5   read it that I found out they were a body politic 



            6   and corporate.  And I ran it past our contracting 



            7   and legal folks, and they suggested that, just as 



            8   we did for the University of Connecticut, we can 



            9   enter into an MOU since we're both a member of 



           10   NEIWPCC and they're statutorily created as a body 



           11   politic and corporate so -- 



           12              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know who the person 



           13   would be, the prospective person to run this 



           14   project?   



           15              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  NEIWPCC hired a woman 



           16   named Jane Ceraso, I believe is her name, who has 



           17   an extensive background in water resource 



           18   management, over 20 years experience in 



           19   Massachusetts.  She's also an attorney and just 



           20   got hired by them, I believe, in August of this 



           21   year.



           22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  She just started.



           23              CHRIS CLARK:  Do we know, is she 



           24   involved with policy development?  



           25              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've actually talked 
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            1   to her on the phone.  We spoke with NEIWPCC in our 



            2   preliminary conversation.  So that was one of the 



            3   other strengths, and that's why I sent out the 



            4   e-mail that I sent on Friday that she has a very 



            5   strong background in water, as opposed to 



            6   wastewater, which is what NEIWPCC is primarily 



            7   known for.



            8              CHRIS CLARK:  We didn't see any 



            9   particulars but --



           10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  DEEP and Public 



           11   Health utilize them, right?  



           12              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  We have.  So DPH 



           13   used the hard process of the PSA.  We're glad to 



           14   learn now that there's a different option for 



           15   contracting, but we use them to assist us in 



           16   development.  So in the Safe Drinking Water Act 



           17   there's also a lot of new regulations.  It just is 



           18   very labor intensive for our staff, and so we use 



           19   them to help us with legal services predominantly, 



           20   but DPH, like DEEP, has been a member of NEIWPCC 



           21   for many years.  



           22              I would agree that, you know, it seems 



           23   like a lot of their funding is directed a little 



           24   bit more on the wastewater side, but they have 



           25   been involved in drinking water and more broadly 
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            1   just water issues.  Right now they have a Harmful 



            2   Algal Bloom Workgroup that is all of the New 



            3   England states working together to share science 



            4   impacts, land use factors that can contribute to 



            5   that.  So they have, I think, a breadth of 



            6   knowledge of water policy and issues.  



            7              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Betsey Wingfield.  



            8   And we have done extensive work with NEIWPCC, both 



            9   obviously in their capacity as sort of a policy 



           10   and opportunity for the state to get together, but 



           11   also contractual work.  We've done some 



           12   cooperative work with USGS and NEIWPCC.  We've 



           13   also done work with the Long Island Sound study 



           14   and NEIWPCC.  They're really good at figuring out 



           15   how to do contracting and how to manage projects 



           16   to move forward.  And typically I would say we do 



           17   one or two contracts a year.  Typically it has 



           18   been PSAs.  So we also evaluate the MOU option.  



           19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  Thank 



           20   you, Betsey.  



           21              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Just a cautionary 



           22   comment.  The state procurement and the federal is 



           23   very different.  USGS for years worked with them 



           24   under their, whatever term we're using, body 



           25   politic, whatever it was, and then our financial 
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            1   folks discovered they were a nonprofit and they 



            2   were no longer eligible for that kind of 



            3   arrangement, USGS.  So just a cautionary comment.  



            4   And the nonprofit status is on their web page.  



            5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other 



            6   comments?  



            7              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would like to 



            8   approach NEIWPCC and flush out a version of their 



            9   proposal for providing services and then bring it 



           10   to the Water Planning Council for formal vote, 



           11   probably do a special meeting since our next 



           12   meeting, I think, isn't until December 1st.  So 



           13   that would be my proposal on how to proceed.



           14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Just one further 



           15   question in terms of how do we deal with this in 



           16   the budget right now.  I mean, are we selecting 



           17   their services and then figure out what the budget 



           18   is for the consultant, or how does that work?  



           19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  It's all going to 



           20   come out of same pot.



           21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Okay.



           22              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  So we'll be -- I 



           23   imagine what we will do is back out whatever 



           24   agreement we come to for their services, and then 



           25   the remainder will be available for the 
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            1   consultant.



            2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  And then it gets to 



            3   the question of relative time commitment or budget 



            4   commitment for different aspects of the plan, 



            5   what's the date of the policy and the application 



            6   and all that stuff, how does that get determined, 



            7   is that through scope of services, or is the 



            8   planning council going to make that 



            9   recommendation?  How do you envision that?  



           10              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  I would envision that 



           11   the planning council will make the ultimate 



           12   determination, but obviously we will welcome any 



           13   input.



           14              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  We're just 



           15   concerned that half a million dollars sounds like 



           16   a lot of money, but it's not going to go far.



           17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, we've got 



           18   to get started.   



           19              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  We've got to get 



           20   started.



           21              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  Yes.



           22              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's, quite 



           23   frankly, with the project manager it didn't cost 



           24   us a penny so far.  That was just -- I'm hoping, 



           25   still optimistic, that maybe some kind of 
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            1   conclusive statement from UConn, but we've got to 



            2   move ahead with this.  But the ideal would be that 



            3   which doesn't cost us a penny.  



            4              Okay.  Any other comments?  This is 



            5   very important.  Any other comments or questions 



            6   or concerns?  



            7              And of course always feel free to 



            8   e-mail after the meeting today and us know what 



            9   you're thinking, but we're going to proceed with 



           10   this.  



           11              ROBERT MOORE:  Do you need a 



           12   recommendation from us to say move ahead?



           13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Yes, that would 



           14   be very nice.



           15              ROBERT MOORE:  I'll make a 



           16   recommendation that we move ahead on this.



           17              GENE LIKENS:  Second.



           18              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion made and 



           19   seconded that we move ahead in exploring an MOU 



           20   with NEIWPCC.  



           21              Any questions?  



           22              All those in favor signify by saying 



           23   aye.  



           24              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye. 



           25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Opposed?  
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            1              (No response.)



            2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Motion approved.  



            3   Thank you very much.  



            4              Lori, you're up.  We're going to have a 



            5   little presentation on the WUCC update by the 



            6   Department of Public Health.  



            7              LORI MATHIEU:  I'm Lori Mathieu.  I'm 



            8   the Section Chief of the drinking water section at 



            9   the State Department of Public Health under the 



           10   Bureau of Regulatory Services.  My immediate boss 



           11   is Ellen Blaschinski.  The Commissioner is Dr. 



           12   Jewel Mullen.  She's been with us since 2011.  



           13              So I'm here today to talk about the 



           14   coordinated water supply planning law and WUCC 



           15   process.  And what I want to do though is take you 



           16   a little bit back in time and talk a little bit 



           17   about history of drinking water regulation in 



           18   Connecticut.  I think it's important to let you 



           19   know about some of the laws, the statutes, the 



           20   thought process, and where we are today in our 



           21   regulation and oversight at the state level.  



           22              What my department does for drinking 



           23   water and what the drinking water section is 



           24   responsible to do and what the coordinated water 



           25   system water supply process is under regulation 
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            1   and statutes and the current status of what the 



            2   future plan of development is to move forward.  



            3              So some of the history.  Going way 



            4   back, 1798, the second President of the United 



            5   States, John Adams, developed the U.S. Public 



            6   Health Service.  So the regulation and oversight 



            7   of public health and water supply started that far 



            8   back, but not until 1912 did they start issuing 



            9   the advisories and public health advisory by the 



           10   Public Health Service, and that Public Health 



           11   Service oversaw drinking water regulation in the 



           12   United States until the U.S. EPA took it over in 



           13   1970.  



           14              The Connecticut Department of Public 



           15   Health started in the 1880s, and the very first 



           16   sign of the Department of Public Health being 



           17   involved in drinking water oversight is almost a 



           18   hundred years ago in 1917.  Our engineers were out 



           19   in the field looking at how many cows and sheep 



           20   and what have you in our drinking water supply 



           21   reservoirs.  So we have a hundred years of 



           22   regulatory oversight over the sanitary conditions 



           23   of our drinking water supplies.  



           24              U.S. EPA comes along in the early 



           25   1970s, produces the Safe Drinking Water Act in '74 
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            1   and the amendments of '86 and '96, and then the 



            2   Connecticut EPA received primacy of the Safe 



            3   Drinking Water Act in '76, and ever since has 



            4   adopted all of the amendments and the rules that 



            5   have come along with that.  



            6              So it was going on in the 19th century, 



            7   but there was a significant public health issue 



            8   going on.  If you consumed water, you had a pretty 



            9   good chance of getting sick or dying from that 



           10   sickness.  There was prevalent gastrointestinal 



           11   infection, disease, typhoid, cholera, dysentery.  



           12   They were prevalent.  And microorganisms were not 



           13   understood in the 1800s.  In the beginning of the 



           14   20th century though filtration, technology, 



           15   disinfection, sanitary protections started to be 



           16   better understood.  



           17              And what were the needs at the time?  A 



           18   lot of industry, a lot of growth and production, 



           19   fire safety, a lot of growth in the cities.  Water 



           20   supplies were totally inadequate, unfiltered, 



           21   unprotected.  If anyone has seen the NBC 



           22   production about the history of their development, 



           23   they're used to the reservoir over here in the 



           24   middle of the city, and it was unsanitary and 



           25   unprotected.  People got sick from drinking.  No 
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            1   treatment.  And in 1878 Connecticut State and 



            2   public health oversight started, and that agency 



            3   was created, and it exists today.  



            4              So in the early 20th century because of 



            5   the issues and the conditions that the public 



            6   health agency was seeing, around 1904 or 1905, 



            7   25-32 oversaw was created, oversaw the purity and 



            8   adequacy to ensure, and gave the responsibility to 



            9   the Department of Public Health to have oversight 



           10   and broad authority over public health and 



           11   drinking water supplies.  We oversee at that time 



           12   these laws came around in the early 1900s, 1910, 



           13   1920, gave the Department of Public Health 



           14   oversight of source approval, investigation, 



           15   pollution, threat of pollution, and other sanitary 



           16   conditions.  



           17              So fast forward about 50 or 60 years, a 



           18   number of significant laws passed in the seventies 



           19   and eighties which gave more responsibility to the 



           20   health department concerning water supply 



           21   planning, coordinating a water system planning 



           22   process we'll talk more about today, water company 



           23   land oversight, emergency response, and the 



           24   oversight of certified operators for water 



           25   systems.  
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            1              So what does our section do?  The 



            2   drinking water section under the Bureau of 



            3   Regulatory Services, we are to protect public 



            4   health.  We are responsible for the purity and 



            5   adequacy oversight statewide of all public water 



            6   systems.  The number one mission -- and a lot of 



            7   our agencies are mandated to look at program 



            8   measures and accountability, results-based 



            9   accountability.  Ours is pretty simple, no 



           10   water-borne disease outbreaks.  We don't want 



           11   anyone getting sick and dying because of drinking 



           12   water in the State of Connecticut.  You might say, 



           13   well, that doesn't happen, no one dies from 



           14   drinking water in the State of Connecticut, do 



           15   they?  So we'll go a little bit over some of 



           16   what's going on across the country, which is quite 



           17   interesting these days.  



           18              So our responsibilities.  I gave a 



           19   presentation a couple of weeks back in Texas, and 



           20   I was at an Association of State Drinking Water 



           21   Administrators, so everyone like me across the 



           22   country gets together and we have a lot of 



           23   discussions.  And they say, "Well, Lori, how hard 



           24   is your job, you oversee two systems, three 



           25   systems maybe, you know, it's not that big, right, 
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            1   the state is pretty small."  But we regulate -- 



            2   the drinking water section of the health 



            3   department regulates over 2,500 public water 



            4   systems.  And you might say why is that.  And we 



            5   often question that too.  Why is that?  



            6              So there's over 500 community systems.  



            7   Of those 550 community systems, 332 of those are 



            8   small that serve -- most of those 332 serve under 



            9   100 people, and all of those 332 are not owned by 



           10   a bigger system like Connecticut Water or 



           11   Aquarion.  They're owned by who?  Well, the 



           12   homeowners' association, condominium association, 



           13   basically volunteers.  Yes, they have a certified 



           14   water operator who's a professional who runs the 



           15   system, but the responsible party, if we issue a 



           16   violation, goes to the owner, not the certified 



           17   operator.  



           18              There are over 2,000 noncommunity 



           19   systems.  What's a noncommunity system?  Well, my 



           20   town, I live in Coventry, there's 28 of them.  



           21   There's a CVS with a well.  There is a Dunkin' 



           22   Donuts with a well.  There is a Walgreens with a 



           23   well.  There's a Highland Park Market with a well.  



           24   Each one of those is a system, a noncommunity 



           25   system that the Department of Public Health 
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            1   regulates and oversees.  There's 2,000 of them, 



            2   and they grow every single day.  



            3              There's over 150 reservoir systems, 



            4   over 4,000 groundwater supplies, many of those 



            5   small bedrock wells, under 10 gallons a minute.  



            6   And we by far have the largest number of systems 



            7   in New England, which is kind of funny.  We're 



            8   considered a medium-sized state in the regulatory 



            9   scheme of EPA, which is not good really.  We're a 



           10   small state.  We shouldn't be considered a 



           11   medium-sized state.  



           12              This shows in blue.  You can't really 



           13   see it that well, but it shows the water service 



           14   areas in the State of Connecticut that serve 



           15   public water.  And you can see that it follows the 



           16   main corridors, I-84, 91 and 95, but it's also 



           17   scattered about in the state.  It doesn't serve a 



           18   lot of obviously, you all know, rural parts of the 



           19   state.  We don't have public water distribution 



           20   everywhere.  And these are the sources.  And these 



           21   are the watersheds, the greens are the watersheds.  



           22              So we have sources scattered about.  



           23   The blues are the aqua protection areas that are 



           24   assigned and overseen by DEEP.  And the reds are 



           25   dots of wells, the protection areas for wells.  So 
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            1   there's wells everywhere.  There's watersheds in 



            2   many towns that affect about 80 or 90 towns, 



            3   watershed lands.  So we have a lot of sources and 



            4   a lot of systems spread out over our state.  



            5              Most of our reservoirs look like this.  



            6   This is a reservoir in the Town of Ledyard.  It's 



            7   well protected.  You don't see anybody water 



            8   skiing or swimming.  You don't see industrial 



            9   discharges up above it.  You see a lot of land 



           10   protected.  You see a well-protected source.  Many 



           11   of our reservoirs aren't exactly like this, but 



           12   many of our small sources are like this.  



           13              This is a dug well with a cracked cap 



           14   right next to a stream.  So for our new engineers 



           15   we usually show this and say name the number of 



           16   violations.  There's about eight of them, 



           17   violations.  Many of these sources, those sources 



           18   that serve noncommunity systems, we tend to find 



           19   quite often have this situation.  It's a bad 



           20   situation.  Go back to the unsanitary conditions, 



           21   right.  And in this could be mice, rats, all kinds 



           22   of things that create unsanitary conditions and 



           23   poor public health policy.  We have to -- our 



           24   engineers get involved with looking at replacement 



           25   of these sources.  And believe me, if this serves 
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            1   a business, this is not a good thing.  And we find 



            2   this time and time again.  A business, a day care, 



            3   this is a bad situation that exists across the 



            4   state.  



            5              So the drinking water section has two 



            6   primary roles.  The primacy of the Safe Drinking 



            7   Water Act.  We have a whole host of state 



            8   statutory oversight, which I went over before, 



            9   most of which came from 100 years ago.  So in our 



           10   primacy our engineers, about 30 of them, go out 



           11   and review every system on a three to five-year 



           12   basis.  We also oversee treatment and source 



           13   review and approval.  We oversee a Drinking Water 



           14   State Revolving Loan Fund program that we work 



           15   with the DEEP, our sister agency, on under the 



           16   Clean Water Fund.  We've been able to loan over I 



           17   think on average over the last three years about 



           18   $30 million a year to our public water systems 



           19   statewide to help on infrastructure replacements.  



           20              We oversee drinking water quality, and 



           21   over a half a million water quality samples come 



           22   into our office every year, we have oversight of 



           23   that.  And obviously we have a huge enforcement 



           24   component making sure the systems do what they're 



           25   supposed to do, as well as operators.  Recently 
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            1   we've adopted the Groundwater Rule and are working 



            2   toward adopting the revised Total Coliform Rule, 



            3   which those two rules really will change the way 



            4   public water systems are overseen and have been 



            5   overseen since the seventies.  These are really 



            6   changing the game for these systems and putting a 



            7   lot more pressure on those small systems because 



            8   they have to do things differently and are going 



            9   to have to spend probably a lot more money to get 



           10   their system into compliance.  



           11              We have a lot of state statutory 



           12   oversight in water company-owned lands.  A hundred 



           13   thousand acres of water company lands are 



           14   regulated.  Water companies can't just sell or 



           15   change the use of that property without a permit 



           16   from the commissioner of DPH.  We oversee 



           17   recreational permitting over that land, sale of 



           18   excess water permits, certified operators, and we 



           19   also oversee plans, individual plans and regional 



           20   plan.  



           21              Now I put this slide in here just for 



           22   interest because it brings you back to a lot 



           23   people say, well, it's just another utility.  But 



           24   it's the only utility that you consume, and people 



           25   can get sick.  So actually my slide is wrong.  
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            1   Legionella is number one, is the number one cause 



            2   across the country of drinking water outbreaks, 



            3   waterborne disease outbreaks.  In New York City 



            4   there were 11 deaths attributed to drinking water 



            5   and Legionella outbreaks, 11.  In Pennsylvania 



            6   there have been in the last three years 12 deaths 



            7   due to Legionella in public drinking water.  In 



            8   the VA Hospital across the country, across the 



            9   country, 13 deaths due to Legionella.  



           10              Now I'll just leave you with this 



           11   question.  Ebola.  How many people in the United 



           12   States died from Ebola?  I think one.  I think 



           13   one.  



           14              So Legionella is an up-and-coming issue 



           15   within drinking water.  EPA just issued a 



           16   technical guidance.  It's a difficult thing to get 



           17   your hands around.  It's not simple, easy, throw 



           18   more chlorine in the water and we're done with it.  



           19   So there's still ongoing waterborne disease 



           20   outbreaks, there's still issues to deal with, and 



           21   it's a real serious issue which has come into 



           22   Connecticut, and we're even talking about it with 



           23   the water commissioner with Legionella, in 



           24   particular.  



           25              So what's important?  Well, obviously 
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            1   to many communities to have an abundant source of 



            2   water supply means a lot to them.  It really does 



            3   mean preservation of the public trust because as 



            4   soon as a business has an E. coli and they have to 



            5   post "do not drink the water" and they have to 



            6   throw out their food and they have to throw out 



            7   their ice, and they have to close down for three 



            8   or four days to clean out the whole system, the 



            9   public trust starts to get lost, the chief-elected 



           10   officials, the townspeople, the town councils, 



           11   they start to get concerned.  And ensuring 



           12   sanitary conditions for many facilities such as 



           13   schools, nursing homes, restaurants, hospitals, 



           14   day cares, those are so important to people when 



           15   you think about it.  If something goes wrong in a 



           16   school, there's a real problem.  And we've had 



           17   some situations lately with some waterborne 



           18   disease issues in schools.  It's been interesting.  



           19   There's a lot of interesting stuff going on, and 



           20   people are concerned, specifically what's gone on 



           21   in New York City lately.  



           22              So it's the public trust.  And 



           23   obviously economic growth, but in our world we 



           24   think it's priceless.  We have good sanitary 



           25   conditions and well-protected sources and abundant 
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            1   sources so that you can serve who you need to 



            2   serve in your town.  We think it's priceless.  



            3              So what's the process that we're 



            4   talking about today, the planning process, 



            5   coordinated water system planning process?  We'll 



            6   go through the statutes.  And it's a legal 



            7   process.  Why does it exist?  Where did it come 



            8   from?  What's going on?  What's the present 



            9   status?  And what's the future of the process?  



           10   And how are we going to accomplish the mission 



           11   that was set about 30 years ago in the 



           12   legislature?  



           13              Well, the coordinated water system 



           14   plan, which is for water supply, came about 



           15   because of the 1981/1982 drought.  Now people in 



           16   the room, Denise Ruzicka, I don't know if you were 



           17   hired yet at DPH, but the laws that came out of 



           18   that drought were significant and changed the 



           19   course of many different things that went on.  



           20   There was a water research task force.  I think 



           21   all of you on the committee here have a copy 



           22   somewhere of that report that came out at that 



           23   time.  If you have the time, you should read that 



           24   report.  It's very interesting what was going on 



           25   at the time and the thought process of why we 
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            1   needed to create a whole series of new law because 



            2   of this scare.  There were literally days of water 



            3   left I think in Greenwich.  Maybe Bob, you might 



            4   know a lot more about this than I do.  So there 



            5   were days -- and people were afraid they were 



            6   going to run out of water.  They couldn't get 



            7   enough water if people needed it.  



            8              So the report in many parts created a 



            9   whole series of laws.  And the laws we're going to 



           10   focus in on today will be the planning laws, the 



           11   individual water supply planning laws, as well as 



           12   the regional planning laws known as the WUCC 



           13   process.  



           14              So there are statutes and there are 



           15   regulations, and there's a legislative intent 



           16   right in the statute which you don't see anymore.  



           17   You don't see that.  They don't do that anymore.  



           18   But to me 25-33c says it all about what is the 



           19   need for the WUCC process and that DPH shall 



           20   administer the process to coordinate the plan.  



           21              Here are all the statutes, so it's not 



           22   just one little statute, it's many statutes.  A 



           23   complicated process was set out.  Denise Ruzicka 



           24   and Anne Gobin, in my understanding, went over to 



           25   the State of Washington in the mid-eighties to go 
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            1   study their process, and maybe Maureen Westbrook.



            2              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  (Shaking head in 



            3   the negative.)



            4              LORI MATHIEU:  You didn't go to 



            5   Washington?  But Maureen did work for the Health 



            6   Department in the eighties.  



            7              So that process was brought over from 



            8   the State of Washington and took what is known as 



            9   the WUCC process which puts together a series of 



           10   essentially four plans -- actually three, three 



           11   major pieces:  An assessment of water supply on a 



           12   regional basis; an exclusive service area 



           13   document; and then what's known as an integrated 



           14   report or a coordinated water system plan.  And it 



           15   brings it all together.  Think of the WUCC plan as 



           16   a 50-year water supply plan for the entire state.  



           17   It coordinates water system planning so that our 



           18   water systems are not trying to serve the same 



           19   area with different water systems, they're not 



           20   competing with one another because that's 



           21   uncoordinated and a waste of time and money, and 



           22   that there's consistency among plans so that 



           23   municipalities and anyone who would like to know 



           24   would know who's going to serve where and when and 



           25   who has the capacity to do that.  
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            1              So the regulations, this whole series 



            2   of regulations that go along with this, talks 



            3   about all it sets out, the whole set of 



            4   responsibilities of the WUCC.  It sets out the 



            5   pieces of each one of plan -- assessment and 



            6   boundaries and report summary.  There's 



            7   regulations that require pieces to be part of 



            8   those plans, and it talks about preparation, 



            9   submission, approval.  So every part of the 



           10   planning process is either in statute or 



           11   regulation.  



           12              So what have we done over the years?  



           13   Well, in '86, '87, '88, we started, we came up 



           14   with seven areas, seven regions.  We started with 



           15   the Housatonic and moved to the upper Connecticut 



           16   River, South Central and the Southeast.  We've 



           17   created four plans under those statutes and 



           18   regulations.  Only one of them is approved, and 



           19   that's the Southeast.  These were convened in the 



           20   eighties, but the Northeast, the Northwest Hills 



           21   and the Southwest were never convened.  So today 



           22   there are plans, regional plans that exist for 



           23   these four areas, but not for the Northeast, 



           24   Northwest Hills, and Southwest.  



           25              So the idea has always been over the 
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            1   last many years for the Health Department to move 



            2   forward and to try to finish this process 



            3   statewide and get these other plans up to date.  



            4   So these just break out when these were convened 



            5   and when the plans were approved.  



            6              So what have we done recently?  So in 



            7   2014 we filed our statute, which guides us through 



            8   the process of revising the boundaries to kind of 



            9   get an updated boundary and try to reduce the 



           10   amount of areas that we were dealing with.  



           11   Instead of seven, there should be something more 



           12   like four or three or two maybe.  



           13              So we took in a lot of comments.  We've 



           14   reviewed all those comments.  We followed the law.  



           15   The law breaks out eight factors that we actually 



           16   have to consider in looking at the boundaries.  



           17   And we wanted to assure a couple of things:  One, 



           18   we didn't want to cut a town in half; and two, we 



           19   wanted to follow the new boundaries of the council 



           20   of governments that were just being set through 



           21   this process; and third, we thought it would -- 



           22   well, third and fourth.  Third was really 



           23   important with the watershed.  We heard a lot of 



           24   comments from the environmental groups.  We said, 



           25   look, try to follow the major drainage basin 
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            1   boundaries.  And fourth, there's a requirement to 



            2   look at carefully not splitting a water system in 



            3   half, to keep your water system whole, along with 



            4   the sources.  



            5              And so putting all those factors 



            6   together, we produced a report for Commissioner 



            7   Mullen in October of last year, and we came up -- 



            8   and these are the eight factors under the statute 



            9   that we are required to review.  And the map that 



           10   I handed out shows these boundaries.  These are 



           11   the three new WUCC areas, and they do not break up 



           12   the council of government of any towns.  They try 



           13   really hard to follow the major drainage basins, 



           14   and we try really hard not to break up water 



           15   systems, but we did, and we couldn't avoid it.  



           16   And we couldn't avoid not strictly following the 



           17   major drainage with these boundaries, but we tried 



           18   as best as we could.  



           19              So the WUCCs, why are they important?  



           20   A lot of people ask me why even bother, you know, 



           21   why even bother with this effort.  Because it 



           22   really on a regional basis water utilities need to 



           23   come together to talk with the towns, the town 



           24   planners.  It really drives that to meet with the 



           25   council of governments to get the council of 
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            1   government staff directly involved in the water 



            2   supply planning and regional planning and needs of 



            3   their towns and their council government areas.  



            4   It brings together issues that local health 



            5   directors bring more attention about pollution of 



            6   private wells.  It brings in the town planners 



            7   when they're thinking about where they're going to 



            8   move water or where they think they have enough 



            9   water.  A lot of times in towns they will make 



           10   decisions without having a clue as to is there 



           11   enough water supply to serve the subdivision or 



           12   not.  There are assumptions that are made all the 



           13   time in local decisions.  



           14              So it really needs to also highlight to 



           15   bring forward what are the needs of the state, 



           16   what are the needs of the region, are there 



           17   priority areas that need attention immediately 



           18   because there's a public health issue.  And it's 



           19   also a forum in the meetings that are held between 



           20   the members, the members of the public water 



           21   systems and the council of government and 



           22   executive directors, to resolve issues locally, 



           23   not by the state agencies.  The state agencies are 



           24   not members.  Ourselves, OPM, DEEP and PURA, we're 



           25   kind of on the outside looking in on this process.  
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            1   We don't drive this process.  The members do, the 



            2   public water systems and the council of 



            3   governments do.  So it's a guide for system 



            4   growth, it's a guide to coordinate individual 



            5   plans, and also to look at areas of exclusive 



            6   water service.  



            7              So moving forward what are we doing?  



            8   We've been gathering information, working with a 



            9   consulting firm, Milone & MacBroom, over the last 



           10   couple of months.  We've held three -- in 



           11   September we held three informational meetings in 



           12   the three new WUCC areas.  We would like -- and 



           13   we've been developing standard procedures under 



           14   the regulatory requirements and been working to 



           15   move those out and get people thinking about 



           16   setting up standard process and how to vote or not 



           17   vote or how to proceed under the meeting 



           18   structure.  And our plan is early '16 for DPH to 



           19   hire a consultant to assist the three WUCCs to 



           20   move forward and produce the plan for each one of 



           21   the three areas.  So we plan to convene under our 



           22   commissioner's authority to convene the three 



           23   WUCCs in early 2016.  



           24              So again, the WUCCs will tell you a 



           25   number of things.  You will know what are the 
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            1   water supply needs and where is the excess 



            2   capacity or who thinks they have excess capacity.  



            3   We would have a plan to meet future water supply 



            4   needs.  We include all partners and stakeholders 



            5   in the public meetings that are held.  We're going 



            6   to focus on -- and this is something that I know 



            7   we talked -- our agency, as well as DEEP, we 



            8   talked a lot about water conservation and the need 



            9   to get really serious about water conservation.  



           10   Instead of using our precious water that we 



           11   protect so well with our sources just for 



           12   irrigation, there needs to be a time where we're 



           13   thinking differently, as well as emergency 



           14   preparedness has changed dramatically just over 



           15   the last five years and the need to be more 



           16   prepared than we've ever been before.  



           17              We want a complete statewide whole 



           18   plan, and we want to make it a dynamic plan and an 



           19   implementable plan, not something that's going to 



           20   sit on the shelf and collect dust.  So there's 



           21   been a lot of interest in what the data collection 



           22   contract has been and what we've been doing in the 



           23   last few months with help from Milone & MacBroom.  



           24   Dave Murphy is here today.  Milone & MacBroom has 



           25   been collecting and organizing data that will be 
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            1   utilized -- that will be part of the WUCC process, 



            2   part of the WUCC plan.  And their work will be 



            3   done by the end of the year, collecting and 



            4   organizing information, and we're going to be 



            5   tying it to GIS information trying to make 



            6   everything digital, unlike what we did 20 or 30 



            7   years ago.  



            8              So these are the pieces of information 



            9   that are getting collected.  I know there's some 



           10   interest in this as well, so I have a few slides 



           11   that goes from -- and it's everything that needs 



           12   to be pulled together, basic level of information 



           13   that's going to be used to put together the plan.  



           14   So all of these pieces of information are getting 



           15   collected and organized so that we're ready to go 



           16   at the beginning of 2016, as well as all this, 



           17   safe yield, purchased water, growth trends.  A lot 



           18   of this information is coming out of individual 



           19   water supply plans from the utilities from the 



           20   Department of Public Health record.  



           21              So here's my schematic of what I think 



           22   about because I get a lot of questions about, 



           23   well, the WUCC is the water plan and water plan is 



           24   the WUCC.  No, it really isn't.  It really isn't 



           25   because the WUCC is just one small piece of what 
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            1   the state water plan is set up to do.  The 



            2   legislation is pretty clear.  You have 17 items to 



            3   consider.  The WUCC is just one input of that 



            4   talking about water supply needs and public health 



            5   needs for water supply.  That's all it is.  And 



            6   people ask me, well, it's going to do this, it's 



            7   going to do that, it's terrible, it's this, it's 



            8   that, it's the Darth Vader of water, you know, 



            9   it's terrible.  And I say, you know what, all it 



           10   is is a plan.  It's a plan.  It's a plan that 30 



           11   years ago we thought was so important to get done.  



           12   We didn't get it done.  The shame of it is it 



           13   didn't get done years ago, but our mission is to 



           14   finish the process.  The planning process takes 



           15   two years.  And once we convene we have two years 



           16   to finish the plans.  So we believe that, you 



           17   know, by end of the year '18 we'll have all of 



           18   these plans complete.  By the year '19 we'll have 



           19   one plan that we can hand to anybody to talk about 



           20   water supply needs, either regionally or locally 



           21   or statewide.  



           22              So thank you.  And thank you for your 



           23   time listening to me.  I appreciate it.



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very 



           25   much, Lori.  Excellent presentation.  You really 
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            1   gave a great history of the water issues you've 



            2   had in the state.  



            3              So I'll open it up for any questions or 



            4   anything you might have for Lori.



            5              ROBERT MOORE:  Lori, the WUCC is going 



            6   to be faced with the same issues that we have in 



            7   this plan.  A lot of the information that was in 



            8   the WUCC is going to be redacted from the plan.  



            9   How are you going to handle that?  



           10              This is Maureen's question but -- 



           11              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I know.  



           12              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's an 



           13   interesting question because we've been at the 



           14   forefront -- 



           15              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  I think you have to 



           16   go to the podium.



           17              LORI MATHIEU:  Okay.  FOI is an 



           18   interesting question.  We've been dealing with it 



           19   since the FOI law passed in 2003.  To be honest 



           20   with you, we didn't really understand the full 



           21   benefit of when it passed.  It passed under an 



           22   implementer bill, from what I remember.  It did 



           23   not have a public hearing.  And no one had a 



           24   chance to comment on it.  If we did, and we had a 



           25   chance as agencies to study it, I don't think it 
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            1   would have passed in the way it's passed today.  



            2              When you read it, it says, you know -- 



            3   I had my folder.  Anyway, it's over there.  But it 



            4   says -- you know, it gives some very specific 



            5   potability assessments, emergency plans, you know, 



            6   all these other things, very specific items.  And 



            7   then it says and portions of water supply plans 



            8   that may present a risk, bla, bla, bla, bla, bla, 



            9   and there's a couple other fuzzy phrases there 



           10   that put in a lot of -- they're not objective; 



           11   they're very subjective.  



           12              So it brings up, you know, a lot of 



           13   judgment.  So when we get an FOI request, like the 



           14   request we got from Margaret for all four of the 



           15   plans, the latest one was for Margaret, so we said 



           16   let's go through the process.  The process is we 



           17   go to the Department of Administrative Services 



           18   for a security risk review, and specifically Jeff 



           19   Beckham, who's their lead counsel, spends his 



           20   time, along with the head of security for 



           21   buildings, Ray Philbrick, spends his time working 



           22   with us.  We work on the redactions with them, and 



           23   it takes an awful lot of time.  There's a lot of 



           24   judgment call.  And frankly having been a 



           25   conservative, I would say yes because of the 
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            1   judgment call involved.  It's a serious issue, 



            2   even today, security risk, a serious issue.  Just 



            3   ask anybody who's involved with it.  



            4              I understand Art House was talking 



            5   about cybersecurity.  It's still today a risk.  I 



            6   still see the security reviews that come across my 



            7   desk.  There still are threats, people looking to 



            8   gather information to do harm to public water 



            9   systems.  So it really is still a threat, but I 



           10   think the law needs to change, if you ask me.  And 



           11   you did, you asked me, so I'm going to -- I think 



           12   the law needs to change.  I will get -- Ellen and 



           13   I were talking.  We talk a lot about it.  One of 



           14   the things we talked about recently was the amount 



           15   of time my staff took to redact those WUCC plans, 



           16   over 30 hours of my staff's time.  And you can't 



           17   give that to an intern, you have to give it to a 



           18   person who has experience in doing the redactions.  



           19   We gave it to a person who was at a lower pay, and 



           20   he looked at it and he did, he gave it to his 



           21   supervisor, and the supervisor totally redid it, 



           22   80 percent different from the intern to the 



           23   supervisor.  



           24              So to me it shows the law isn't very 



           25   clear, it doesn't work very well, the process is 
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            1   lengthy, and anybody who deals with FOI as a state 



            2   agency or a local agency knows that you have to be 



            3   responsive or people get upset at you.  



            4              Right, Margaret?  You know.  



            5              MARGARET MINER:  I'm a very calm 



            6   person.



            7              LORI MATHIEU:  And we've heard you over 



            8   the years.  And frankly you and I talked about 



            9   this.  It's such a frustrating process because 



           10   you, under FOI, should be able to share 



           11   information that you want to share and be clear 



           12   about it, and we can't do that because it's such a 



           13   very subjective process under the statute.  And 



           14   frankly I think the statute needs to change.  So 



           15   that's just my editorial.



           16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Stay there, Lori, 



           17   in case there's any -- 



           18              Yes, Margaret.



           19              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.  Thank you, Lori, 



           20   for that.  If anybody wants to see, I mean, the 



           21   latest plans I asked for are the ones that have 



           22   been public for, you know, until recently for ten 



           23   years, eight years.  You can go to the web site 



           24   and look at the plans, and you'll see the blacked 



           25   out sections where data is.  And sometimes I don't 
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            1   know what there is under it.  It's like a whole 



            2   half page marked up.  I'm assuming it's something 



            3   critical.  But you can see for yourselves what 



            4   those plans look like.  So yes, I've been hesitant 



            5   to create more that's just going to be redacted.  



            6              Two questions:  At one of the 



            7   presentations you did, Lori, Mary Mushinsky stood 



            8   up, Representative Mary Mushinsky, and said the 



            9   WUCC plan should be coordinated or integrated with 



           10   the water planning, the comprehensive water 



           11   planning.  I understand your reasons saying no, 



           12   but there is really a large overlap in the data 



           13   that's needed and the planning that's needed to be 



           14   done because in the WUCC statute there was no -- 



           15   there was very little comprehensive water 



           16   planning.  And so the requirement is to do 



           17   assessments of regional environmental assets, as 



           18   well as water supply planning.  



           19              So I do feel the plans overlap and that 



           20   your arrows that you showed, you know, WUCCs will 



           21   just be one source of information in forming the 



           22   comprehensive plan.  It's not just a little arrow 



           23   among many, it is a big part.  It should have a 



           24   big arrow.  And, you know, that sometimes we feel 



           25   like you'll do the water supply planning, and 
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            1   we'll get what's left after you all do your water 



            2   supply planning.  I know that's simplistic.  



            3              The other problem that I've seen over 



            4   the years is that it's really an exclusionary 



            5   process with very vague governing guidelines or 



            6   criteria.  And most WUCC meetings, I don't know 



            7   how many members have even been notified, they may 



            8   have been notified or some.  I don't think people 



            9   know how to notify them.  The customers are not at 



           10   the table.  Really the main purpose of the WUCCs, 



           11   as I understand it, is to set up exclusive service 



           12   areas.  And I have some questions about their 



           13   enforceability, how that's done.  But in general 



           14   it sets up exclusive service areas for water 



           15   supply throughout the state so there's not a 



           16   competition, there is organization.  I would think 



           17   it would be very important to have the customers 



           18   represented.  Customers who are familiar with 



           19   water companies may have feelings about one more 



           20   than the other or experience.  



           21              So that's -- and of course 



           22   environmental.  You say we can come to the 



           23   meeting, customers can come to the meeting, but as 



           24   far as I know there's no significant input.  As it 



           25   happens, you and many people at DPH are very 
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            1   responsive, but officially and formally we can get 



            2   up and say something but nobody needs to pay 



            3   attention to it.  So the exclusionary, the 



            4   exclusionary aspect, the overlap with water 



            5   planning, why should we be putting energy into two 



            6   separate roads, and then of course, but I don't 



            7   have to say another word about FOI.  



            8              So I am worried about the WUCC process.  



            9   Also, I think it's very hard to follow the 



           10   statute.  I have no -- the statute has multiple 



           11   layers of hearings, approvals, new hearings, back 



           12   and forth, but I guess that will be your problem 



           13   to worry about.



           14              LORI MATHIEU:  If you want to see 



           15   layers, look at the Groundwater Rule.  These laws 



           16   are nothing compared to Federal Law and then the 



           17   laws that these water systems are going to have to 



           18   deal with.  So this is where we disagree.  I don't 



           19   know if you had a question in there.  Most of that 



           20   was statements but --  



           21              MARGARET MINER:  I did want to make the 



           22   points I made.  You have answered one of my 



           23   questions on FOI in a very nice way, so perhaps 



           24   you have other answers.



           25              LORI MATHIEU:  So the exclusionary 
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            1   part, I don't think it's exclusionary at all.  As 



            2   a matter of fact, they're public meetings 



            3   published under the Secretary of State and 



            4   published with the town clerks right now which is 



            5   a wonderful process.  They actually put it up on 



            6   line.  So these are publicized meetings open to 



            7   the public, and we've never excluded anyone from 



            8   coming, ever.  As contentious as the Southeast 



            9   area was, we've never stopped anyone from coming 



           10   to those meeting, ever.  



           11              So it's a wide-open process and 



           12   everyone is allowed to come and speak, set as an 



           13   agenda, and there's open forum for people to come 



           14   and speak.  And over the years there's been many 



           15   people that have come and have put their items on 



           16   the table that are not members that have been a 



           17   big part, including the Farmington River Watershed 



           18   Association in the eighties had an extra report 



           19   completed.  Denise might remember more of this, 



           20   and Jim Connelly and Gary Johnson were a part of 



           21   this, spent a year-long process working on an 



           22   extra report as part of the WUCC to address the 



           23   concerns that were brought forward at the time 



           24   between the MDC and the Farmington River Watershed 



           25   Association.  
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            1              So the WUCC does listen.  So that's 



            2   what I say about that.  It is not exclusionary at 



            3   all.  And the members are the public water 



            4   systems, as well as the council of governments.  



            5   And I think the council of government membership 



            6   brings a lot to the table as far as bringing in 



            7   the true planners, the people that understand the 



            8   region, the people that understand the water 



            9   supply needs within those areas.  To me it's not 



           10   an exclusionary process.  It's a very open 



           11   process, very well-publicized process.  And if you 



           12   have any other ideas about getting the word out, 



           13   we have an extensive other interested party, as 



           14   Bruce does, for this process, a very extensive 



           15   other interested party e-mail list that we e-mail 



           16   around to just about everybody we can think of to 



           17   involve them in the process.  



           18              So we have many meetings.  They are 



           19   open.  They are published.  And, you know, we're 



           20   going to move forward.  I think that moving 



           21   forward now I think is more important than ever 



           22   because we need the information for this process.  



           23   The data that's getting collected will be very 



           24   informative to the state water plan.  And so we're 



           25   going to put it in a form and format that can be 
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            1   used for anybody.  



            2              Now in every one of those pieces on 



            3   those slides that I shared with you there's a lot 



            4   of FOI issues with every one of those pieces 



            5   unfortunately.  And in the eighties you could 



            6   share those broadly, in the nineties you could 



            7   share them broadly, but after 2011, you know -- 



            8   after 2001, sorry, 2001, you can't because of the 



            9   law that passed.  



           10              So I think there needs to be a real 



           11   serious review of the FOI law and to have 



           12   people sit -- and we tried years ago.  We didn't 



           13   get too far.  



           14              MARGARET MINER:  We all did try.



           15              LORI MATHIEU:  I just saw an e-mail 



           16   from Betsey right before this meeting sending out 



           17   information to this group about FOI.  So maybe we 



           18   can have a real serious discussion and make some 



           19   change that makes a lot of sense to the agencies 



           20   that have been dealing with the redactions and the 



           21   amount of time we've spent in this process.  And I 



           22   think Jeff Beckham is a key to that because he's a 



           23   very important piece in reviewing the security 



           24   risk.



           25              MARGARET MINER:  I just want to 
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            1   mention, not a question, but I have been asked, 



            2   well, do you impose all security redactions.  No, 



            3   there are secrets for security like your computer 



            4   operating systems and how you access them.  I 



            5   don't know how secure they are, but we're not 



            6   interested in them.  And if it's really a secret, 



            7   either we don't need it, don't want it, or we 



            8   don't even know about it.  So we're not -- we do 



            9   recognize it's a dangerous world, and water 



           10   utilities should be doing a lot, maybe more than 



           11   they're doing about security, and we support that.  



           12   We just feel this missed the target widely the 



           13   laws on FOI.  And I thank you for reviewing it.



           14              LORI MATHIEU:  Sure.  Thank you.



           15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other 



           16   questions for Lori?  



           17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So Lori, thanks.  



           18   This is great.  I feel partly responsible.  I 



           19   remember back when we started this hearing I think 



           20   I was the one that said what's a WUCC.  So thank 



           21   you very much.  



           22              I've got just a couple of questions.  I 



           23   was taking notes.  And I think back in the -- I 



           24   think you were saying back in the eighties you 



           25   were initially looking at seven regions?  
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            1              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.



            2              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  And three regions 



            3   didn't make any progress at all?  



            4              LORI MATHIEU:  Right.  



            5              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  The others came up 



            6   with plans and then one, Southeast -- 



            7              LORI MATHIEU:  Is approved, yes.



            8              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  -- is approved.  



            9   What's going to happen with, for example, 



           10   Southeast now that these three kind of super 



           11   regions, what happens to the -- 



           12              LORI MATHIEU:  Existing plans?  



           13              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  How does that -- do 



           14   they have to start all over again?



           15              LORI MATHIEU:  The existing plans don't 



           16   go away.  They become incorporated as part of the 



           17   planning process.



           18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Do they have to like 



           19   revisit?  



           20              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes, they have to be 



           21   updated, absolutely.  



           22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  I guess, I'm just 



           23   jumping around here a little bit.  On the FOIA 



           24   question, and I agree with you, but I wonder -- 



           25   and changes do need to be made.  I wonder in the 
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            1   meantime -- and it takes a while to change law.  



            2   Maybe we'll be here seven months from now, 



            3   whatever the time frame is.  And I wonder if there 



            4   is like some benefit to having like the policy 



            5   committee kind of take a look at this.  If one of 



            6   the questions is like how state agencies interpret 



            7   the law, and if it's vague, then perhaps there's 



            8   some merit to having some of the members of the 



            9   policy group take a look at it to see if there is 



           10   a different set of eyes like this is how we think 



           11   you might kind of deal with some of the issues 



           12   that Margaret has raised and that Lori has talked 



           13   about as well, that kind of in the meantime enable 



           14   us to make some progress in this area because a 



           15   lot of our efforts have been dependent on 



           16   everybody at the table being able to access 



           17   information.  If we're going to be able to reach 



           18   conclusions, reach consensus on some of these 



           19   things, people are going to need to know what 



           20   that's based on.  



           21              So to the extent that some people have 



           22   all the information and others don't have anywhere 



           23   near as much, that's a problem for this group, the 



           24   steering committee for the Water Planning Council, 



           25   so we've got to kind of put aside how we all feel 
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            1   about Margaret.  I mean, if she wasn't here, the 



            2   issue would be the same.  We need to kind of 



            3   figure out like a way to improve our ability to 



            4   serve the public with the validity of the data 



            5   that we're using to draw a conclusion.  So I'm not 



            6   sure how that kind of fits in, Bob, to what the 



            7   Committee is doing, but that might be another way 



            8   to start -- 



            9              ROBERT MOORE:  That first issue, I'll 



           10   talk about that.  



           11              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  All right.  And then 



           12   I guess it was interesting to hear that Maureen 



           13   started off at the health department.  So thank 



           14   you for that.



           15              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  But I didn't get to 



           16   go to Washington.



           17              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One of the things 



           18   that you were saying up there was so the WUCC 



           19   process is designed to bring together all these 



           20   players, you know, to talk about the various 



           21   things and then establish exclusive service areas.  



           22   Could you talk about what that means and how that 



           23   kind of relates to the state water plan?  



           24              LORI MATHIEU:  Exclusive service areas 



           25   in particular?  
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            1              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Yes.



            2              LORI MATHIEU:  Well, it's exactly what 



            3   it is.  It's an area set up of exclusive water 



            4   supply service by one utility so that you cannot 



            5   have another utility come in here and provide 



            6   water service.  



            7              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  So is that if these 



            8   three WUCC processes, this process went 



            9   successfully forward, then each one of those would 



           10   be an exclusive service area, and then so one 



           11   utility would basically have control?  



           12              LORI MATHIEU:  You would have 



           13   individual assigned exclusive service areas.  



           14   Unfortunately, I don't have a copy of the map of 



           15   any one of the WUCCs that were set up, but 



           16   essentially in this area of the state you have MDC 



           17   that has their service area, and then you have New 



           18   Britain, they have their exclusive service area.  



           19   They get their existing service area, you have 



           20   what you have, and then you claim areas of growth 



           21   beyond that.  And that should be connected to your 



           22   water supply plan to show how you can serve that 



           23   area.  And then during the process, the planning 



           24   process, you might have other utilities saying, 



           25   look, I want to serve that same area, this is how 
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            1   I'm going to do it.  And that's where the whole 



            2   negotiating process comes about.  In the Southeast 



            3   you had quite a few overlapping claims.  



            4              For instance, the Town of North 



            5   Stonington had eight different entities claiming 



            6   the entire town.  Because, if you remember, at 



            7   that time it was the late nineties and the 



            8   Foxwoods Casino just got built.  There was a lot 



            9   of ongoing, you know, big plans for Route 2 and 



           10   off of I-95, and so there was a lot of discussion 



           11   about development in the area.  So all the 



           12   utilities in the area wanted the Town of North 



           13   Stonington.  In the end the Town of North 



           14   Stonington won out.  The town is an exclusive 



           15   service area.  



           16              So the process is setting up areas of 



           17   where a utility can serve and where a utility has 



           18   excess water to be able to serve that area and is 



           19   connected to their individual water supply plan 



           20   that shows the safe yield and available water and 



           21   margin of safety over a 50-year period of time.  



           22              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Thank you.



           23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Maureen.



           24              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  If I could just add 



           25   on that.  The part about the exclusive service 
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            1   area, I think one of the things that's been the 



            2   greatest benefit from that from a water utility 



            3   perspective and from a customer perspective, quite 



            4   frankly, is the ability to know where systems are 



            5   going to expand and where the infrastructure 



            6   should be.  There's no point in making the 



            7   pipelines that are coming in either across each 



            8   other or bump into each other, there's enough 



            9   investment we have to make just to replace aging 



           10   infrastructure without replacing things that are 



           11   not really serving the greatest purpose.  



           12              So I think that's really from an 



           13   operational perspective one of the greatest 



           14   benefits of the WUCC is to have utilities identify 



           15   where it makes sense for them to serve, who has 



           16   adequate supplies, and how you will reasonably be 



           17   expected to meet those needs long term, and then 



           18   make sure you don't have a lot of redundancy in 



           19   those investments in that infrastructure to serve 



           20   those customers.  So I think that's a real 



           21   important part of it is how to benefit long term, 



           22   even in the ones that have been and maybe even 



           23   those not formally adopted.



           24              LORI MATHIEU:  And along with that, the 



           25   town planners, the council of governments, 
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            1   regional people and local health department, they 



            2   start to understand who's going to be where and 



            3   when if there's an issue and they know who they 



            4   can turn to.  And also it's connected to the 



            5   certificate law, the certificate of public 



            6   convenience and necessity, that looks at 



            7   developing new systems as stand-alone systems.  If 



            8   you have a claimed area, if you claim that entire 



            9   Town of North Stonington and you want to build a 



           10   new elderly housing out in the middle of the 



           11   woods, well, the Town of North Stonington will 



           12   have to own that water system.  



           13              No longer are we going to create new 



           14   small community systems.  The exclusive service 



           15   area will guide the development of not only their 



           16   own system but also the development, or hopefully 



           17   the lack of development, of new small community 



           18   systems that are run by a mobile home park owner 



           19   who lives in Florida and could care less about the 



           20   people who live there.  We run into that time and 



           21   time again.  The time is to stop that, and that's 



           22   one of the powers of the exclusive service area as 



           23   well.



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Any other 



           25   questions for Lori?  
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            1              MS. BLASCHINSKI:  If I could, I'd just 



            2   make one follow-up comment on that.  I think DPH 



            3   has tried to learn a bit from our sister agency at 



            4   DEEP and how you handle municipal facility 



            5   planning statewide.  So we have all these condo 



            6   associations who become public water systems, and 



            7   then we have to regulate them.  And then 



            8   ultimately the condo association board of 



            9   directors decides they're going to retire, they 



           10   don't want to do that anymore, and yet they're a 



           11   public water system.  And DPH is responsible for 



           12   overseeing that.  And what we came to learn was 



           13   with municipal facilities plans that if a condo 



           14   association becomes a community wastewater 



           15   treatment system that the town in which they exist 



           16   would have responsibility for managing that 



           17   community wastewater system, and it assisted quite 



           18   a bit in the creation of new systems.  So we'd 



           19   like to just keep that a similar process so that 



           20   it's not a quick, put this well in the ground, 



           21   build these condos, how fast can I sell them for, 



           22   how much money.  It's long term this is where 



           23   somebody is going to reside.  They will need a 



           24   long-term reliable source of drinking water for 



           25   their use.  
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            1              So there's some of the similarities I 



            2   think with municipal facility planning.  I think 



            3   the difference in that is it's completely 



            4   municipally owned.  I think there's a lot of 



            5   private entities who are in the business of 



            6   providing municipal facility service, but I'm sure 



            7   others could correct me.  



            8              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  There's one major 



            9   one, Ellen.



           10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Anything 



           11   else?  



           12              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  One more quick 



           13   question.  You started off talking about like the 



           14   number of systems that you regulate.



           15              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.



           16              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  It seems like a lot.  



           17              LORI MATHIEU:  Yes.  



           18              MICHAEL SULLIVAN:  Will this process 



           19   with the exclusive service areas and/or the WUCCs, 



           20   does that kind of drive down the number?  



           21              LORI MATHIEU:  It was meant to.  Part 



           22   of the report that Bob wrote was to stop the 



           23   growth of the small systems because in the 



           24   seventies and eighties systems were -- small condo 



           25   systems were being built, and they were failing 
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            1   the next day, literally failing.  So I think it 



            2   will work really hard to reduce the number of 



            3   systems that are out there.  



            4              One of the bigger problems is when you 



            5   talk about the growth of noncommunity systems, and 



            6   we have towns such as Brookfield that, thank God, 



            7   that Brookfield is being resolved, there was 180 



            8   public water systems along Federal Road in the 



            9   Town of Brookfield, 180.  And if you know Federal 



           10   Road, specifically the southern part of Federal 



           11   Road, every one of those shopping centers had a 



           12   well in a pit that you would drive over.  



           13              So if you went to the Panara Bread, 



           14   right, that's down in the southern part of 



           15   Brookfield, that well is in a pit that your car is 



           16   sitting over.  And even though it's groundwater, 



           17   it's filled with, let's see, you know, radium, 



           18   uranium, arsenic and MTBE and all kinds of VOCs.  



           19   So mix all that together, you are putting -- and 



           20   they wanted to continue to put more in there.  



           21              So the idea of planning better, the 



           22   problem we have is we're still growing more of the 



           23   Brookfields of the world.  We're still just saying 



           24   here's another building, here's another well, 



           25   here's another building, here's another well.  And 
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            1   towns need to start thinking about that, and so 



            2   does the state.  The state needs to rethink their 



            3   policy on growth of public water in those towns.  



            4              Like my town, 28 noncommunity systems 



            5   in my town, and it's going to continue to grow 



            6   because there's no other bigger infrastructure.  



            7   So that's part of the effort of the WUCC is to 



            8   limit the growth of these systems.



            9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Any other 



           10   questions?  



           11              (No response.)



           12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Lori, thank you 



           13   very much.  It was a great topic, great 



           14   discussion.  



           15              (Applause.)



           16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Next we're up for 



           17   the policy subcommittee report.



           18              ROBERT MOORE:  Thank you.  We've had 



           19   two meetings over the last two months.  And one of 



           20   the first things we did is ask the Council's 



           21   questions which were answered.  We were a little 



           22   bit concerned about the question about clarifying 



           23   the roles of the project manager.  The first part 



           24   of that seemed that the project manager reports to 



           25   the WPC, interacts, and then the second part of 
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            1   that question we were a little bit confused about 



            2   the role of the project manager in helping or 



            3   driving the steering committee.  So I think that 



            4   was answered a little better this morning or 



            5   earlier in this meeting, so I think we'll be 



            6   comfortable with that answer.  



            7              The two meetings focused on two primary 



            8   issues:  One is the redacted information on water 



            9   supplies, and felt that really without a clear 



           10   decision on what information was going to be 



           11   available that the report would be lacking and 



           12   would be missing things and people wouldn't trust 



           13   it because they wouldn't be able to see how much 



           14   water is where in terms of drinking water.  



           15              So we turned it back to you, Mike, and 



           16   said that we thought there was some information 



           17   that could be focused on -- and then try to work 



           18   with the agencies at DAS to come up with a 



           19   solution.  And the issues that we focused on -- 



           20   and the water utilities were there -- were that 



           21   reservoirs are clearly identified.  Most of the 



           22   maps that we've ever seen by name, they're clearly 



           23   marked on the highway that there's a reservoir 



           24   there.  We know where the protected lands are, 



           25   Class I and Class II lands are, and so that issue 
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            1   seemed to be -- there's an area in that area that 



            2   could be defined clearly and continued to be 



            3   focused.  



            4              We thought that the consumptions and 



            5   the yields, consumptive uses were important.  The 



            6   primary issue we need to know is how much water is 



            7   coming out of here and generally where it's going.  



            8   So the consumptive use might be an area where you 



            9   could reach some kind of agreement and that the 



           10   issue of related -- the reservoirs consumptive 



           11   uses and maybe the interconnection with other 



           12   utilities.  So not -- we didn't actually know -- 



           13   didn't need to know exactly where they were 



           14   connected, but it would be nice to know that MDC 



           15   is connected to Manchester and Cromwell in case of 



           16   emergency and stuff like that.  So it would be 



           17   nice if those things would be -- you don't need to 



           18   know where the pipes were, you just need to know 



           19   that there was an area where they could coexist.  



           20              And so there were some issues like that 



           21   which would lead to we didn't need to know about 



           22   what their treatment consisted of and what the 



           23   chemicals they use consisted of, you know, what 



           24   the peak concentrations were of chemicals, you 



           25   know, where the distribution system was, and a 
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            1   variety of those things, what kind of storage 



            2   tanks, but a lot of information is available from 



            3   other places.  I mean, if you knew where fire 



            4   hydrants are, they're clearly marked on the road, 



            5   you know, Call Before you Dig will tell you where 



            6   everything is.  



            7              So there's some inconsistencies, but we 



            8   felt that if we met with the water utilities and 



            9   DAS and members of the planning council, we may be 



           10   able to isolate those issues which could be 



           11   protected, but I think all three have to be at the 



           12   table.  I think the water companies have to be 



           13   there, you know, the council has to be there and 



           14   the DAS.  And if it needs a legislative change, it 



           15   could be a simple change, you could get it fairly 



           16   rapidly, but perhaps not, but I mean, at least, if 



           17   you're focused on what is critical in making the 



           18   plan successful, there are not that many big 



           19   issues, and consumptive use is probably the most 



           20   important part of it.  



           21              So that was our information, and if the 



           22   Council doesn't want to do it, I'm sure the policy 



           23   committee would be happy to focus more attention 



           24   on that, but we thought it needed to have people 



           25   with titles.  And that's where we left that.  And 
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            1   the utilities supported that.  So that was one of 



            2   our policy recommendations.  



            3              The other policy recommendation we had 



            4   was that the -- these are in writing so they'll 



            5   come out easier -- was that the registrations need 



            6   to be identified.  The registrations were made in 



            7   1982.  There has been no cleaning or culling of 



            8   them ever since.  And we recommended that the DEEP 



            9   write to the registrants asking them a few simple 



           10   questions focusing on do they still own it, is the 



           11   information still correct, do they still need the 



           12   water, or has something else happened in between, 



           13   are they willing to give up some of the uses that 



           14   they had or not.  But we wanted to make sure it 



           15   wasn't in a threatening way that said that, you 



           16   know, a farmer who's irrigating that he's not 



           17   going to answer the question.  It has to be in a 



           18   constructive way.  



           19              And then if we felt that there was no 



           20   answer and we needed more information, we need to 



           21   follow up with some kind of additional authority 



           22   to get what is registered.  That leaves a 



           23   little -- like Betsey gave us a report or a chart 



           24   of all the number of registrations and where they 



           25   were going to.  I mean, the power utilities took a 
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            1   lot, but we all know who they are, and one of them 



            2   is gone, but it's still listed as a registration.  



            3              So that if there's an issue that that 



            4   can be cleared up which would help focus in on how 



            5   much water is where and how much is available or 



            6   not available.  So that's something we recommend 



            7   that DEEP follow through on and we gave them some 



            8   suggestions.   



            9              The third policy that we were 



           10   recommending and we discussed is that there be no 



           11   change in the policy to protect the water supply, 



           12   that Connecticut is unique in being able to have 



           13   no discharge of wastewater into the water supply 



           14   system and reaffirm that that should not be looked 



           15   at as a change in this plan.  



           16              We did talk about whether or not other 



           17   Class B waters or other waters could be used for 



           18   different purposes.  We haven't fully fleshed that 



           19   out yet, but there are other uses for grey water 



           20   and other uses for recycled water.  We haven't 



           21   gotten into that, but for potable water supply 



           22   there was consensus on the AA standard.



           23              And we looked at recent events in South 



           24   Carolina and other places that flooded, and we 



           25   have the unique ability to keep that from 
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            1   happening here.  That would be the policy of the 



            2   state.  And also protection of the Class I and II 



            3   waters, which also went along with that, so that 



            4   the supplies be protected also from land uses.  



            5              Those are the main policy ones.  We 



            6   also discussed whether or not the plan should 



            7   promote -- these are some of the plethora of 



            8   policy questions that Virginia raised in her 



            9   report.  We've only got time to talk about a few, 



           10   and that was should the water plan promote 



           11   conservation.  Our answer was yes, and other 



           12   answers that support policy.  



           13              But we also talked about leak 



           14   detection.  We haven't finalized that, but it's 



           15   something that we're looking at is how to deal 



           16   with leaks in utilities.  We're not ready to deal 



           17   with that, but that was one of the other ones that 



           18   we should look at.  We'll get into the details of 



           19   that.  



           20              We also talked a little bit about the 



           21   State Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and 



           22   suggested that a policy for replacement of 



           23   utilities be given greater priority or priority so 



           24   that the funds be focused on replacement of the 



           25   infrastructure that's necessary to maintain an 









                                      73                         



�





                                                                 





            1   active water supply, which is more important in 



            2   consideration of rising sea levels.  There's a lot 



            3   of other issues that are related to using those 



            4   funds for the enhancement, replacement of and 



            5   protection of the utilities rather than expansion 



            6   of -- so we think that should be one.  We have to 



            7   talk about that further, but that was one of the 



            8   early responses that we had.  



            9              So that was basically the results of 



           10   our meeting so far.  At the next meeting we're 



           11   going to actually look at some ag uses and then 



           12   try to focus in on some of the needs that may be 



           13   changing over the changing agriculture uses in the 



           14   state and been employed, and some folks can talk 



           15   about that.  



           16              THE HEARING OFFICER:  A lot of work 



           17   there.  Thank you very much.  It's very very well 



           18   done.  



           19              Yes.



           20              MARGARET MINER:  The question of 



           21   staying with the AA standard for drinking water, 



           22   we do support it.  It took some discussion some 



           23   years ago with our board to come to that decision.  



           24   It does involve sacrifice of our best upland 



           25   streams and aquifers.  If water supply is needed, 
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            1   that's where the supply is sought.  I just -- we 



            2   still support it, but I'm becoming a little 



            3   anxious because of the stream classification 



            4   process.  We have streams that are Class I and II, 



            5   the highest ranking streams, cold water streams.  



            6   And if a water company has sort of dibs on it, say 



            7   they have future plans to develop that, that 



            8   stream drops down and becomes a III, less 



            9   protected.  



           10              And so I'm hoping that -- I do agree 



           11   that if companies have made a truly significant 



           12   investment on counting on supply that's needed, 



           13   that's one thing, but I am concerned that too many 



           14   of our high-quality upland waters have the utility 



           15   flag being put down on them and may be at risk in 



           16   the future.  And frankly, I don't think it helps 



           17   the utility that much either because once the 



           18   stream or that stream segment becomes a Class III, 



           19   other things can happen there that might not be 



           20   desirable for the utility.  



           21              So that's been a nagging question, and 



           22   I just wanted you to know that for us it isn't a 



           23   slam dunk.  We support the standard.  We think 



           24   it's important, but it comes at a price.



           25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you.
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            1              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Just a question.  



            2   So the policy group that I do sit on, one thing 



            3   I'm a little curious about is how do we integrate 



            4   the wastewater side of this equation?  I don't 



            5   know enough to know if wastewater is conservation 



            6   even a possibility.  Is that something that we 



            7   could -- you know, is leak detection a possibility 



            8   or a way to save water?  Are we as a policy, in 



            9   addition to looking at funding for drinking water 



           10   SRF, going to look at the priorities for the clean 



           11   water SRF?  Are we going to think about how 



           12   similar to economic development being impacted by 



           13   the availability of potable water, it's also 



           14   impacted pretty heavily by the availability of 



           15   public wastewater systems?  



           16              So maybe that's going to be coming, you 



           17   know, sort of to that agriculture is going to be 



           18   another area of focus, maybe wastewater in terms 



           19   of interbasin transfers, what impact does it have 



           20   to inland water bodies, impact to harmful algal 



           21   blooms, pollutants in Long Island Sound, et 



           22   cetera, is that going to be covered in the future 



           23   policy work?  



           24              ROBERT MOORE:  Sure.  I mean, those are 



           25   great answers.  I think the questions, obviously 
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            1   combined sewer overflows, infiltration, those are 



            2   all things that impact the quality and also the 



            3   quantity.  Some of our rivers, like the 



            4   Quinnipiac, have been virtually allocated for, you 



            5   know, most of its capacity for waste assimilation.  



            6   That's a pretty unique situation for a river to be 



            7   in is that, you know, its capacity for additional 



            8   waste, it means that water would have to come -- I 



            9   think there was a proposal in Meriden.  I think 



           10   the water -- the power plant would withdraw water 



           11   from the Connecticut River and put it in the 



           12   Quinnipiac and only because there's not enough 



           13   water in Connecticut to support our plan.    



           14              So there's going to be issues like 



           15   that, you know, where a river -- I think the Still 



           16   River in the Danbury area -- 



           17              MARGARET MINER:  Yes.



           18              ROBERT MOORE:  -- and a few of those 



           19   are in that same situation where most of the 



           20   capacity of the river, because of the assimilated 



           21   waste, has been allocated already.  



           22              So I think those are critical issues, 



           23   you know, in the future.



           24              ELLEN BLASCHINSKI:  Thank you.  



           25              GENE LIKENS:  I'll just speak loud.  
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            1   This is a process question.  How will the 



            2   subcommittee reports be used?  How will that be 



            3   incorporated?  Is this information being passed 



            4   along to the writers of the plan or what?  I 



            5   didn't understand.



            6              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  That's how we 



            7   envision it working, yes.  The input from the 



            8   subcommittees, the workgroups, comes here, and 



            9   then it gets incorporated ultimately when the 



           10   contractor is on board.  



           11              GENE LIKENS:  Incorporated directly, or 



           12   will there be further discussion, further 



           13   analysis?  



           14              DAVID LeVASSEUR:  There will be more 



           15   discussion, I'm sure, I would think, at this 



           16   level.  



           17              GENE LIKENS:  And when will that occur?  



           18   This is a process -- 



           19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  And it's a good 



           20   question.  For example, one of the things that 



           21   came out of the recommendation here today was that 



           22   something regarding the FOI will be a follow-up 



           23   with the Water Planning Council itself.  So once 



           24   we go through the minutes of this meeting and see 



           25   some of the recommendations that come out of the 
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            1   report, we'll plan accordingly how we're going to 



            2   follow up on that with the Water Planning Council.  



            3   Maybe hopefully at that point we'll have some 



            4   outside consultants.  And the whole thing is going 



            5   to be -- anything that's going to the various 



            6   committees is going to come back and be vetted by 



            7   this group before it goes into a final version for 



            8   the plan.  



            9              GENE LIKENS:  Okay.



           10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think that's a 



           11   very -- I mean, your question is a good one.  



           12   Obviously that report, a lot of work went into 



           13   that report, and we'll have a follow-up meeting on 



           14   how we're going to be utilizing that.  So I think 



           15   that's the beginning.  But again, the steering 



           16   committee is going to look at these topics, make 



           17   recommendations to the council, and then write a 



           18   report.  



           19              Any other questions or comments?  



           20              (No response.)



           21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you 



           22   very much to your committee.  



           23              And Virginia.



           24              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Before I start, the 



           25   invitation on the web was 1 to 2:30.  Is that what 
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            1   we are planning for this meeting?  



            2              THE HEARING OFFICER:  No.  No.  How 



            3   long do we have this room, Betsey?  



            4              BETSEY WINGFIELD:  Four.



            5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what I 



            6   thought.  



            7              ELIN SWANSON KATZ:  Can I just say, it 



            8   did say 1 to 3:30, so I have a 3 o'clock.



            9              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay, well -- 



           10              Virginia, I hope you're not going to go 



           11   on for an hour and a half.  



           12              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  What I was going to 



           13   say is essentially everybody around the table have 



           14   at their seat a brief summary of what the Science 



           15   and Technical Committee has done and a draft of 



           16   where we are with the spreadsheet we're putting 



           17   together.  And it's relatively self-explanatory.  



           18   So I will very happily just pass on doing a 



           19   presentation here.  



           20              I do want to say with the spreadsheet 



           21   this is not the most recent version, but it is 



           22   fairly recent and only two pages -- only the first 



           23   couple of things indicate just so you can see what 



           24   the spreadsheet covered, and then from there on in 



           25   it's just categories of data that we have 
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            1   generated through our brainstorming sessions.  



            2              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  You have in "Do 



            3   the data exist," you have "yes" and then you have 



            4   slashes and sometimes there are spaces between 



            5   "yes," and I just wasn't quite sure what that was 



            6   meaning.  



            7              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We had about eight 



            8   different people providing information to this, 



            9   and so all the different spreadsheets were merged, 



           10   and so each individual is separated by a slash.  



           11   So if they didn't respond, well, they didn't 



           12   respond, and they got a space.  



           13              SUSAN STRATTON SAYRE:  That makes more 



           14   sense.  Thank you.



           15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Well, what has 



           16   happened in our meetings is that we've gotten into 



           17   more philosophical and policy-type of discussions, 



           18   and that's the list on the front page that we 



           19   passed along to the policy committee.  I 



           20   referenced that a few minutes ago.  And then there 



           21   was a question raised whether that was 



           22   appropriately handled by the policy committee or 



           23   by this group.  And I don't know, I was not at the 



           24   meeting last week.  I don't know if you resolved 



           25   some of those.  But I would encourage the people 
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            1   in the steering committee to be looking at some of 



            2   those policy-type questions because it will inform 



            3   how the final plan evolves.  



            4              On a separate issue, sort of a link 



            5   between the policy group and the science group, 



            6   talking particularly about data being available, 



            7   you may recall a couple of months ago this group 



            8   enforced the grant application reviewing a project 



            9   for the U.S. Geological Survey that included the 



           10   SSWUDS database and other pieces.  Without the 



           11   data to go into SSWUDS, it loses a lot of its 



           12   value.  



           13              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Questions or 



           14   comments for Virginia?  



           15              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  We are open to 



           16   ideas, suggestions, more kinds of data, more 



           17   answers to filling in the spreadsheet.  As I said, 



           18   the spreadsheet would have been like 25 pages long 



           19   if I printed the whole thing out, but some of the 



           20   discussion we had, for instance, the second column 



           21   as to why is data needed, somebody said, well, 



           22   dah, but we -- and also if it exists, we don't 



           23   have to make a case for why it's needed.  But then 



           24   there was some discussion of the validity of 



           25   having it as an informative piece because many 
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            1   folks around this table and in this room have 



            2   different levels of expertise.  Somebody might not 



            3   understand how a particular type of data is used.  



            4   So that we decided to keep that in there for 



            5   that -- to provide information to people who may 



            6   not be familiar with that type of data.  But the 



            7   primary reason for that column was if data did not 



            8   exist, we would need to make a compelling case to 



            9   create it.  



           10              And just to use a non-touchy example, 



           11   if we decided that information on groundwater 



           12   wells, location of groundwater wells, I'm talking 



           13   about not ones regulated by the Department of 



           14   Health, probably like domestic wells, and the 



           15   depth of those wells, if those data were 



           16   determined to be important for the plan, currently 



           17   they exist only in paper files.  And if there was 



           18   a good case why those were essential, then perhaps 



           19   money would be found to create a digital database 



           20   with that information rather than paper files.  We 



           21   would have to make a case before somebody would be 



           22   willing to expend those resources.  



           23              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Anything else?  



           24              (No response.)



           25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  We have a 
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            1   Statewide Water Plan website update.  



            2              ERIC LINDQUIST:  I'll come up to the 



            3   podium.  I'm Eric Lindquist from OPM.  



            4              So following the previous steering 



            5   committee meeting, the draft design for the new 



            6   WPC web site was finalized and submitted to the 



            7   Department of Administrative Services, DAS, a 



            8   state agency that oversees all of the state's web 



            9   sites.  DAS is currently in the process of 



           10   building out the web site now and integrating it 



           11   into the state's Enterprise infrastructure.  And 



           12   meanwhile, I am providing and developing content 



           13   for the pages for the site.  



           14              There's two pages actually from which 



           15   I'd like to coordinate with DEEP, DPH and PURA on 



           16   subject matter.  Those pages essentially give an 



           17   overview of how the water is managed in the state, 



           18   as well as our water resources that we have.  So 



           19   my goal for those two pages is to take what is a 



           20   large amount of complicated, complex information, 



           21   laws, regulations from the various agencies, DEEP, 



           22   PURA, DPH, and basically consolidate them into one 



           23   cohesive, concise, easy-to-understand format that 



           24   the general public can come to and easily sit down 



           25   in just a few minutes and get a good understanding 
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            1   of how we currently manage water resources in the 



            2   state.  



            3              So essentially provide a resource to 



            4   those that are coming into this with a fresh set 



            5   of eyes that aren't aware of, you know, the things 



            6   that we're aware of so that they can easily 



            7   understand and jump in and have a resource they 



            8   can use.  So just a heads-up that I'll be reaching 



            9   out to those agencies in the coming days, 



           10   hopefully, to work with them on this.  



           11              I'm planning to have an initial draft 



           12   of the site launched before the end of the year.  



           13   So hopefully the next time we meet we can put it 



           14   up on the screen and go through it.  So all right.



           15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you, Eric.  



           16   Eric is doing a great job, and we appreciate it.  



           17              The Other States on the agenda, the 



           18   Other States Work Group Report.  We're going to 



           19   have a little discussion about plans found to be 



           20   most useful for the creation of Connecticut's plan 



           21   and the aspects of individual plans that should be 



           22   utilized by the committee.  



           23              And I guess, Virginia and Bob, are you 



           24   looking at any of the other statewide plans?  



           25              ROBERT MOORE:  We looked at the table 
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            1   of contents and thought it was really good at our 



            2   meeting.  



            3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Has anybody had 



            4   an opportunity to look at -- 



            5              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Several people on 



            6   the Science and Technical Work Group were part of 



            7   the Other State Plan Work Group, and so amongst us 



            8   we looked at many.  



            9              Is there a specific target of your 



           10   question?  



           11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, it's on the 



           12   agenda.  I mean, not really.  I mean, it was on 



           13   the agenda.  A lot of work went into that.



           14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  One of the things I 



           15   would like to stress about that -- and is Matt 



           16   still here?  Oh, there you are.  You might want to 



           17   jump in.  The focus of this group has been more on 



           18   that table of contents.  The Other States Group 



           19   got together and redid that update based on some 



           20   input that we got from the steering committee at 



           21   the workshop.  I want to emphasize that most of 



           22   the work that the Other States Committee did 



           23   was -- resulted in the whole document that was 



           24   sent out as an attachment to the invitation to 



           25   this meeting.  It was this one.  And this has a 
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            1   very extensive table in it that I know, if I were 



            2   one of you, I would get there and go, oh, my 



            3   goodness, and sort of cover it that way.  I 



            4   encourage you very strongly to look at that table.  



            5   There is an incredible amount of information in 



            6   there on how other states handle specific issues 



            7   that we deem to be important for our process.  



            8              The way that gets started is we came up 



            9   with questions that we thought were germane to the 



           10   process and really important to address, and then 



           11   each of us, as we looked at other states' plans, 



           12   went through those questions and saw how other 



           13   states address those questions.  So it's an 



           14   incredibly valuable resource that so far has not 



           15   been the focus of the discussions here.  



           16              So you can't do it in two or three 



           17   minutes, as we're speaking here, but please do go 



           18   through it.  It may clarify a lot of the concerns 



           19   that we're running into, have run into, and will 



           20   run into during this process.  And then there are 



           21   links to more information on many, not all, but 



           22   many of those issues that if somebody really wants 



           23   to delve into it, you can do so.



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So perhaps 



           25   the steering committee will look at this for 
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            1   future meetings and actually -- 



            2              Yes, Margaret.



            3              MARGARET MINER:  There's a lot of good 



            4   information here.  David Radka at different 



            5   meetings has mentioned that he particularly likes 



            6   the Oregon plan.  And I asked why and had a quick 



            7   look at it, and he said because they're starting 



            8   off where we are data gathering and felt we were 



            9   starting in the same place, and it was a very -- 



           10   it was a science-based database plan.  



           11              So I wanted to mention there are a 



           12   couple of plans that David likes, particularly the 



           13   Oregon plan, and there's another in Nebraska that 



           14   he liked.  So I guess what I did is I looked at 



           15   the Oregon plan, and I looked at the Nebraska, 



           16   okay, what are the features here, and then looking 



           17   through the rest, okay, what do the other plans 



           18   do.  



           19              So I don't know who will get stuck with 



           20   the assignment from the agencies, but it really is 



           21   worthwhile looking through.  And I think some 



           22   people, like Virginia and others, if you have 



           23   questions, he really has looked at a few plans and 



           24   could give you a briefing on what's in them and 



           25   what their strengths and weaknesses are.  
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            1              MAUREEN WESTBROOK:  I don't know if 



            2   it's something that might be worth a presentation 



            3   in a future meeting and kind of go through it, the 



            4   highlights.  



            5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think the next 



            6   meeting that's what we'll do.  We'll start off 



            7   with a presentation of that, which is a nice segue 



            8   actually to the final items we discussed, perhaps 



            9   doing Webinars of various topics of interest.



           10              MARGARET MINER:  Yes, that is the 



           11   segue.  We were thinking that all of us have some 



           12   areas we know better than others, and then on some 



           13   of these specialty items, instead of having 



           14   general presentations, it might be good if someone 



           15   wants to know more about, say, registrations, what 



           16   the law has been, what the court interpretations 



           17   have been, there could be either a Webinar or a 



           18   small group meeting for people that might have a 



           19   special interest that want a little more in-depth 



           20   on a particular subject.  And that way -- well, we 



           21   just thought that would be a more efficient way of 



           22   members gathering information so we could move 



           23   forward more quickly.  



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Great.  So I 



           25   think that's what we'll do, we'll take that -- 









                                      89                         



�





                                                                 





            1   probably state water plans in terms of -- 



            2              MARGARET MINER:  That would be ideal.



            3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  That's what we'll 



            4   do.  



            5              Any other business to come before us?  



            6              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  If I may, it's very 



            7   hard for each of us to focus on this when we're 



            8   not actually in this room.  I would propose that 



            9   we spend a few minutes gathering ideas of what 



           10   kinds of expertise we might want to focus on so 



           11   that we can actually start moving on that.  



           12              Sam, may I use you as an example?  



           13              SAM GOLD:  Sure.  



           14              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  For example, when 



           15   the science and technical group was talking about 



           16   that issue, why we need to use data, we 



           17   acknowledge that not everybody knows everything.  



           18   In that context Sam admitted that he doesn't know 



           19   that much hydrology.  



           20              And so in response to that, some of you 



           21   have seen the Water 101 presentation that I have 



           22   done.  I said, you know, would that help, that 



           23   kind of thing help.  And so that's one example of 



           24   something that we could do if we had a Webinar, 



           25   and anybody who wanted to know how groundwater and 
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            1   surface water are interconnected and those types 



            2   of things, could participate in it rather than 



            3   taking the time of this group in one of these 



            4   meetings where, you know what, quite a number of 



            5   people do understand hydrology.  



            6              So I think if we could gather now what 



            7   expertise is available that will -- I just offered 



            8   to do Water 101, but other people, not just in the 



            9   steering committee, but in the room in general 



           10   could present, or what people would like to see, 



           11   and get more information on so that we can start 



           12   putting together a schedule of those things.



           13              MARGARET MINER:  Beth Barton was 



           14   specifically mentioned at the meeting.  So because 



           15   she speaks up so much, we thought she would be an 



           16   ideal educator.  



           17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Well, for 



           18   example, Lori Mathieu said there's going to be a 



           19   cybersecurity seminar up in Massachusetts.  I 



           20   mean, we have to get the information out.  There's 



           21   a link to the presentation on our web site.



           22              ROBERT MOORE:  I was involved in the 



           23   report with DEP on climate impacts, so I think 



           24   there is a report on climate impacts.  I don't 



           25   know if it was ever finished, but I was reviewing 
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            1   it several years ago.  So maybe if there is a 



            2   report on climate impacts that some of that be 



            3   presented.  I think the report was done.  I 



            4   reviewed part of it so -- 



            5              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All right.



            6              ROBERT MOORE:  But that might be 



            7   something where not a lot of us have any expertise 



            8   or knowledge of what was in that report, but it 



            9   might be something that's worth having a meeting 



           10   just to show what we know, what has already been 



           11   done on climate impacts.  It's destined to be one 



           12   of the more difficult things for us to deal with.



           13              MS. WESTBROOK:  Related to the utility, 



           14   whether its operator status, that kind of stuff, 



           15   infrastructure challenges, those kind of things, 



           16   I'm sure there are a number of people in the 



           17   industry who can speak to any specific areas 



           18   relating to water utility operations, planning, 



           19   investments, that kind of stuff.  Maybe it's 



           20   something we can do at the next meeting, you know, 



           21   prior to the meeting, half hour prior to the 



           22   meeting people could meet as opposed to trying to 



           23   find a separate time, kind of add on to the 



           24   regular meeting.



           25              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  So the 
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            1   idea is that we'll take some of these 



            2   recommendations here and come up with Webinars or 



            3   something as an extension so we don't take up a 



            4   lot of these meetings.  We could go through a 



            5   water rate case.  Maureen loves it.  They're a lot 



            6   of fun.  So we might, for instance, go through and 



            7   look at that process and see how to set rates.  



            8              GENE LIKENS:  We might want to add to 



            9   that emerging water quality issues.  



           10              MARGARET MINER:  Glenn Warner has 



           11   raised the question pretty often.  To what extent 



           12   is this water plan primarily very strongly 



           13   directed towards quantity and volume; and if we 



           14   want to consider quality, how deep do we want to 



           15   go into that?  Is the plan meant to do both, or is 



           16   that what we're prepared for?  I don't have an 



           17   answer, but I know he's raised that question a few 



           18   times.



           19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think we have 



           20   some good recommendations.  



           21              Anything else?  



           22              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Did you 



           23   intentionally skip Item Number 6?  



           24              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Item 6 was 



           25   correspondence -- I think that's more of a -- 
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            1   "Discussion of recent correspondence received by 



            2   the Council."  I think that's the Water Planning 



            3   Council, not this.  The only letters that -- we 



            4   did receive a letter from Gene Likens, and we 



            5   addressed that at the last meeting.  And we also 



            6   received a letter from Connecticut Water Works 



            7   Association relative to the Water Planning Council 



            8   Advisory Group and what their role is.  



            9              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  And also the 



           10   approval process.  Didn't yours have the approval 



           11   process of the plan also?  



           12              BETSY GARA:  Yes.



           13              VIRGINIA de LIMA:  Was that directed at 



           14   the board or the steering committee?  



           15              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I think your 



           16   letter was addressed to the Water Planning 



           17   Council, wasn't it?



           18              BETSY GARA:  Correct, yes.



           19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  In terms of what 



           20   the role of the advisory group was relative to the 



           21   water plan.  And I think, as Maureen said, we do 



           22   have -- I think we have the structure, you know, 



           23   the way the structure is set up now, but I think 



           24   that the advisory group just wanted to know 



           25   exactly what their role was, and we were going to 
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            1   talk more about that at the planning council.



            2              MARGARET MINER:  Just a heads-up, many 



            3   people in the advisory group have been looking at 



            4   the final approval process of the plan.  So that's 



            5   just a heads-up.  Different people have been 



            6   looking at a timeline, does it work, and some 



            7   other aspects, and we will be bringing it to the 



            8   Water Planning Council.  But the consensus of the 



            9   group was that there's some problems with the 



           10   approval process.  It was done at the end of 



           11   everything else.



           12              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Right.  So that's 



           13   something we're going to make a recommendation.  



           14              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes, the advisory 



           15   group, we talked about it last time, and got a lot 



           16   of feedback, and Margaret and I will -- 



           17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Let's hope we 



           18   have a plan to approve.  Let's spend more energy 



           19   to get the plan approved than how we're going to 



           20   get -- let's plan on spending more energy on the 



           21   plan than getting the plan approved.  I think 



           22   that's an important part of all this.  Let's focus 



           23   on the plan together, then we'll worry about, you 



           24   know, what you want before the committee.  



           25              So, I don't think we need to -- you 
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            1   seem to be really nervous about it.



            2              MS. WESTBROOK:  Yes.  When we talk 



            3   about it with the advisory board -- 



            4              THE HEARING OFFICER:  You know what, be 



            5   careful what you wish for though.  Trust me on 



            6   this.  Be careful what you wish for.  You don't 



            7   need to open a whole can of worms.  



            8              Okay.  Anything else to come before us?  



            9              (No response.)



           10              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Don't we have 



           11   meetings throughout the year?  



           12              GAIL LUCCHINA:  No.  I was told that 



           13   there wasn't a date chosen.  Our hearing room will 



           14   be available at PURA.  Because I asked Tyra if we 



           15   already booked a date at PURA for January, and she 



           16   said no date was set in January.  So we are 



           17   looking to stay every other month.  We can 



           18   certainly do one -- 



           19              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  



           20              GAIL LUCCHINA:  -- the first Tuesday.



           21              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have 



           22   a meeting of the planning council.  I hope we have 



           23   another steering committee meeting before the end 



           24   of the year.    



           25              GAIL LUCCHINA:  So you'd like the next 
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            1   steering committee meeting before the end of the 



            2   year?  



            3              THE HEARING OFFICER:  I'd like to have 



            4   a planning council and a steering committee 



            5   meeting by the end of the year.  I think that's 



            6   important because, God willing, we'll have 



            7   NEIWPCC, we'll have a project manager, we'll have 



            8   things to talk about, so we can have a -- 



            9              Okay?  Are we all set?  



           10              (No response.)



           11              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Okay.  Thank you 



           12   all very much.  Thank you to the people on the 



           13   phone.  



           14              Motion to adjourn.  



           15              GENE LIKENS:  So moved.  



           16              SAM GOLD:  Second.



           17              THE HEARING OFFICER:  All those in 



           18   favor?  



           19              THE COMMITTEE:  Aye.



           20              THE HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you very 



           21   much.



           22              (Whereupon, the above proceedings were 



           23   adjourned at 3:01 p.m.)



           24              



           25              
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